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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ANGIE=LE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman) *

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Deputy Chairman) *
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (Joint Managing Director)

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung (Joint Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho *

Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki*

Mr. Poon Kan Young*

Mr. Yip Kai Yung*

* Non-executive Director
# Independent Non-executive Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Poon Kan Young
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Mr. Poon Kan Young (Chairman)
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwok Wing Fai
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Office A, 20th Floor

Kings Wing Plaza 1

3 On Kwan Street

Shek Mun, Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
VMS Securities Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

° Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

e  The Bank of East Asia, Limited

o Hang Seng Bank Limited

e  The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

SHARE REGISTRARS
e Hong Kong
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wan Chai
Hong Kong

e  Cayman Islands
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1093
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Grand Cayman
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Cayman Islands
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LEGAL ADVISERS

e Hong Kong Law
Reed Smith Richards Butler

e Cayman Islands Law
Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP

STOCK CODE
1897 (ordinary shares)

LISTING DATE
19 March 2019

WEBSITE
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Million Hope Industries
Holdings Limited
EFTHEZEARLT
(Stock Code B% {n X5 : 1897)

Million Hope Industries (BVI)
Limited

Million Hope (BVI) Limited

GROUP STRUCTURE
SERIE
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Heroic Elite Investments
Limited
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Waller Holdings Limited

Rich Victory (Hong Kong)
Limited
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Paramount Forward Limited
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Sunny Oriental Limited
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Bl F5 4 2

Revenue Profit attributable to owners
&= of the Company for the year
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”)
of Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the first annual
report together with the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or “Million Hope")
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$376.6 million, representing a 10.6%
decrease as compared to HK$421.1 million recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2018. The drop in revenue was
mainly due to delay of the master programmes of the
Group's certain projects.

The Group recorded consolidated profit attributable to
owners of the Company totalled HK$22.9 million (2018:
HK$50.1 million), representing a 54.3% decrease over
the consolidated profit attained last year. Such drop in
consolidated profit was mainly resulted from the drop in
revenue and overall gross profit margins and the one-off
expenses of HK$22.6 million incurred for the Company's
listing (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
during the year. The basic earnings per share for the year
was HK$1.06 based on the weighted average number
of 21,517,869 shares in issue after the Listing, while
HK$501,120 in the last year was calculated based on the
then 100 shares in issue.
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As at 31 March 2019, the net asset value of the
Group amounted to HK$508.8 million (31 March
2018: HK$128.7 million), representing an increase of
295.3% over last year. The increase was mainly due to
proceeds of HK$43.6 million from issue of new shares
and the capital contribution of HK$318.6 million from
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (stock code: 896)
(“Hanison”) before the Listing. Net asset value per share
as at 31 March 2019 was HK$1.17 based on the issued
shares of 436,332,630 shares in issue (31 March 2018:
HK$1,286,920 calculated based on the then 100 shares in
issue).

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK2.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
nil) to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 5 September 2019. The
proposed final dividend will be paid on 17 September
2019 following approval at the annual general meeting
scheduled to be held on 27 August 2019 and shall be paid
out of the Company’s other reserves account.

SPIN-OFF AND SEPARATE LISTING OF THE
COMPANY

The Company was originally wholly-owned by Hanison.
The spin-off of the Company from Hanison (the “Spin-
off”) and the Listing was implemented by distribution
in specie as a special interim dividend by Hanison to its
qualifying shareholders on basis of two shares of the
Company for every five shares of Hanison held as at 12
March 2019. The shares of the Company are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 19 March 2019 (the
“Listing Date"”) and thereafter, the Company ceased to be
a subsidiary of Hanison.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

R2019F3A31B AEBE2EEFHE
#508,800,000/ st (20183 A31H
128,700,000/ JT) » B A F 1€ fN295.3% °
EMDEEHRBITHERD ZMAMBRIE
43,600,000,%75&J:ﬁﬁﬁ!iﬂ%"éuulﬂﬁﬁ
BRAT (RMHARIE:89%) ((RB)2EE
318,600,0005% 7t FT 2 ° 20193 A31H ' iR
1%436,332,630 E R ITRIDTE BREETF
BEA1.17/8 7t (2018F3H31H : 1,286,920/8
7T (RIBERC BT ZI100RBMHETE) )

Bz B

EEEEZON2019F9A858 BHAR QAR
REMZ PR REEHZ2019F3A31H ILF
EzARBAREESR2.0/8M (2018F : &) - &
EBZARHEREEFEN201968H827H 8172
BRERBERE E#ER  EMW2019F9817H
IREBEGAEARAD TN EMRAEERP S -

PHERELFH/ILLT

ARRRABEEBZERER - A RAEEBED
K ([2#F1) R EHEBREBRN20195F
SANEERAIREBROEEMBRA QT
B2 BE%E LBYHEADRTHESERRR
AR PR EER - AQERHMN2019F
3A19E (TEWRM) REERFrER LT &
B ARBIFIBREBNHBLR-



BUSINESS REVIEW

The slowing down of the global economic growth
in 2019 is predicted by both the World Bank and the
International Monetary Fund. This is mainly due to
the intensifying conflicts between the US and China in
trade and other economic and political fields. As one
of the important global financial centres, Hong Kong
will inevitably be affected by such a reverse economic
situation, thus, we are facing huge uncertainty in the
coming year.

However, the construction project works in Hong Kong
have been growing continuously over the past years
due to the strong demands for residential, office and
commercial buildings and the Hong Kong Government's
investment in public residential housing and large
public infrastructure works have further intensified the
construction activities. This provides some opportunities
for our company since we are mainly engaged in the
design, supply and installation of facade and curtain
walls systems.

HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

The Group was spun-off from Hanison and separately
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 19
March 2019.

As a listed company, the Group will have a better
platform to expand its business and will set even higher
standards to meet the satisfaction of our customers.
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PROSPECTS

With the Hong Kong Government’'s determination and
efforts to resolve the city’s acute housing problem, Mr.
Paul Chan Mo Po, the Financial Secretary, estimated that
about 100,400 public housing units will be completed
in the next five years and about 93,000 units of private
residential property in the next three to four years.

With such an abundant supply of new properties,
developers are likely to speed up their projects and
there should be plenty of opportunities to obtain facade
windows and curtain wall project works. Therefore we
are positive about the Group's future business.

APPRECIATION

Million Hope was established in 1990 as a small
subcontractor and acquired by Hanison in 2007. It was
gradually developed into a sizeable and reputable
company and has now been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. | would like to take this opportunity
to extend my sincere gratitude to our management
and staff for their dedication, commitment and efforts
towards the growth and success of this company. | would
also like to thank our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their continuous support and trust.
Together we work towards a better hope, a greater goal
and a brighter future.

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman
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The Group, through Million Hope Industries Limited,
the principal operating subsidiary of the Company, is a
subcontractor principally engaged in the design, supply
and installation of facade and curtain walls systems,
with a focus on curtain walls, aluminium windows and
doors, with an operating history of over 20 years in Hong
Kong. The Group provides one-stop design, supply and
installation services for curtain walls, aluminium windows
and doors on both new and existing buildings, and works
closely with customers and architects to offer tailor-made
designs and products to suit the project requirements.
The Group’s principal customers are main contractors and
property developers.

Major Projects Completed During the Year

(1) Residential development at STTL 567, Lai Ping Road
in Area 56A, Kau To Shan, Shatin, New Territories
— Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, curtain wall, louver, metal cladding and
glass balustrade

fREH

Residential development at STTL 567, Lai Ping Road in
Area 56A, Kau To Shan, Shatin, New Territories
R HE MM ILS6AE BT H it BR 55675 2 (X B 3
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)

3)

(4)

(5)

Residential development at NKIL 6532, Lung Cheung
Road, Beacon Hill, Kowloon — Design, supply and
installation of aluminium window, louver, railing
and glass balustrade

Residential development at NKIL 6532, Lung Cheung
Road, Beacon Hill, Kowloon — Design, supply and

installation of curtain wall

Residential development at Antuo Hill, Shenzhen —
Supply of aluminium window and door

Imperial Pacific Resort development - Phase 1,

Saipan Island - Design, supply and installation of
curtain wall and sliding door

)

3)

(4)

©)

NEERRILBEMBH NEAN U R 56532
RZEEBRRIER - R HERZER
B BE MR R IR

NEEERILEEABH NLEE A1 FREE6532
H2EEBRREE -&R HERZER

i

RN L2 EEBRIEE -HERE
P9

Z I BImperial Pacific Resort® /g 18 B
B—H-RET-HERZERBREEM

Residential development at NKIL 6532, Lung Cheung
Road, Beacon Hill, Kowloon

NEBRILEAEHR NEAMREES32K 2EEHREAR
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A Residential development at TPTL 225, Pak Shek Kok,
Tai Po, New Territories

MAXBARARIE T HERE2255K 2 EEBRRIEAE

P> Residential development at TKOTL 70 RP, Lohas Park

Package 6 (rendering of the development)
BERMBRETRHBR B ERBE A2 ITERRIER
(RFH=E)
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Major Projects Undertaken During the Year

(1)

()

3)

(4)

Residential development at TKOTL 70 RP, Lohas
Park Package 6 — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium window and door

Residential development at TPTL 225, Pak Shek
Kok, Tai Po, New Territories — Design, supply and
installation of curtain wall system to residential
tower

Residential development at Site N of TKOTL 70
RP, Lohas Park Package 6 — Design, supply and
installation of aluminium grille and cladding work
to AC platform

Residential development at Site C1 of TKOTL 70
RP, Lohas Park Package 7 — Design, supply and
installation of tower curtain wall and podium glass
wall

FARENEEIE
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(5)

(6)

7)

®)

Commercial development at STTL 143, New Town
Plaza, Shatin, New Territories — Design, supply and
installation of glass wall, shop front, bi-folding door,
glass balustrade, aluminium cladding and louvre

Residential development at TMTL 541, So Kwun Wat
Road, Area 56, Tuen Mun, New Territories — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium window and
door

Residential development at STTL 605 Lok Wo Sha
Lane at Ma On Shan, Shatin, New Territories —
Design, supply and installation of sliding folding
door, window and glass wall

Residential development at TSWTL 34, Area 115,
Tin Shui Wai, New Territories — Design, supply and
installation of curtain wall

®)

(6)

@)

@®)

S HEH ™ 50 H ™ i R 58 14357
ZERBRIEE - R HERZERE
o EE A WERT - SRR
EBEE

HAHBFIS6EFE KBTI iR 5541
H2EERRIER —R HERZEKE
EP5d!

FROBBBILERDEDAD MRS
6055 2 EFEBRRIRE — Rt HERZ
KREEAMM - B RFEE

FRRKE 1158 K KE i EREE3455 2
FEHEEE R HERZEER

V Residential development at TMTL
541, So Kwun Wat Road, Area 56,
Tuen Mun, New Territories (rendering
of the development)

AR EMeEFESHKEM MRS
SR ZEERRIER (RABESE)

A Residential development at STTL 605 Lok Wo Sha
Lane at Ma On Shan, Shatin, New Territories
FROBERLERDEDHED M ER #6055 2 E
ERRIER
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Major Projects Awarded During the Year

(1)

()

3)

(4)

(5)

Residential development at Site | of TKOTL 70
RP, Lohas Park Package 10 - Design, supply and
installation of curtain wall system and aluminium
window and door

House development at No. 1 Plantation Road, Hong
Kong — Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, glass door, curtain wall and metal cladding

Commercial development at No. 75-85 Lockhart
Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong - Design, supply and
installation of aluminium unitised curtain wall, glass
wall, aluminium cladding, stone cladding, glass
canopy and louvre

Residential development at TMTL 539, Hoi Wing
Road and Hang Fu Street, Area 16, Tuen Mun,
New Territories — Design, supply and installation of
curtain wall to tower

Residential development at 16 and 18 Cape Road,
Chung Hom Kok, Hong Kong — Design, supply and
installation of aluminium window

The total amount of contracts on hand of the Group as at
31 March 2019 was HK$552.4 million.
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Residential development at Site | of
TKOTL 70 RP, Lohas Park Package 10
(rendering of the development)
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OUTLOOK

The curtain wall business is expected to witness steady
and considerable growth, owing to the high demand
for lightweight and high sustainability of curtain walls
in construction projects. These walls are used in several
types of residential and commercial buildings to resist air
and water infiltration, and to withstand wind loads.

Increasing demand for energy-efficient curtain walls is
expected to further spur the market growth in the years
ahead. Commercial buildings and sports arenas have
high energy consumptions, so developers and building
contractors have been focusing on green buildings and
energy-efficient curtain walls to reduce energy costs and
improve building energy efficiency.

Million Hope has been established since 1990. It had
extensive experience in dealing with aluminium windows
and curtain walls in various type of buildings. Having
a self-owned aluminium windows and curtain wall
factory in Huizhou, a group of experienced and reliable
subcontractors, and with the support of its in-house
design team, it can cater for a wide range of customised
needs from clients for aluminium windows and curtain
walls in terms of repairing, modification and new
construction projects.

With years of continuing expansion, Million Hope is now
one of the leading contractors of aluminium windows
and curtain walls in Hong Kong. The Company has
successfully completed the aluminium windows and
curtain walls projects for many luxury properties and has
gained wide market awareness and good reputation.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019
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Going forward, the upsurge in the construction of
commercial and residential buildings in Hong Kong is
anticipated to drive the demand for aluminium windows
and curtain walls project works. The growth can also
be ascribed to the increasing demand for enhanced
energy-efficient solutions in commercial and residential
buildings. However, similar to the construction industry,
competition in tendering for project works is keen and
difficulty in recruiting workers is continuing, leading to
lower gross profit margins and higher project costs. To
stay competitive in the market, cost control is important
and close supervision and strict quality control are
required to ensure that the products comply with the
highest standards required by clients and contribute to
the Group's sustainable growth.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Summary of Results

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$376.6 million, representing a 10.6%
decrease as compared to HK$421.1 million recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2018. The drop in revenue was
mainly due to delay of the master programmes of the
Group’s certain projects.

The Group recorded consolidated profit attributable to
owners of the Company totalled HK$22.9 million (2018:
HK$50.1 million), representing a 54.3% decrease over
the consolidated profit attained last year. Such drop in
consolidated profit was mainly resulted from the drop
in revenue and overall gross profit margins and the one-
off expenses of HK$22.6 million incurred for the Listing
during the year. The basic earnings per share for the year
was HK$1.06, calculated based on the weighted average
number of 21,517,869 shares in issue after the Listing,
while HK$501,120 in the last year was calculated based
on the then 100 shares in issue.

As at 31 March 2019, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$508.8 million (31 March 2018: HK$128.7
million), representing an increase of 295.3% over
last year. The increase was mainly due to proceeds of
HK$43.6 million on issue of new shares and the capital
contribution of HK$318.6 million from Hanison before
the Listing. Net asset value per share as at 31 March 2019
was HK$1.17 based on the issued shares of 436,332,630
shares in issue (31 March 2018: HK$1,286,920 calculated
based on the then 100 shares in issue).
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Group Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group mainly financed its operations through
internally generated cash flows and utilised the banking
facilities for performance bonds for carrying out its
projects during the year. In the long term, the directors
of the Company believe that the Group’s operation
will continue to be financed in this way. The Group
has accessed to facilities from banks with an aggregate
amount of HK$260.0 million, of which HK$110.6 million
has been utilised for performance bonds as at 31 March
2019. There was no bank loans drawn down by the
Group as at 31 March 2019. The performance bonds
under these banking facilities bear charges at prevailing
market condition.

The Group is prudent in managing its cash balance and
maintains sound cash flow generating capability. The
total cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to
HK$304.6 million as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018:
HK$40.6 million), which accounted for 61.5% of the
current assets (31 March 2018: 19.9%).

During the year, the Group has a net cash outflow of
HK$29.7 million in its operating activities (mainly due
to increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments and
increase in Hong Kong Profits Tax paid), a net cash
outflow of HK$4.1 million in its investing activities
(mainly due to purchase of property, plant and
equipment) and a net cash inflow of HK$298.0 million
in its financing activities (mainly due to issue of shares
and capital contribution from former immediate holding
company). As at 31 March 2019, the Group was in a net
cash position as there was no bank loans outstanding.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s net current assets was
HK$393.4 million (31 March 2018: net current assets of
HK$26.1 million) and the current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was 4.87 times (31 March
2018: 1.15 times).

With its sufficient cash balances and banking facilities
available, the Group's liquidity position will remain
healthy in the coming year, with sufficient financial
resources to meet its obligations, operation and future
development requirements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW 8 #% [0] &

KETHEERMERR

FRAERFTEEBABELENRERE
BIEEES RHARTREITEHOR
BE HEUMREBE -AQATESERA XK
EEMNEELRABEZARNREHRES K
2019 3831H AEBEHARITHMEHAE
260,000,0005% Jt * H #110,600,00078 T E A
EBNRFEL - MA2019F38310  AEE I
FIRERITER -ZERTAME T 2BHORE
SRBITHRTER L -

AEEEREEEHRSAt WERSERER
SEER N -M2019F38318 AEE 2R
£ &R 1T 4 82 42 58 5304,600,0005% 7T (2018
#F3H31H :40,600,00087T) (A RBEE
61.5% (201853 H31H : 19.9%) °

FR - AEBEBEERZ2FREARLEA
29,700,000/ 8 T (FEHREWRFRE - RER
FEARIBE MK A EBFESHIL M) -
REEEFRESFRHEA4,100,000/8 7T (X EH
RIBEWZE BERSZER)  URBEFER
SHIR SR A £298,000,00058 7T (3 B A B
TRORATBEEZERQBEEME) 12019
F3A318 HREBEREERTER ~5H
BEREZMR - REENK2019F3831H 2
SRENE E R {H £393,400,0007%8 7T (2018538
318 R EE E F 826,100,000 7t ) &7 E
b (RBIEERUREIEE) 54.871Z (2018
34318 :1.1543F)

BREEEZNESEHRTHBANRTRE
AEBZABES R REBESER B
5 70 48 B R L P (BB B R R TR
REE.

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K

19



20

FINANCIAL REVIEW 8 3% [ &

Treasury Policy

The Group’s treasury policy aims to minimise its exposure
to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to engage in
any highly leveraged or speculative derivative products.
Foreign currency exposures of the Group arise mainly
from the purchase of raw materials using Renminbi in
the Mainland China. The Group currently does not have
any hedging arrangements to control the risks related
to fluctuations in exchange rates, and will determine
if any hedging is required, depending upon the size
and nature of the exposure, and the prevailing market
circumstances.

The Group does not have significant exposure to gains
or losses arising from the movement of foreign currency
exchange rate against the Hong Kong dollar as most of
the income, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Shareholders’ Funds

As at 31 March 2019, the shareholders’ funds of the
Group were HK$508.8 million, including reserves of
HK$465.2 million, an increase of HK$380.1 million from
HK$128.7 million as at 31 March 2018. The consolidated
net asset value of the Group as at 31 March 2019
was HK$1.17 per share based on the issued shares of
436,332,630 shares, compared to the consolidated net
asset value of HK$1,286,920 per share based on the then
100 shares in issue as at 31 March 2018. The increase
in shareholders’ funds was mainly attributable to issue
of shares, capital contribution from Hanison and the
retained profits.

Capital Structure

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity,
comprising share capital and reserves. As at 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018, there was no bank loans as
all of them were fully repaid during the year ended 31
March 2018.

Major Acquisitions and Disposals

There was no significant investment, acquisition and
disposals that should be notified to the shareholders of
the Company during the year.
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Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not pledge any assets
to banks or other financial institutions (31 March 2018:
nil).

Performance Bonds and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had outstanding
performance bonds in respect of construction contracts
amounting to HK$110.6 million (31 March 2018: HK$87.2
million). Prior to the Spin-off and the Listing, Hanison
Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hanison, provided corporate
guarantees for these outstanding performance bonds
granted to the Group. Such corporate guarantees have
been released upon the Spin-off and the Listing.

Prior the Spin-off and the Listing, Million Hope Industries
Limited and certain former fellow subsidiaries of the
Company provided a joint and several guarantee to an
insurance company in respect of a surety bond facility
granted to Million Hope Industries Limited and its former
fellow subsidiaries and an amount of approximately
HK$57.4 million was utilised by the former fellow
subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March 2018. No
provision for financial guarantee contracts has been
recognised by the Group as at 31 March 2018. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of the financial guarantee contracts on initial recognition
and the amount of provision to be recognised
subsequently was insignificant. In October 2018, Million
Hope Industries Limited was removed as a party to the
facility while remaining as one of the guarantors of
the facility. All liability under the guarantee has been
released upon the Spin-off and the Listing.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has no capital
commitment (31 March 2018: nil).
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

We believe that a team of skilled staff members with
appropriate knowledge and experience is crucial to the
Group's continuing success. The Group intends to use its
best efforts to attract and retain appropriate and suitable
personnel to serve the Group.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 249 full time
employees (of which 134 employees were in Mainland
China). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages, including discretionary bonus and depending
on the position, cash allowances, to its employees.
The Group also provides retirement schemes, medical
benefits, on-the-job training to its employees and
sponsors its employees to attend various external training
courses.

The Group determines the commencing salary of
its employees mainly based on each employee’s
qualifications, relevant experience, position and seniority.
The Group conducts an annual review on salary increase,
discretionary bonuses and promotions based on,
including but not limited to, the performance of each
employee, and the profitability of the Group.
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The directors of the Company recognise the importance
of good corporate governance practices for protection
of the interests of the shareholders and are keen on
maintaining high standards of corporate governance.
This is reflected in terms of a quality Board and the
emphasis on transparency and accountability.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March
2019, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the businesses of the Group. It
assumes responsibility for the formulation of the business
strategies and policies, the monitoring of the business
performance and the corporate governance functions.
Functions reserved to the Board include (i) approval
of annual and interim results and significant changes
in accounting policy; (ii) overseeing capital structure,
the risk management and internal control systems; (iii)
setting the Group’s remuneration policy and dividend
policy; (iv) appointment of directors; and (v) supervision
of management and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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The day-to-day operation management and
administration of the Company’s business are delegated
to the Joint Managing Directors and the senior
management, who fulfill their duties within their scope
of authority and responsibility. Major functions delegated
to management include (i) preparation of annual and
interim results; (ii) execution of business strategic plans
adopted by the Board; (iii) implementation of adequate
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv)
compliance with the relevant statutory requirements.

All directors are provided in a timely manner with
appropriate and adequate information on the Group’s
businesses to enable them to make an informed decision
and perform their duties and responsibilities. All directors
have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that the Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
director can have recourse to independent professional
advice in performing his duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities for the period from the
Listing Date to 31 March 2019.
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Board Composition

The Board composition demonstrates a diversity of skills,
knowledge and experience and knowledge desirable for
effective leadership of the Company and has a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) to
ensure independence in decision making. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead where
potential conflict of interests arise and serving on Board
committees, all non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

The biographical details of the directors are set out
in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section under the “Report of the
Directors” of this annual report.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March
2019, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors, representing
at least one-third of the Board. One of the independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yip Kai Yung,
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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During the period from the Listing Date to the date of
this annual report, the Board of the Company comprises
the following directors:

Non-executive Chairman
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Executive Directors
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (Joint Managing Director)
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung (Joint Managing Director)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki

Mr. Poon Kan Young

Mr. Yip Kai Yung

A list of the directors, their roles and functions and, in
particular whether they are independent non-executive
directors, is maintained on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange and is updated as and when
required. The independent non-executive directors are
also identified in all corporate communications to the
shareholders of the Company that disclose the names of
directors.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

RETEHEAFHRAMYBE AL TDEES
BEUATES:

FRITER
ERMELLE

FRITES
ITHBEE (FEE)
Bt TE

RITES
NRBTE (BFEFHLE)
FEWRE (BFEEFRHEE)

BIAFRTESF
Al EHR
BRIRTE

EERE REZACRBRE URLERS
ERBYFATESZENCFEREALT
KRB YRAERREHERH B
FRTESTEERARRARRKEESH
ANFBERARBMPHR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT R EiGiREE

All independent non-executive directors are free from
any business or other relationships with the Company.
The Company has received written annual confirmation
of independence from each independent non-executive
director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive directors
are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman of the Board)
indirectly owns as to 50% interest and Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart (Deputy Chairman of the Board) together
with Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai (spouse of Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart) indirectly own as to an aggregate of the
remaining 50% interest in Queentex Industries Limited
and its subsidiaries.

Save for the information as disclosed in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report
and the business relationship between the Chairman
and the Deputy Chairman as disclosed above, there is
no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the directors and between
the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman.

Board Diversity

A board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
was adopted on 22 February 2019 by the Board and the
Nomination Committee will review at least annually
whether board diversity can be achieved. A summary of
the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:
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With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition,
board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service,
which form the measureable objectives of the Board
Diversity Policy. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will also monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
review and recommend revisions of the Board Diversity
Policy (where appropriate) to the Board to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board
diversity as at 31 March 2019 and considered that the
Board is characterised by diversity in terms of cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
22 February 2019 to deal with matters in relation to the
appointment and re-election of directors. The criteria and
process in the nomination and appointment of directors
of the Company are set out in the Policy of Nomination
of Directors, which was adopted by the Board on 22
February 2019. A summary of the Policy of Nomination of
Directors is set out below.
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The Policy of Nomination of Directors
Purpose, scope and responsibilities:

The Policy of Nomination of Directors aims to set
out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company, to ensure that
all nominations of members of the Board are fair and
transparent in order to facilitate the constitution of the
Board with a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that is appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business and to ensure Board continuity
and appropriate leadership at Board level. The policy
applies to the directors and where applicable, members
of senior management and/or other persons proposed
for Board positions under the succession planning of the
Company. The Board has delegated its responsibilities
and authority for selection and appointment of directors
to the Nomination Committee. Without prejudice to the
authority and duties of the Nomination Committee as set
out in its terms of reference, the ultimate responsibility
for selection and appointment of directors of the
Company rests with the entire Board.

Selection criteria:

o In evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship, the following factors, which are not
exhaustive, should be considered:

a. character and integrity;

b. accomplishment, experience and reputation
in the business and industry in which the
Company and its subsidiaries operate;

¢. commitment in respect of sufficient time,
interest and attention to the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries;
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d. qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

e. the potential contributions the candidate can
bring to the Board;

f.  the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the
Company (as amended from time to time);

g. in case of a candidate for an independent
non-executive director of the Company, to
assess: (i) the independence of such candidate
with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-
executive directors as set out in Code Provision
A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and
in the “Guidance for Boards and Directors”
published by the Stock Exchange; and

h. any other relevant factors as may be
determined by the Nomination Committee or
the Board from time to time as appropriate.

o The appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board or re-appointment of any existing member(s)
of the Board shall be made in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.
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Nomination procedures:

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may
select candidates for directorship. The chairman of
the Nomination Committee will, upon his/her own
motion or receipt of a nomination from a Board
member (as the case may be), convene a meeting of
the Nomination Committee or circulate a resolution
in writing to the members of the Nomination
Committee to consider the same in accordance
with the Terms of Reference of the Nomination
Committee.

For the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall
undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such individual and make recommendations for the
Board'’s consideration and approval.

For the re-appointment of any existing member(s)
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration
and recommendation, for the proposed candidate(s)
to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

If a shareholder wants to propose a candidate
for prospective appointment to the Board to be
considered by the shareholders, he/she shall refer
to the “Procedures for Shareholder’s Nomination
of a Director”, which is available on the Company’s
website.

The nominated candidate will be asked to provide
the necessary personal information together with
his/her written consent to be appointed as a director
and to the public disclosure of his/her personal data
on any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to his/her appointment.
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Chairman and Joint Managing Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson acts as the Chairman while
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun and Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung act as the
Joint Managing Directors. The roles of Chairman and
Joint Managing Directors are separated. The Board has
adopted a set of written terms setting out the roles and
duties of the Chairman and the Joint Managing Directors.

The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
development of the Group. The Chairman should
ensure that the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
With the support of the Joint Managing Directors and
senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, accurate,
clear, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.

The Joint Managing Directors focus on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board. They are in charge of the Company's day-to-
day operations and management. The Joint Managing
Directors are also responsible for formulating the
organizational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments
and changes in order to effectively perform their
responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed director is provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and businesses as well as his responsibilities under
the Listing Rules and relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Directors are encouraged to participate
in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The company secretary from time to time provides
the directors with updates on latest development and
changes to the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements.

Prior to the Listing, all directors have been given the
training regarding directors’ duties, responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the guideline for securities transactions by directors and
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company.
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Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code during the period from the Listing
Date to 31 March 2019. No incident of non-compliance
of the Model Code by the employees was noted by the
Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary, namely Mr. Kwok Wing Fai, is the
senior accounting manager of the Group. He has the day-
to-day knowledge of the affairs of the Company.

The company secretary reports to the Chairman of the
Board and plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that the Board policies and procedures are
duly followed. He is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully appraised of the relevant corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and
facilitating the induction and professional development
of the directors. All directors could have access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

The company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2019.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES
Board Proceedings

The Board held one regular meeting during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019 and the principal
businesses transacted include:

o Approving the forecast and budget of the Group;

o Adoption the dividend policy of the Company (the
“Dividend Policy”); and

o Adopting the bonus scheme of the Group.

The Company expects to hold at least four regular Board
meetings per year and notices of such regular Board
meetings will be given to all the directors at least 14 days
before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice will be given. The date
of each meeting is decided in advance to enable the
directors to attend the meeting in person.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all the directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

According to current Board practice, any transaction with
a material amount will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company'’s articles of association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have a material
interest.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established
on 22 February 2019. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors and Mr. Yip
Kai Yung is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None
of the members of the Audit Committee is a partner or
former partner (within two years immediately prior to
the date of his appointment as a member of the Audit
Committee) of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s
existing external auditor. Members of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

Mr. Yip Kai Yung (Chairman of the committee)*
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki*
Mr. Poon Kan Young*

# Independent Non-executive Director

The major duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

o Reviewing the financial statements and reports and
considering any significant or unusual items raised
by the qualified accountant or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor, approving their remuneration
and terms of engagement and reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity;

o Reviewing and reporting to the Board on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and associated procedures, with the
assistance of the Risk Management Committee and
the outsourced internal audit function;
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o Reviewing the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices; and

o Reporting to the Board on the matters in the CG
Code.

No Audit Committee meeting was held during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019. Two Audit
Committee meetings were held subsequently after the
year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
report and the major works performed are as follows:

o Reviewing and recommending for the Board's
approval the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2019;

o Reviewing and recommending to the Board for the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Group;

o Recommending to the Board for the
re-appointment of external auditor; and

o Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
evaluating, establishing and maintaining effective
risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 22 February 2019. Members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki
(Chairman of the committee)*

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart*

Mr. Tai Sai Ho*

Mr. Poon Kan Young*

Mr. Yip Kai Yung*

* Non-executive Director
* Independent Non-executive Director
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The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

o Implementing and reviewing the Policy of
Nomination of Directors, including the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the committee to select and recommend candidates
for directorship;

° Reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

o Identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship, in
accordance with the Policy for Nomination of
Directors;

o Assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company;

o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the Chairman and the
Managing Director; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and disclosing
the Board Diversity Policy or summary of such policy
(including any measurable objectives that have been
set for implementing the policy and the progress
on achieving those objectives) in the corporate
governance report in each annual report of the
Company.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019 and the
major works performed are as follows:

° Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

e  Assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

o Reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the re-appointment of directors who are
subject to retirement from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board Diversity Policy and the Policy of Nomination
of Directors are summarised in the “Board Diversity” and
“Appointment and Re-election of Directors” sections
above respectively. During the period from the Listing
Date to 31 March 2019, there was no selection and
recommendation of candidate for directorship by the
Nomination Committee or the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee
on 22 February 2019. Members of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

Mr. Poon Kan Young (Chairman of the committee)*
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart*

Mr. Tai Sai Ho*

Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki#

Mr. Yip Kai Yung*

* Non-executive Director
# Independent Non-executive Director
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The major duties of the Remuneration Committee
include the following:

o Formulating remuneration policy and practices and
determining the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management; and

o Ensuring that no director or any of his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as key
economic indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and
staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019 and
the major works performed are as follows:

o Reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the adoption of the bonus scheme of the
Group; and

o Reviewing and determining the change of
remuneration packages for the executive directors,
senior management and other employees of the
Group for the year commencing 1 April 2019.
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Other Board Committees

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT R EiGiREE

HttEEEAE

Remuneration Committee, the Board also established the =

following Board committee:

Name of Committee

EREEW

Composition of Committee

ZREZHEMX

ESERTHETELZES REZESNH
EI=

EREBEMN FTRILTUTESES

Role and Function of Committee

ZREZABRMAE

Investment Committee

REZES

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
(Chairman)

FHEEE (£E)

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

HEREE

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun

MR EE

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung

TEERE

To handle the Group’s
investment decisions

REAEENRERE
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Attendance Record of Directors and Committee EFEREEATREHERL®
Members

The attendance record of each director at annual general ~ BEZBHFER LT HHZE2019F3A831H HE
meeting, Board and committee meetings held during the  BTHRRBFAE ESSREZESSEN
period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019 is set out ~ RC&EEEFIAT :

below:

Annual Audit Nomination Remuneration Investment
General Board Committee  Committee  Committee ~ Committee
Meeting' Meeting" Meeting" "V Meeting" Meeting”  Meeting" V"
ERERE REZRT FHERe KREZRE
Name of Director EEfE BREEXE EFGER' @@ -1 & 1| i |

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, BB LA N/A 17 /AL N/AL /AL /AL
Payson* (Chairman) (Zf) TERA TEmAL T e @R @R

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, FERE N/A 111 N/AL A 11 N/A
Stewart* (Deputy (EI%fE) TEA TER? TER
Chairman)

Mr. Tai Sai Ho* EEd N/A 1”n N/AL 11 n N/A

TER THEmA TER

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun MR EE N/A 11 N/AS N/A® N/AL N/A
(Joint Managing (BEEZE TEH TERL TERL @A TEA
Director) HAETE )

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung TEERE N/A 1 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Joint Managing (BEEE TEH TERL TERL @A TEA
Director) HAETE)

Professor Ho Richard {7 &R N/A 17 N/A 11 11 N/A
Yan Kit ~EA TER TEMAL

Mr. Poon Kan Young*  ERIBE4E N/A 17 N/A 11 11 N/AL

TER TERA TERL

Mr. Yip Kai Yung? AR KA N/A 11 N/A 11 171 N/A

TER THERA THERL
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Notes:

s No annual general meeting was held during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019.

Il One regular Board meeting was held during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019.

lll.  No Audit Committee and Investment Committee meeting
was held during the period from the Listing Date to 31
March 2019.

IV.  Mr. Yip Kai Yung is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

V. Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

VI.  Mr. Poon Kan Young is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

VIl. Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart is the Chairman of the
Investment Committee.

i Non-executive Director
# Independent Non-executive Director
g The director was not a member of the relevant committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group on an ongoing basis and reviewing effectiveness
of the systems at least annually. The Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are designed
to help achieving the Group’s business objectives by
providing reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and they are designed to
manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
system failure.
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The Company adopted a risk management policy and
formed the Risk Management Committee chaired by the
Joint Managing Directors and with members comprising
the various senior staff members. Systems and procedures
are put in place to identify, evaluate, manage and
monitor the risks of different businesses and activities.
Regular monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems is mainly performed by each departments
who are required to conduct risk self-assessment and to
submit risk assessment results and action plans to the Risk
Management Committee. The Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee monitor and assess the risk
management systems and the risk management issues.
During the Listing process and the year ended 31 March
2019, an external consultant has been engaged to assess
the internal controls of the Group and to identify internal
control weaknesses. The Company has not yet set up
the internal audit function as the Company considers it
to be more cost effective to engage external consultant
to perform such internal audit function. In the future,
the Company intends to outsource its internal audit
function. Review on the risk management and internal
control systems has to be performed at least annually to
assess the effectiveness of the systems in monitoring and
managing risks.

The directors review monthly management reports on
the financial results. Monthly management meetings
are held to review progress of projects and business
performance against budgets and forecasts. Any major
variances are highlighted for investigation and control
purposes.

The Group regulates the handling and the dissemination
of inside information to the public in an equal and
timely manner in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Joint Managing Directors and senior
management are delegated with responsibilities to
control and monitor the proper procedures on the
disclosure of inside information.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee and
the Risk Management Committee, has conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls. Such review, in particular,
included the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions. The Board also engaged external
consultant to assist the Company in performing risk
assessment and to conduct a review on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control systems during the year.
No significant risk issues were identified and appropriate
measures have been taken to address the identified
areas for improvement. The Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
effective and adequate.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been applied, and reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.
The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section of
this annual report.

EEEAFEREEENEREEZEENX
BETHASERBREERADEZRENE
MUETFEEN SRABEAREERSA

BEME CENGREZ -BRR BEE
FRERERNARRE BEITERKER 15
JREUARAEEET  ABEZRPBRS
BENRE -RERN ESSTEZEINERD
BB AN BT R ET L REARBEREE
BERAGNAREETERN SEMREXRER
BE MU BRTBCE 2T RERNTES
EREE -EFERR AEEZAREER
NEEREBERRRE -

HESHMEBERRZRE

ESERERANRAUBHRR -ERUGESY
BHRET EEECHRATBMHHREEL
EREE S BR  LFEHSENFENH
B ] (5t o SMNERBETN A D AG S WH|RE
ZHREBEIINAAF R8BI RS
—HiA e

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K

45



46

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT R ¥ EiGiREE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy on 19 March
2019. According to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall,
in recommending or declaring dividends, maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting the Group’s working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value.

The declaration of dividend(s) and/or the amount of
dividends (if any) that may be declared and distributed
to the shareholders is subject to the discretion of the
Board, the constitutional documents of the Company and
all applicable laws and regulations and the Board would
take into account the following factors of the Group: (i)
results of operations and earnings; (ii) general financial
conditions; (iii) cash flow situation; (iv) availability
of distributable profits; (v) business conditions and
strategies; (vi) future operations and earnings; (vii) cash
requirements; (viii) expected capital requirements and
expenditure plans; (ix) interests of the shareholders as a
whole; (x) any restrictions on declaration and/or payment
of dividends; and (xi) any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a
financial year or period as: (i) interim dividend; (ii) final
dividend; (iii) special dividend; and (iv) any distribution
of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate.
Any final dividend for a financial year shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited
and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the
constitutional documents of the Company and applicable
laws and regulations. The Board will review the Dividend
Policy as appropriate from time to time.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the

% B 6 %7 B
HE2019F3A31H L FE » A QB X/ EE

Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out  #ZEET 2 EHMEIMT :
below:
HK$'000
FET
Audit Services EZRTE 1,530
Non-audit Services: IEFXRTE
Listing related services £ AR RS 3,710
Total @ 5,240
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR BEREFIRREERE

RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company serve as a
communication platform where the Board can maintain
a face-to-face dialogue with the shareholders and
investors. Separate resolutions will be proposed at the
general meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors. The Chairman of the
Board as well as the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
or in their absence, other members of the Board or the
respective Board committees, will attend the annual
general meeting of the Company and be available to
answer questions from the shareholders and investors.
The external auditor of the Company will also be invited
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, notice of the
general meetings together with the shareholders circular
and other documents will be sent to the shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the annual general
meeting and at least 10 clear business days before the
extraordinary general meetings. Voting at annual general
meeting or other general meetings will be conducted by
way of a poll. The results of the poll will be published on
the day of shareholders’ meeting by posting on both the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

General meetings shall be convened:

(i) on the written requisition of any two or more
members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong (Office A,
20th Floor, Kings Wing Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong)
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office (Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company; or

(i) on the written requisition of any one member
of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong (Office A,
20th Floor, Kings Wing Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong)
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office (Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
the meeting may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Nomination of Director

If a shareholder (the “Proposer”) wishes to nominate
a person (the “Candidate”) to stand for election as
a director at a general meeting of the Company, the
following documents shall be delivered to the company
secretary of the Company to the Company’s principal
office in Hong Kong (Office A, 20th Floor, Kings Wing
Plaza 1, 3 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong):

(i) a written notice signed by the Proposer, who
must be duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting, of his/her intention to propose the
Candidate for election as a director;

(ii) a written notice signed by the Candidate of his/her
willingness to be elected as a director; and

(iii) biographical details of the Candidate as required
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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According to the Company’s articles of association,
the period for lodgment of the required documents
mentioned above will be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Upon receipt of the written notices from the Proposer
to propose the Candidate for election as a director
at the general meeting, the Company will publish an
announcement in accordance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules or issue a supplementary circular.
The particulars of the Candidate will be included in
the announcement or supplementary circular of the
Company.

The Proposer must attend the relevant general meeting
in person to propose the Candidate (who may or may
not attend the meeting himself or herself). In the event
of the Candidate being appointed, his appointment will
remain subject to the Stock Exchange being satisfied as to
his suitability to act in the role.

Constitutional Documents

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March
2019, no amendment was made to the constitutional
documents of the Company. A copy of the latest
version is available on the websites of the Company
(www.millionhope.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).
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Shareholders’ and Other Stakeholders’ Enquiries

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders. Shareholders and other
stakeholders may address their enquiries and concerns to
the company secretary through the following channels:

Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited
Attention: Company Secretary

Office A, 20th Floor., Kings Wing Plaza 1
3 On Kwan Street

Shek Mun

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

By mail:

By email: office@millionhope.com.hk

By telephone: (852) 2693 0276

By fax: (852) 2602 5840

In addition, if shareholders have any enquiries about
their shareholdings and entitlement to dividend, they
can contact the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company using the details below:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8628

Fax: (852) 2865 0990

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.millionhope.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information and other information are posted.
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RIF-HEBRERBHSEE

JOINT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S
MESSAGE

On behalf of the Group, | am delighted to share our first
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG"”) Report
with our stakeholders. In an increasingly interconnected
world, businesses and societies can no longer act within
a bubble of self-interest, separate from each other
and the environment around us. One group’s actions
will undoubtedly have influences over the others. As
a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to
building and growing our Group in a sustainable manner,
so as to positively impact our surrounding communities
and the environment.

Our business units have various sustainable development
principles integrated within their policies and
operational procedures. We endeavour to foster a sense
of environmental stewardship within the Group and
strive to improve our sustainability performance and
resource efficiency. Working diligently to minimise our
environmental footprint, we have incorporated the use
of renewable energy into our operations such as rooftop
PV panel systems and electric-powered shuttle buses.

We continue to cultivate our talented employees by
implementing training programmes to provide them with
applicable skills and knowledge to succeed. Meanwhile,
the Group takes great care to meet the needs of our
staff, including their well-being through workplace
benefits and oversight of occupational health and safety.
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In line with our vision of social responsibility, we look
to support the communities where we operate by
organising volunteer events and activities. This year,
our wonderful Hong Kong colleagues participated in a
coastal clean-up event to help keep these areas clean for
everyone to enjoy.

As we embark on this sustainability journey, we are well
aware of our stakeholder’s expectations and certainly
take this responsibility to heart. The Group will continue
to operate and develop through sustainable principles as
we pursue our goals for the future.

Chuk Kin Lun
Joint Managing Director

ABOUT THIS REPORT
About Million Hope

Established in 1990, we work closely with architects
and clients to offer innovative solutions and provide a
comprehensive range of aluminium products that best
fit the needs of our clients. With nearly 20 years of
experience in the design, manufacturing and installation
of aluminium fixtures, we continue to cultivate our
reputation from Hong Kong to Mainland China and
beyond. In collaboration with our partners, we have
developed an extensive knowledge base related to the
design and fabrication of quality aluminium fixtures. We
are committed to serving our clients with passion, and
continue to offer innovative solutions that are effective
and efficient.
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Our Vision

235 l:0) b

We are responsive to the needs of our clients, committed to offering
innovative solutions and quality service to stay ahead in the industry
EREFER BOIRBEHAFNERTERBERY RIFTHEALM

fz

ij :

Our Missions
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To manufacture and construct the finest curtain wall and windows in
Greater China

BRENEERTERRFNBRRES

Provide customers with system design, manufacturing, supply,
problem solving and advice services

REFRMHALGRE  RE - HE BERRREARSE

@ ;
Our Core Values

EfmxoRER

Innovative Solution — We keep up-to-date with the most innovative
manufacturing equipment and techniques

AIFNBEAT R -RMATEHEERARMENRERBEREM

Excellence Service — We maintain high standards of workmanship,
quality control and strong commitment to customer service

SHNRE -EMARSSEENTIZ EERFRHEFRENBEAR

Care — We take fully responsibility to our staff, clients and the
community
BE-HKMYET FEFREEBERES

Mutual Respect — We work together in a collaborative environment
based on trust, joint commitment and respect

MEBE-HRMEMEEEE HEAERREEENHEIEHSHE
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Reporting Scope and Standard

This ESG report has been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide, Appendix
27 (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) to the Listing Rules
issued by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(“HKEX"). This ESG report provides an overview of Million
Hope's ESG-related policies and management approach
to its sustainability issues, initiatives, and performance
for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (the
“reporting year").

This ESG report covers the Group’s major operations in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The operation divisions
are listed below:

Location
Hong Kong
Huizhou, Mainland China

Business Units
Corporate Head Office
Fabrication Plant

To aid readers in navigating the report content, a HKEx
ESG Reporting Guide content index is available on
pages 75 to 80. We also welcome your feedback, if you
have any suggestions or comments please send them to
office@millionhope.com.hk.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

In preparation for this ESG report, an independent
consultant was commissioned to develop and implement
an internal stakeholder engagement exercise. This
year, we invited our employees to respond to an online
survey, to gather their thoughts and understand their
opinions and expectations on our ESG-related initiatives,
performance and future strategies.
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A structured, three-stage materiality assessment was BV ERET TEBLH 2 A=ERENE
undertaken by the independent consultant to determine KL UWEEERARE s HERERBR
material ESG issues for disclosure in this ESG report. ERRENERRE - HEREREE-

Step 1: Identification
F—% @

e A peer benchmarking exercise was conducted to review the ESG disclosure of industry
peers and determine the current disclosure level of the industry.

ETEEEEFNMG  REREHRE HEREABENKERRL  LRETENRBFREK

3 o

o Internal stakeholders were also invited to complete an online survey to rank the
importance of ESG topics to themselves and to the Group, respectively.
RBHFHEIEZATHARALALS RRIERE HLERERAZEDIHREEREAEEN
BEERERTIR

4

Step 2: Prioritisation

BT BMERER

o Results from the peer benchmarking exercise were consolidated to develop a prioritised
list of potential material ESG issues for further validation.
EHEEEFENERTFURS O SIEBENEARE HEREAZEBLEFE  LUET
HE—-DER-

v

Step 3: Validation of Material Issues

BT WRBEXEE

e  The Group’s senior management convened a meeting with the independent consultant
to confirm a finalised list of material Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs") for disclosure.
FEESHREEBHBEVERAHER BREABRENES (RRBEXER]) NELE
B DUHE-
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NURTURING OUR PEOPLE

The Group recognises employees as the cornerstone
of our business. We work meticulously to enhance
staff well-being and professional development, and
to build an inclusive, harmonious and respectful work
environment that enables all employees to unleash their
full potential.

A Positive Workplace

As part of our corporate commitments, we cherish
and treat every employee with respect and dignity
in an environment free from discrimination and
harassment. We are fully committed to promoting equal
opportunities for all staff, regardless of race, gender,
disability or family status. Our emphasis on fairness
and equality is also reflected in our well-defined Staff
Handbook which specifies our recruitment and career
advancement procedures shall only take individual
merits, experience and qualifications into account.

We believe maintaining a strong and competent
workforce fuels our business growth. As such, we
reward our employees with competitive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits, including maternity and
paternity leave, discretionary bonus and medical health
insurance coverage which also extends to their families.
To attract and retain the right personnel, we review and
enhance our staff benefits and policies on a regular basis.
Additionally, we organised various staff engagement
activities such as Annual Dinner, birthday parties and
interest classes to further boost staff morale and promote
work-life balance.
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To ensure compliance with all applicable legal and
regulatory requirements’, new recruits are required to
attend orientation and briefings regarding employment
practices to deepen their understanding of acceptable
conduct and company expectations. During the reporting
year, there were no non-compliance cases relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare.

Training and Development

Employees are the greatest asset contributing to the
success and longevity of the Group. To build upon
this strength, we continuously invest in training and
development for all our staff. Staff members are
appraised on an annual basis to assess their performance
and identify relevant on-the-job training to facilitate
their growth and development. This year, to further
enhance employees’ skills and knowledge we arranged
different training sessions on a range of topics, covering
facade engineering, occupational health and safety,
environmental practices and maintenance works.
Moreover, all full-time employees are also eligible
for training allowances for the enrolment of external
courses.

ARRNESMBEREEREERE #H8
THASMERERT RN ABEIRER
T UMRAREH TERZITARABBRENT
BoMBmEFE BECMERERER B
BREA TFERY KEKE FERE -2
Tt s RIRR R Ht R 5 KB EREHNER
iR

1% Al R 5% R

BETINRERAEERNRRETRIKESE

E-REEUEDS EMATEHAZEEIRK
BIRERER - RMAYTIEASETFERN
i SRR S RV R IR I HE E AR RA Y IE B 51 -

DRERENRREBER -FR - BE—FIR
FEINRERAR RAZHT —RIEE
NZEZIRE  BEREFREIRE BXERER
22 RREBREEIR M FIEZEE
TR EREGEMINERZRFINER -

] Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57); the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). For more details, please refer to the Regulatory Overview section in the Listing By Way Of

Introduction on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
BEBARR WEREEAGD) (F57F)  (PEARKFE (PR ZE8E) - ELZFHE F2RAUNBAIRNEBT

EMETHEEHE | —8

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf
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A visit to the facade factory in Shenzhen

In December 2018, our project team from Huizhou
Factory visited Hailong Construction Technology
Company Limited for knowledge exchange in the
areas of technology processing and production. The
facade factory introduced our team to an innovative
construction method — Modular Integrated Construction.
In this method, free-standing integrated modules
(completed with finishes, fixtures and fittings) are
manufactured and assembled in a prefabrication factory.
Through transferring on-site construction processes
to a controlled factory environment, the building is
substantially completed off-site. This helps to enhance
the working environment and site safety, and minimise
the generation of on-site industrial waste, while
shortening the construction period by about 30% on

average.

E2HFRINFE T
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Occupational Health and Safety

We are determined to proactively ensure the health and
safety of our employees and subcontractors beyond the
requirements of minimum safety compliance. Relevant
mechanisms, including occupational health and safety
("OHS")-related measures, in-house requirements and
safety committees, are in place to provide our employees
and subcontractors with a safe and healthy working
environment.

To ensure potential occupational hazards are sufficiently
mitigated, we review our group-level OHS policy on
an annual basis. A Site Safety Management Committee
has been established to monitor the implementation
of a safety plan, recommend safety measures based on
accident statistics and trends, and coordinate safety
measures with subcontractors working on site. Striving
to minimise health and safety risks throughout our
operations, we implement different preventive measures.
For instance, we require workers of our contractors or
subcontractors to complete mandatory safety training
courses and to hold valid certifications such as the “Green
Card” for construction work whilst working on our
project sites. In addition, we provide new recruits with an
OHS induction covering the use of protective equipment,
emergency procedures and first-aid facilities, and
reporting of accidents. OHS posters, hazard and warning
signs and rescue procedures are displayed in noticeable
areas at construction sites.

Construction management procedures are also in place
for our projects in Mainland China. The safety officer
conducts regular safety inspections with track records,
and ensure any identified defects are rectified in a
timely manner. As a prerequisite criteria for contractor
partnerships, our subcontractors are required to fully
comply with our OHS policy and safety plan.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019
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During the reporting year, we strictly complied with
the relevant laws and regulations? in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, there were no confirmed cases of non-
compliance relating to OHS.

Labour Standards

The Group embraces fair employment practices and
respects the rights of every employee. All operations
within the Group are in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations® related to labour practices and
prohibit the employment of child and forced labour.
In relation to our operations in Mainland China, we
require all job applicants to provide proof of age prior
to confirmation of employment. Our Human Resources
Department will examine all identification documents
of applicants to prevent any employment of underage
workers. Additionally, we prevent any actions that inhibit
employees’ freedom such as the retention of identity
cards and passports, impounding wages and forced
overtime.

RBEFE  HABBBETREBRPE A
AR R EROER?  BMERIY RBXRER
RZZMNEREMH-

SIRE

REEMEAAFHRERES BEEEUES
BRI - AEBAM I A XBIINSEL TE
PIRBEMERERRER YR ILERET
RigHlE T - SR MEPENBAEEMS
BZRAAARBE N ER M E R RE TR E
B EZPINANERBFIBERBANFAE
SR L L BAEMARKFET
Loh - ZMEREEAGBRESEHNTS
WMNE S HFERER MM TERRBEMIE -

2 Including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509); the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 59); Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases. For more
details, please refer to the Regulatory Overview section in the Listing By Way Of Introduction on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange.

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
BEERRAN BERERBREG) (F509F) ; (EREGD) (F59%8) ; (RBIBXRERRE) - EZFH1E  F2H

UNBARAERIAER LT EEME | —H-

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf

2 Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57); the Labour Law of the PRC; the Provisions on
Prohibition of Child Labour of the PRC. For more details, please refer to the Regulatory Overview section in the
Listing By Way Of Introduction on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
BEERRR (EEEG) ($£57F)  (FEZEE)  (HEZLEAETIRE) - ESHE 2R UNBH N EH

RFIFERETHEERE | -

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf
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Anti-Corruption

We are committed to upholding the highest ethical
standards and accountability throughout our operations.
We adopt a zero-tolerance approach to any forms of
corruption or bribery. All employees are obligated to
follow our Staff Code of Conduct which details our
stringent expectations for professional behaviour and
compliance with relevant applicable legislation®. To raise
staff awareness of potential corrupt behaviour and other
forms of malpractices, we arrange a training session
with the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(“ICAC") for new recruits during their orientation.

Our whistle-blowing mechanism is in place to allow
employees at all levels to raise concerns regarding
improper behaviours to the Human Resources Manager
or Supervisor. To ensure whistle-blowers the freedom to
report grievances without fear of reprisal, all cases are
treated confidentially.

During the reporting year, there were no confirmed
cases of non-compliance with the local or national anti-
corruption regulation.

FFIL &5

EMAHELEBRPRERSEREER
BES - RAHEARLANBSHHBERDZT
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4 Including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201). For more details, please refer to the
Regulatory Overview section in the Listing By Way Of Introduction on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
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http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf
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CHERISHING THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group is mindful of the environmental impacts that
may arise from its operations. We aim to enhance energy
efficiency, reduce emissions, conserve resources, manage
waste and promote environmental awareness to optimise
the benefits of environmental protection throughout
our business operations. Recognising the importance of
environmental protection, the Group implements an in-
house environmental management policy and I1SO 14001
Environmental Management System in respect of its
business operations to ensure compliance of relevant
environmental laws and regulations®. In addition, our
fabrication plant in Huizhou is accredited with the ISO
14001 environmental management system which allows
us to effectively identify and mitigate the environmental
issues associated with our operations through a
continuous improvement cycle.

Energy Consumption and Emissions

As a company concerned about the future and well-being
of our environment, we consciously work to minimise
energy consumption and emissions arising from our
business operations. Our fabrication plant monitors and
records its monthly water, energy and paper consumption
to support and provide insight for the establishment
of our annual environmental training programmes in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations such as
the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC. To integrate
our approaches to renewable technologies and energy
optimisation, we installed a photovoltaic (“PV") panel
system on the roof of our dormitory building and LED
lighting fixtures at our warehouse, office, dormitory
building and workshop in Huizhou as well as office in
Hong Kong.

ERiBR

AEBUHHEENREEANRBETYEELAE
B-BPEERBERRZE -BRAOEH -HY
ER EEEEYREERRER UEMLRK
PMEEXEEEFRERR c NEBIRPR
BRENEEN EXKELETEHERADER
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RIBTHEBIREEEER o 1t RAEE
A SLE RS T1SO 1400185 E I EE A 32
® EERMEABBISEICEBRENE
MO EE R M EHENIREEE

RE IR H FE B BE R

BA-REIRRRBRERBUNQE  KME
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PSSR ERI R EE B K - BER R A
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%) EMBERERRINFEREEIIER
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% Including but not limited to: Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311); Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400);
Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354); the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC; the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution; the Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment; the Energy
Conservation Law of the PRC. For more details, please refer to the Regulatory Overview section in the Listing By
Way Of Introduction on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227828.pdf
BREEBRBRR  (ERFREFERG) (E3NME) ; (BRFEFRG) (58400F) ; (EVEEMRGI) (5354F) ; (P E
RIBREE)  (PEUKFRIFARE)  (PEREFENER)  (REENERE) cEZHE F2RUNABEAE

GXPTEREMHEEME | -

http://www3.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0227/LTN20190227829_C.pdf
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PV Panel System in Huizhou Fabrication Plant

Furthermore, our fabrication plant advocates the use of
sustainable transportation to reduce roadside emissions,
reduce dependence on fossil fuels and improve air quality
by replacing a conventional shuttle bus with an electric-
powered shuttle bus in April 2018.

At our Hong Kong operations, we have strict control
on air pollutants and noxious emissions arising from
our installation works to ensure compliance with Air
Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311). To promote
internal environmental awareness and achieve an
overall reduction of our carbon footprint, office staff
are encouraged to switch off any unused computers,
air-conditioning units and lights. Video conferencing,
tele-conferencing and email are the preferred means
of communication with Huizhou colleagues to minimise
travel emissions.
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V¥ PV Panel System in Huizhou Fabrication Plant
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P> Photo of the electric shuttle bus
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GHG INTENSITY®
BERREE
1.66

Tonnes of CO2e/Revenue

M_SnEE Wa

Waste Management

Our daily operational practices and procedures are
conducted with efforts to reduce hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes, and ensure that our effluent discharge
meets regulatory standards. To manage environmental
risks, the Group strictly complies with all relevant laws
and regulations related to the handling of any hazardous
wastes generated. Our fabrication plant’s Waste
Management Guidelines prescribes our “minimise, reuse,
recycle” principles as well as implementation guidance
on waste collection, segregation, storage and disposal.
Hazardous chemical wastes are segregated and stored
in designated areas with proper protective measures.
Licensed contractors are commissioned for proper
disposal of hazardous waste. A waste water treatment
system is in place to recycle water from car washing at
the fabrication plant. In our Hong Kong office, advanced
multi-functions printers are installed to minimise the use
of paper.

During the year, there were no significant non-
compliance cases relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

*1

ENERGY INTENSITY?
BEREE
3.62
‘000 kWh/Revenue
FTETRE Wi
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4 Equals to total greenhouse gas (“GHG"”) emissions generated by fuel consumption in fleet and electricity
consumption divided by revenue in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
HERERRAEREREEEENRZERE (RERE D HREERUSERPE ALK

Z Equals to total energy consumption divided by revenue in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Building a Sustainability Culture WEFISEZTRXL

We believe fostering behavioural change within the  EfiEE EAEERNZERTFHNTHAHRETD
Group is key to driving sustainable growth. Green HEUFEXRNBRE - KATSHEBEFE
activities such as coastal clean-up are organised to ERERREE E—SRSEBEINRET
further promote environmental stewardship among our  EEH - BIEBBRF L REEE B iFE %
employees in Hong Kong. To nurture an environmentally B IT/ESA RPAKEERNEREEEEE
friendly culture and promote a more sustainable A& {tE BESEMARER KMHEEH
workplace, we have designated the fabrication plant’s MIME TRUERBAEBENEIURS=E
surrounding area as a greening area with various types  EEEY)EIEREFISO 140015 K FH R -

of trees and foliage. Environmental-related training and

news sharing such as waste management and compliance

with ISO 14001 are also provided to factory staff

regularly.

Greening Area Surrounding the Fabrication Plant REFAENKRLE

Greening Area Surrounding the
Fabrication Plant
HEREFENRE
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MANAGING OUR VALUE CHAIN
Supply Chain Management

Cooperating with more than 270 suppliers and
subcontractors, the Group emphasises the incorporation
of sustainability practice across our value chain. By taking
up a proactive role in managing the supply chain risks,
we express a strong dedication to improving in our
sustainability performance with careful decision making
and supplier evaluations.

Our fabrication plant has established Supplier and
Contractor Environmental Management Guidelines which
specifies environmental management requirements for
suppliers as well as periodic evaluation mechanisms.
Suppliers and subcontractors are assessed based on a
number of criteria, including but not limited to tender
price, technical capability, relevant work credentials, and
environmental performance. In order to maintain quality
and sustainable services, our list of approved suppliers is
reviewed and evaluated regularly and factory visits are
carried out on an annual basis. Our supplier assessments
are conducted with considerations to their sustainability
performance including their environmental management
systems and degree of environmental consciousness
of their products. Suppliers who underperform or
violate relevant environmental regulations are required
to provide detailed justifications and undertake
performance evaluations for improvement.
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Fabrication Plant:

100%
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Material Procurement from Our
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from Guangdong Province
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Responsible Services

The provision of efficient, professional and quality
services is important to our continual success. As a
responsible service provider, we have developed policies
that guide our approach on different issues such as
quality assurance and protection of customer data
and privacy. During the reporting year, there were no
reported cases of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations.

The Group is dedicated to safeguarding consumer data
and privacy as we understand that our customers place
a great deal of trust in us to handle and protect their
personal data and privacy. Our employees are required
to adhere to our Employee Handbook to ensure all
customer data is treated as confidential and handled in
a safe and secure manner. A Non-disclosure Agreement
is also required in the tender documents to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations®. To
further strengthen our data security, we require our
suppliers to follow our data protection measures; any
unsuccessful tender documents will be destroyed within 6
months after submission.

To demonstrate our commitment to quality standards,
we have adopted the international standard ISO
9001:2015 Quality Management Systems. Our Quality and
Environmental Management System Handbook sets out
the policy objectives, implementation procedures and
communication channels necessary to fulfil the quality
control standards. Additionally, our Quality Inspection
Handbook stipulates specific procedures for our staff to
follow and ensure our quality assurance procedures are in
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. To further
enhance our quality assurance process, quality control
staff are assigned to our glass suppliers during the
fabrication process to inspect the quality of raw material
to be delivered to the Group.

AREMRY
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g Including but not limited to: Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486), the Product Quality Law of the PRC.

BREETRR: (EAER (AR FRA) (55486F) - (FEE
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CARING FOR COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to serving the environment and
those in need, especially disadvantaged or at-risk groups.
During the reporting year, we initiated various charitable
activities in Hong Kong and Mainland China with our
enthusiastic colleagues to create positive impacts in our
shared community.

Community Contribution

As an environmentally responsible company, we
actively participate in green events to demonstrate
our commitment to the environment and raise the
environmental awareness of our employees. We
organised a coastal cleaning event for our employees
in Hong Kong on 16 February 2019 to boost staff
environmental consciousness. 21 volunteers including
employees and their friends and families participated in
the event and took action to remove trash and debris
from beaches and waterways. This event allowed our
volunteers to support environmental protection and
appreciate Hong Kong's natural beauty.

Coastal Cleaning Event in Hong Kong

To promote social inclusion and care for the
disadvantaged groups, we purchased social security
insurance to support individuals with disabilities and
made donations underprivilege groups in our society.
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Coastal Cleaning Event in Hong Kong
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY KEHER/E
HKEx KPI Million Hope
EEXSRARFENER B ¥
Environmental
iR
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data’

B E A R A R B B
- NOx Tonnes 0.13
—afy I
- SOx Tonnes 0.0004
~ AL g
- PM Tonnes 0.006
—BENT 7]
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

BERBEEIINEREE
Direct emissions Tonnes of COze 771
(Scope 1) WS tRES
BiEgm (g8E1)
Energy indirect Tonnes of COze 337.6
emissions (Scope 2) WS tREE
BeR B EHEK
(#E2)
- Total Tonnes of COze 414.7
—#8 WS tRES
— Intensity Tonnes of COze/FTE 1.7
~BE W= AL

2WETHE

Al4 Total non-hazardous waste reduced and intensity™

FrEEREEEDHEEREE"™
— Total Tonnes of COze 79.4
—E W —FtRES
— Intensity Tonnes of CO2e/FTE 0.3
~BE W R

2WETYE

2 NOxand PM are confirmed to our operations in Mainland China.

AEEY R TR T PR R F AP A Bl A it Y 275 o
10 This data is confirmed to our operations in Mainland China.

Z 5 PR R EAPT R R B R O S o
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HKEx KPI Million Hope

FEXHMMBANER

A2.1

Energy consumption by type

X7

BENBSMEEFEE
Total direct energy ‘000 kWh 261.3
consumption F1E8F R
HERRRRER ‘000 kWh/FTE 1.1
‘_t;t;' FETES,
s THETIHE
- intensity
—-RE
Total indirect ‘000 kWh 643.6
energy consumption T1EF FL i
(Fl’“rtd_""‘_ie;’ "000 KWh/FTE 2.6
eectricty FRTFRE
Bz RERS = -
2BETHEE
(BBE)
- total
—2
— intensity
—-RE
Diesel oil ‘000 kWh 177.8
455 FEF e
- t;t;' '000 KWh/FTE 0.7
- TETF B
- intensity rHETHE
—-RE B
Petrol ‘000 kWh 83.5
b F1EF &
B Z‘;' '000 KWh/FTE 0.3
e FETFERE "
— intensity ARMETHE
—-ZE
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HKEx KPI Million Hope
EEXSFABBEMER 34
Social
it
B1.1 Total workforce by employment type Male Female
RERSREISHESAR S z
Full-time No. of people 190 59
X AH
Part-time No. of people 0 0
FR AH
Total workforce by age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50
REREANDSHESRR 303 A T 30Z508% 508% KA £
Full-time No. of people 59 147 43
X AH
Part-time No. of people 0 0 0
FRE AH
Total workforce by geographical region Hong Kong China
RHESSHESRRN BE ey
Full-time No. of people 115 134
X AH
Part-time No. of people 0 0
FRE AH
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female
RENBSHERRELILE S z
% 23.0 55.9
Employee turnover rate by age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50
RERENBSHERRELLLE 30 AT 30&505% 508% B £
% 67.8 23.7 4.7
Employee turnover rate by geographical Hong Kong Mainland China
region BH HP [l A 3t
RtESSHERREKLILE
% 10.3 48.5
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HKEx KPI Million Hope

EEXSFABBEMER 34

Social

e

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by employee category and gender
RERNNRENBSHERSZE
By employee category Hong Kong Mainland China
RERERIS 5B R E A i
General % 38.3 100
EEET
Middle managers % 0 100
hREEE
Senior managers % 0 90.9
SREEE
By gender
RENE S
Male % 30.9 98.9
S
Female % 31.6 100
7
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HKEx KPI Million Hope

EEXSFABBEMER | 34

Social

it

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by employee category and gender
RERNIRMNBSNESRERTERZIINFEYREE
By employee category Hong Kong Mainland China
RERENES 5B A i
General Hours 34 12
HEEBET AN
Middle managers Hours 0 7.2
PR EERE N
Senior managers Hours 0 14.6
BREEE AN
By gender
RN S
Male Hours 3.1 12
St N
Female Hours 0.9 10.7
7 AN

B7.1 Number of concluded cases regarding corrupt practices brought against Million Hope
HEXRFRHECESHESHRORGNE
Total Cases 0
EJLEEE-
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HKEx KPI
ERXS
FRR @&
BiEM

#H51) BRI

Description
AE

FEEXHM (BR HERELIHRE

Page Number/
Remarks

BiE A fsE

A. Environmental
BIR
A1 Emissions A1 General disclosure 63-65
B4 —REE
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective 70
emissions data
B E R BRI NEE
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and 70
intensity
BEREBASHEREE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity | Due to the
FEEEEREYRERETE business nature
of Million
Hope, this KPI is
considered not
material.
HRETHEK
MEFER  ZER
BEREEERA
WAREK-e
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and 70
intensity
FEEBREREEYRERETE
A15 Description of measures to mitigate emissions 63-65
and results achieved
WS EBERENIERE R TERE
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- 65

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved
HAEBEEERBEREZYNSG L B HEEH
MERENEERESHAR
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A2 Use of
Resources

BIRfEM

HKEx KPI
EEXS Page Number/
FrRA##E Description Remarks
WigE AE HIS fisE
A2 General disclosure 63-65
—RIE
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by 71
type in total and intensity
REMESNWEER QEEEREREERR
E
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Due to the
REKERBE business nature
of Million
Hope, this KPI is
considered not
material.
HRETHER
MEER ZER
BREERRR
WAREK
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives 63-66
and results achieved
it RERAMETERAEHR
A2.4 Description of issue in sourcing water, water 65
efficiency initiatives and results achieved
HSREUE AR E AT B ARIE UREEAA
KRz ET B R TS R
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Due to the
products business nature
HRmAMAEEMENEZ of Million

Hope, this KPI is
considered not
material.
HARETHER
MEER  ZEE
BYIEBEHERR
WREKe
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HKEx KPI
EBEH Page Number/
FrRA##§ Description Remarks
pogig AE BiS i
A3 The Environment | A3 General disclosure 63-66
and Natural —RIEE
Resources .. . g .
_ A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of 63-66
BERRRER ’ J P

activities on the environment and natural
resources and actions taken to manage them
BIEBEBHRBERAAREFRNEAZERE
KREEERETENTH

B. Social
4

Employment and Labour Practices

BREZSIER

B1 Employment B1 General disclosure 57-58
(= — R E

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, 72
age group and geographical region

mUR - EEEL FRENRMEZSNES
B

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group 72

and geographical region
BUR - FRENREEE S WEERKLER
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HKEXx KPI
ERXS
Fi R @ i
WiER

Description
AE

Page Number/
Remarks

R R

employee by gender and employee category
BURREEERNEINEEEETHZINF
2SS

B2 Health and Safety | B2 General disclosure 60-61
REHEZE —RIE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Nil
EIFBEEREMETHAERER i
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Lost days due
TEHEEBARIERE to work injury
during the year
ended 31 March
2019: 182 days
B £E2019%3A8
BN1HEFER
IHEBEAIER
% :182H
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety 60-61
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored
HIl TR SR R R 2 2 185 AR ABEE
TRESERE
B3 Development and | B3 General disclosure 58-59
Training — R E
B3
R R B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by gender 73
and employee category
RUENREEENESNZIEERS L
B3.2 Average training hours completed per 74

78
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HKEx KPI
EBEH Page Number/
FrRA##§ Description Remarks
Wi AE HIS fisE
B4 Labour Standards | B4 General disclosure 61
B IR —RIE
B4.1 Description of measures to review 61-62

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

R REEANERERSETRBSE T

Operating Practices

EERG
B5 Supply Chain B5 General disclosure 67
Management —RIE
Sl S
REREE B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 67
suppliers, number of suppliers where and
how the practices are being implemented and
monitored
wl AR EE At ER VIEN  mE T EEIEN
WHEBHE UREHEENNATRERGE
B6 Product B6 General disclosure 68
Responsibility —RiEE
EmEE

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and 68
recall procedures

miEERTARRERQWER

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and 68
privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored
HUCHBEERRERLBEBER  UREBEHT
REERZE
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B7 Anti-corruption

P —

RES

HKEXx KPI
ERXS
Fi R @ i
WiER
B7

Description
AE

General disclosure
—RIFE

Page Number/
Remarks

RiB /i
62

B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases
RERBAHBTASIHESERHACEFLENE
TSIRARENEE RFAER

62

B7.2

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

R A R B RE T URARRITRESR
7%

62

Operating Practices

EERA

B8 Community
Investment

HERE

B8

General disclosure

—RIRE

69

B8.1

Focus areas of contribution
ErERtEE

69

B8.2

Resources contributed to the focus area

HEXEHEEMAER

69
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The Board is pleased to present the first annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and
through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the
design, supply and installation of facade and curtain
walls systems, with a focus on curtain walls, aluminium
windows and doors. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review on the Group as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), including the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement (on pages 7 to 10), Operations
Review (on pages 11 to 17), Financial Review (on pages
18 to 22) and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
ended 31 March 2019 using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights (on page
6) of this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in notes 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. There are no material events affecting the
Group that have occurred after the year end date.
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EFEHEE

EEEMAZEEF - NFREFAKEHEE
2019F3A3MB L EEZRERFE S WK EK
%O

FEEH

ARBR—ZFZREERLQF ABEBEMBELQ
AEFEREIMNERFRES (URREREME
AE)NR HERZE HNBRARANEE
EBRFBENGES M BHRRM T -

REDOMER

D BRG] (B BEPI %6225 ) MRS EXR
HAEEZEKOE (EEEAEERE 2
ZRBRTHBREEZ ZEMRN AN EBEKE
ENRENAREREZEBR) BRAEHR2E
FREE (F7TEZ10H) ¥KEME (F1E
Z£178) -USERE (F18EE202H) Rixa i
KRR ETER ©

BEBRVBERRRESINMAEENEE2019
FIANALEFEZRRAIRNFR2MHL
Z(¥6HE)R-

FRASEVBRAREEZFBRERES
M MARMEEI8 - NEF A RLFERELER
EECERSFR-
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 115.

The Board has recommended the declaration of a final
dividend of HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended
31 March 2019 amounting to HK$8,727,000 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the branch register
of members in Hong Kong and the principal register
of members in the Cayman Islands on 5 September
2019. The proposed final dividend will be paid on 17
September 2019 following approval at the annual
general meeting scheduled to be held on 27 August 2019
and shall be paid out of the Company’s other reserves
account.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
118.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Under the articles of association of the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits
and reserves of the Company lawfully available for
distribution including other reserves. Dividends may also
be declared and paid out of other reserves account of
the Company subject to a solvency test (i.e. immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company must be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business) as set out in section 34(2) of the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 March 2019 comprised the
aggregate of other reserves and accumulated loss of
HK$292,079,000 (31 March 2018: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group is committed to protecting the environment,
fulfilling social responsibility and promoting employee
benefits and development to achieve sustainable growth
of its business.

For more details of the Group’s performances in
environmental and social aspects, please refer to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section
of this annual report.
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BREFINHZEL) PERR (T

ANATA201953831B A DR TFRR 2 H#E
BIEEMEER Z2TEES £292,079,00058
7t (201853 H31H 1 &) ©
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group is committed in complying with the relevant
laws and regulations related to its business operations in
Hong Kong and the Mainland China. Sufficient resources
and training have been provided to employees to ensure
the on-going compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that maintaining good relationship
with all stakeholders is the key to the sustainable
development of the Group.

The Group considers human capital the most valuable
asset for the Group, therefore, we provide competitive
remuneration packages, training programmes, and staff
engagement activities to attract, nurture and retain
talents and employees.

The Group maintains stable and long-term relationship
with business partners including customers, suppliers and
subcontractors, which brings benefits to the quality of
the Group's services and helps the Group to secure new
projects.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
warrants or similar rights as at 31 March 2019 and there
has been no issue or exercise of any convertible securities,
warrants or similar rights during the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March
2019, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Non-executive Chairman
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (appointed on 9 August 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Deputy Chairman)
(appointed as director on 20 February 2018 and
redesignated as non-executive director and Deputy
Chairman on 9 August 2018)

Mr. Tai Sai Ho (appointed as director on 20 February
2018 and redesignated as non-executive director on 9
August 2018)

Executive Directors

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (Joint Managing Director)
(appointed on 9 August 2018)

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung (Joint Managing Director)
(appointed on 9 August 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki
(appointed on 22 February 2019)
Mr. Poon Kan Young (appointed on 22 February 2019)
Mr. Yip Kai Yung (appointed on 22 February 2019)
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In accordance with article 16.19 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, Mr. Tai Sai
Ho and Mr. Chuk Kin Lun shall retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
All the above retiring directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. All remaining directors of the Company
continue in office.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company'’s circular sent together with this annual
report contains detailed information of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES'’
EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in note 13(a) to the consolidated
financial statements. For the year ended 31 March 2019,
the emoluments of the senior management, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
below and include three of the five highest paid
individuals analysis presented in note 13(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, fell within the
following bands:

BRRBAQNFRZABERMAFE16.19FFE -
FTHELAE B ERREB L EENRED
BRTCBRREBFARE LHERF AL
BEIEESHAERTHEERDEETZRE
BEAGLERET -FIAEAQAIBRTESY

BEEE-

BREOEBTZRREFASLEREEZ
B BEEAXAQFREEMAMBERRFT LA
SEFAR-FARIEMRAEE CEERE
BRIM) 2 BRIBE A -

RRBRERAFH - GHFTHZERA  #B
ARBNERTHRREBAFAENSEER

EEREABHS

B Z2019F3831HLtFE - EREEHS
ZHBERINGEMBERRMTI30@) - BZE
2019F3A31MBLEE SREEBZHFM
(HERHBEN T EEREREEER
Bl EFEEREEMERKMT13(b)2HR
NEEBRESHFATIMAN=ZAAL)IFIAN
T4 R

Number of Individuals

AB
Emoluments of 2019 2018
Senior Management by Bands SREERZHFHER 20195 20184
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 21,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,00078 T 6 5
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in the information of the directors of the
Company are set out below:

(1)

Service agreements for executive directors and
appointment letters for non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors have
been entered into between the Company and each
of the directors on 22 February 2019, pursuant
to which their term of service or appointment
with the Company was three years (subject to
early termination). Under the respective service
agreements, the executive directors, namely
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun and Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, are
entitled to receive monthly salary of HK$98,100 and
HK$97,000 respectively and they are also entitled
to receive annual performance-related bonus as
determined by the Remuneration Committee.
Under the respective appointment letters, the
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson, Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart and Mr.
Tai Sai Ho, are entitled to receive director’'s fee
of HK$1,000,000, HK$100,000 and HK$100,000
per annum respectively, while for each of the
independent non-executive directors, namely
Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki, Mr. Poon Kan Young
and Mr. Yip Kai Yung, is entitled to receive director’s
fee of HK$200,000 per annum. Under the respective
appointment letters, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors are eligible
to participate in bonus scheme or reward scheme
(if any) adopted by the Company from time to
time, while the non-executive chairman is eligible
to receive a special discretionary bonus based on
his contribution towards the development of the
Company’s business from time to time, subject
to the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company and the approval of the
Board.
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(2) The monthly salaries of the executive directors, 2) BITEERRBAERTFRHELEZ

namely Mr. Chuk Kin Lun and Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, B %8 X BB A2019F28220 Z Bk
were increased by 4.99% and 6.19% respectively, & T & 5 E AR E D BI3E iN4.99% K
with effect from 1 April 2019 as compared with 6.19% ' H2019F481HEM -

those stated in the service agreements dated 22
February 2019 above.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information B ENFriREN  SEEMEMERBERE L

required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the = TR BIFE13.51B(1)EF UK E -
Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 76, was appointed as a
non-executive director and the Chairman of the Company
on 9 August 2018. Mr. Cha has extensive experience
in property development. Mr. Cha has been the non-
executive chairman of Hanison. He is the chairman and
executive director of HKR International Limited (Stock
code: 480) (“HKRI”). Mr. Cha is an independent non-
executive director of New World Development Company
Limited (Stock code: 17) (“NWDCL"), Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited (the Manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust (Stock code: 2778) (“CREIT"))
and Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited (owner
and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort), and a
director of a number of public and private companies
in Hong Kong and overseas. During the period from
3 October 2016 to 22 December 2016, Mr Cha was
an independent non-executive director of Munsun
Capital Group Limited (Stock code: 1194) (“MCGL"). The
securities of Hanison, HKRI, NWDCL, CREIT and MCGL
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cha holds an
honorary doctorate degree of Social Science from City
University of Hong Kong. He is a Justice of the Peace.
He is a member of One Country Two Systems Research
Institute Limited, a governing board member of China-
United States Exchange Foundation, a board member of
the Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, the
chairman of Qiu Shi Science & Technologies Foundation,
a trustee of Sang Ma Trust Fund and an honorary trustee
of Oregon State University Foundation. Mr. Cha is also a
director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”),
CCM Capital Corporation (“CCM Capital”) and LBJ
Regents Limited (“LBJ”), and the executive chairman of
Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”). Each of CCM Trust, CCM
Capital, LBJ and Mingly is a shareholder of the Company
discloseable under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO").
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Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 73, was appointed
as a director of the Company on 20 February 2018, and
designated as a non-executive director and appointed
as the Deputy Chairman of the Company on 9 August
2018. He also serves as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, and the
chairman of the Investment Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wong has been an executive director and managing
director of Hanison since 2001. Mr. Wong was a director
of several listed companies and a director of HKR until his
resignation in December 2001. The securities of Hanison
and HKRI are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is
also a director of all the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Wong has extensive experience in the construction and
real estate fields. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor degree in
science from San Diego State University and a master
degree of science in civil engineering from Carnegie-
Mellon University in the United States of America. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 67, was appointed as a director of
the Company on 20 February 2018, and designated as
a non-executive director of the Company on 9 August
2018. He also serves as a member of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tai has been an
executive director and the general manager of Hanison
since 2001. The securities of Hanison are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Tai is also a director of all subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Tai has extensive experience in public
and private sectors of the building and civil engineering
industries in Hong Kong. Mr. Tai holds a bachelor degree
in civil engineering from National Cheng Kung University
in Taiwan, a master degree in construction management
from University of New South Wales in Australia and
a master degree in business administration from Asia
International Open University in Macau (now known as
City University of Macau). Mr. Tai is a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors (FHKIoD) and the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (FHKICM).
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Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 68, was appointed as an
executive director and Joint Managing Director of the
Company on 9 August 2018. Mr. Chuk also serves as a
member of the Investment Committee of the Company
and is also a director of all subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Chuk was a director of the construction division, interior
and renovation division and building materials division of
Hanison from 2006 until his resignation upon or before
the Spin-off and Listing. The securities of Hanison are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chuk has extensive
experience in planning, estimating, tendering and
quantity surveying in the public and private sectors of the
building and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chuk holds a bachelor degree in civil engineering and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, aged 53, was appointed as an
executive director and Joint Managing Director of the
Company on 9 August 2018. Mr. Lee joined the Group
since 1998 and is also a director of all subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Lee also serves as a member of the Investment
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee was a director of the
building materials division of Hanison from 2009 until his
resignation upon the Spin-off and Listing. The securities
of Hanison are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee
has comprehensive experience in the building industry
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee holds a certificate in mechanical
engineering from Lee Wai Lee Technical Institute (now
known as IVE (Lee Wai Lee)).
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Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki, aged 67, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 22 February 2019. He also serves as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Company and as
a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Professor Ho holds the
degree of bachelor of science with distinction in
agricultural economics from the University of Hawaii in
the United States of America, and master of science in
agricultural economics and doctor of philosophy from
the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States
of Amercia. Professor Ho joined City University of Hong
Kong in 1990 and retired in 2013. During his 23 years
of service at City University of Hong Kong, Professor Ho
held various academic and senior administrative positions
including Chair Professor of Finance, Head of Economics
and Finance Department, Dean of the Business Faculty,
Vice President, Provost, and Acting President. Professor
Ho has also served as an independent non-executive
director of Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited since 2007
and is a Justice of the Peace. He is also the awardee of
the 2012 Hong Kong Fulbright Distinguished Scholar
to US. Professor Ho has a rich record of public service
including membership in Process Review Panel of the
Securities & Futures Commission, Securities & Futures
Appeals Tribunal, Standing Committee on Disciplined
Services Salaries & Conditions of Service, University Grants
Committee, and Energy Advisory Committee.
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Mr. Poon Kan Young, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 22 February 2019. He also serves as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and as a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Poon has over 40 years of experience as
a quantity surveyor in Hong Kong. Mr. Poon became
a partner of Langdon Every and Seah, a construction
cost consultancy firm, in 1988, and after the merger
of the firm with Arcadis, an international natural and
built asset design and consultancy firm, Mr. Poon was
responsible for the operations in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. In July 2016, he became the chief executive
at executive director level of Arcadis Asia and was
responsible for all operations in Asia. After retiring from
Arcadis in December 2016, Mr. Poon established his own
consultancy firm, LESK Solutions Co. Limited, and has
been the managing director since then. Mr. Poon holds
a higher diploma in surveying (quantity surveying) from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University), a master of philosophy
from The University of Hong Kong, and a postgraduate
diploma in information technology from The University
of Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Mr. Poon is registered as a Registered
Professional Surveyor in the Quantity Surveying Division
with the Surveyors Registration Board of Hong Kong, and
is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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Mr. Yip Kai Yung, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 22 February 2019. He also serves as the chairman of
the Audit Committee of the Company and as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yip holds the general
certificates of education examination at ordinary level
and advanced level issued by the University of London
and the general certificates of education at ordinary
level and advanced level at Hong Kong issued by the
Associated Examining Board. Mr. Yip is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
an associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Yip has over 30 years of
experience in the financial audit industry in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. He worked in a Certified
Public Accountants firm in Hong Kong from August
1977 to November 1990, and joined Kwan Wong Tan
& Fong, a Certified Public Accountants firm in Hong
Kong, as a manager in the audit department in April
1992. Kwan Wong Tan & Fong merged with Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in August 1997. Mr. Yip left Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as a partner in May 2011. From June
2011 to March 2013, Mr. Yip was a director of another
Certified Public Accountants firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Yip
established his own Certified Public Accountants firm
as a sole proprietor in December 2012 and has been a
consultant of such firm since January 2017.
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Senior Management

Mr. Cheong Wai Ming, aged 49, has been the senior
design manager of the Group since 2013. He is primarily
responsible for design and providing technical advice
to the project and design team of the Group. Mr.
Cheong first joined the Group in 2005 as an engineering
manager, and held the position of design manager
when he left the Group in 2009. During the period from
2009 to 2011, Mr. Cheong worked in an aluminium
window installation company as designer. Mr. Cheong
rejoined the Group in 2011 as a design manager, and was
primarily responsible for design and providing technical
advice to the project and design team. Before joining the
Group in 2005, he also worked in other companies which
engaged in aluminium business as design manager. Mr.
Cheong obtained a higher certificate in building studies
from Hong Kong Technical College (now known as the
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education) in June
1997.
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Mr. Chung Chun Keung, aged 46, has been the senior
manager (contracts) of the Group since 2012. He is
primarily responsible for purchasing, procurement,
contracts administration, preparation of claims, budget
control, and quantity surveyor team management. Mr.
Chung joined the Group in 2012 as a senior manager
(contracts) and was primarily responsible for purchasing,
procurement, contracts administration preparation
of claims, budget control, quantity surveyor team
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chung
worked in various construction companies in various
roles (including contracts manager, senior quantity
surveyor) during the period from 1991 to 2012. Mr.
Chung obtained a higher certificate in civil engineering
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1994, a
bachelor degree of science in quantity surveying from
the University of Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom
in July 1998, a Diploma in Construction Management
(Project Management) from Heriot-Watt University in the
United Kingdom in July 2003 (through distance learning)
and a postgraduate certificate in occupational safety and
health in October 2005 from the University of Greenwich
in the United Kingdom (through distance learning). He
is @ member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(MRICS), Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB).

Mr. Huang Sheng Hui, aged 38, has been the plant
operations manager of EHFHEZEEME (BM)BRA
Fl(Translation: Million Hope New-Tech Building Supplies
(Huizhou) Limited) (“Million Hope (Huizhou)”) since
2012. He is primarily responsible for the overall operation
of the Group’s fabrication plant in Huizhou, the PRC. Mr.
Huang first joined the Group in 2009 and was the deputy
plant manager of the fabrication plant in Huizhou, the
PRC, from 2009 to 2010, and was primarily responsible
for the operations of the fabrication plant. Mr. Huang
is currently pursuing an online degree in management
of construction project from Wuhan University of
Technology (EZE T K2) in the PRC.
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Mr. Jarn Siu Cheung, aged 45, has been the senior
project manager of the Group since 2015. He is primarily
responsible for overall coordination and management
of assigned projects, including progress, quality, cost and
client relationship, and project team management. Mr.
Jarn first joined the Group in 2006, and was a project
engineer with the Group from 2006 to 2007. After he
left the Group in 2007, he had worked in aluminium
window installation companies, and rejoined the Group
in 2011 as project manager. Prior to joining the Group in
2006, Mr. Jarn worked in various construction companies
in various roles (including project manager and site
engineer) during the period from 1993 to 2006. Mr. Jarn
obtained an associate diploma in architectural drafting
from Holmesglen Institute of TAFE in Australia in June
1997, and a bachelor degree of civil engineering from
Victoria University of Technology (now known as Victoria
University) in Australia in April 2002.

Mr. Kwok Wing Fai, aged 38, has been the senior
accounting manager of the Group since June 2018 and
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 9 August 2018. He joined Hanison in 2007 and has
been senior accounting manager of Hanison since 2015,
and he has been primarily responsible for all account
related, company secretarial and corporate finance
matters of Hanison, including the Group. Prior to joining
Hanison, Mr. Kwok worked in various Certified Public
Accountants firms as an auditor during the period from
2004 to 2007. Mr. Kwok obtained a bachelor degree in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in November 2004 and a master degree in accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in September
2017. He is a Fellow Chartered and Certified Accountant
of ACCA and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant.
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Mr. Wong Kin, aged 48, has been the general manager
of Million Hope (Huizhou) since 2018. Mr. Wong joined
Million Hope (Huizhou) in 2014 as deputy general
manager. He is primarily responsible for overall general
management of the Group’s fabrication plant in
Huizhou, the PRC, including but not limited to operation,
costing and budget control, production quality, staff
management, client relationship. Prior to joining Million
Hope (Huizhou), Mr. Wong worked in a toy and gift
manufacturing company as general manager during the
period from 2010 to 2013. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor
degree of engineering in manufacturing from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in October 1995.

Mr. Wong Yuen On, aged 49, has been the senior
project manager of the Group since 2011. He is primarily
responsible for overall coordination and management
of assigned projects, including progress, quality, cost
and client relationship, project team management. Mr.
Wong joined the Group in 2006 as project manager.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in various
construction companies in various roles (including project
manager, project coordinator) during the period from
1994 to 2006. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in
building technology and management from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in November 1994 and a master degree of
science in construction management from The University
of Bath in the United Kingdom (through distance
learning) in January 2006.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of the directors and
chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long position in the shares of the Company RELFRIMGZHE
Approximate
percentage of
Total issued share
Number of number of capital
ordinary ordinary (Note vi)
shares held shares held KEBT
Name Capacity Fir o 5 B FisEER RFBHEIL
] L) BE et (Kfztvi)
Cha Mou Sing, Payson Beneficial owner 10,615,168 231,036,492 52.94%
ERE BREEA
Interest of controlled corporations 7,628,600
TR EEzER (Note i)
(Hati)
Beneficiary of discretionary trusts 212,792,724
KiBEEzZ@mA (Note i)
(Hiztii)
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Beneficial owner 15,118,054 19,148,637 4.38%
ERiy BREEA
Interest of controlled corporation 1,708,389
REEEzER (Note i)
(Hiztiii)
Interest of spouse 2,322,194
iRy £ (Note iv)
(Hiztiv)
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 6,954,288 6,954,288 1.59%
gtz BREEA
Chuk Kin Lun Beneficial owner 1,333,600 1,652,032 0.37%
] BRBEEA
Interest of spouse 318,432
FiBEs (Note v)
(Hfztv)
Lee Cheuk Hung Beneficial owner 560,000 560,000 0.12%
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ESEEERBMAE 2018/2019 F R

99



100

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EF SR EEZ

Notes:

(i) These shares are held by Accomplished Investments
Limited and Kola Heights Limited, companies that are
wholly-owned by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson.

(i) These shares are held under certain but not identical
discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
is among the members of the class of discretionary
beneficiaries.

(iii) Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in the
Company arise from the fact that he owns 50% of the
share capital of Executive Plaza Limited, which holds
1,708,389 shares of the Company.

(iv) These shares are held by Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai, the wife
of Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart.

(v) These shares are held by Ms. Siu Lai Ping, the wife of Mr.
Chuk Kin Lun.

(vi) The percentage is calculated based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019 (i.e.
436,332,630 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of
the directors and chief executive of the Company or
their associates held any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the directors or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
rights during the year.
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INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 March
2019, in addition to those interests of the directors and
chief executive of the Company as disclosed above, the
interests of the shareholders in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO were as follows:
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1R % 52 & B R % 16 B A P 4 2R e Bk
L §-

B AR A R201953 8318 - Br £ XA
BREEERALABRGTRAEZZEES
S RRRADBRD RABBERGD S FEHL
BRAR ARG Z R AEIRPIEXVEE336
HRAGEZECMERNT

Long position in the shares of the Company RELFIERRZHE
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital
Number of (Note iv)
ordinary EERTT
shares held KBFEEHES
Name Capacity FR¥s i@ 54
& {3 #8H (Kiztiv)
CCM Trust Trustee 195,080,814 44.70%
BREA (Note i)
(Hfati)
Interest of controlled corporations
SEEEZER
Mingly Beneficial owner 41,697,318 9.55%
=P BB A (Note ii)
(Btatii)
Interest of controlled corporations
SEEEZER
CCM Capital Beneficial owner 31,546,508 7.22%
BEXEAA (Note ii)
(Btatii)
LBJ Trustee 27,131,828 6.21%
fEFEA (Note iii)
(Bt atiii)

Interest of controlled corporation
TEEEZER
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

These share interests comprise 153,383,496 shares directly
held by CCM Trust and 41,697,318 shares held indirectly
through Mingly and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. CCM
Trust is interested in 87.5% equity interest in Mingly. CCM
Trust is holding the 153,383,496 shares as the trustee of
certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which
members of the Cha Family (comprising, inter alios, Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson, being the director of the Company)
are among the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson is also a director of CCM Trust.

These share interests comprise 1,493,170 shares directly
held by Mingly and 31,546,508 shares and 8,657,640
shares held indirectly through CCM Capital and Mingly
Asia Capital Limited, respectively. CCM Capital and Mingly
Asia Capital Limited are direct wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Mingly. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson is also the executive
chairman of Mingly and a director of CCM Capital.

These share interests comprise 24,409,172 shares directly
held by LBJ and 2,722,656 shares held indirectly through
Bie Ju Enterprises Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary. LBJ
is holding the 24,409,172 shares as the trustee of certain
but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of
the Cha Family (comprising, inter alios, Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson, being the director of the Company) are among
the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson is also
a director of LBJ.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019 (i.e.
436,332,630 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the
Company has not been notified by any persons (other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company)
who had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed under
paragraphs (a) and (b) of note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 236 and 237 constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other
requirements under Chapter 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.
Save for the aforesaid transactions, the other related
party transactions shown in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, to the
best knowledge of the directors, none of the directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is considered to have any interests in the
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save for those set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts that are significant in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its
parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION AND
INSURANCE

The Company’s articles of association provides that
every director, auditor or other officer of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a director, auditor or other officer
of the Company in defending any proceedings, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted. Such permitted indemnity provision is in force
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and at the date of
this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management for
the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked
agreements during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for undertaking the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 87% of the revenue of the Group
and the largest customer is an independent third party,
accounted for about 33% of the revenue of the Group.
Aggregate purchases for the year ended 31 March 2019
attributable to the Group'’s five largest suppliers were less
than 30%.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates, or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) has any interest in the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges
relating to the retirement benefits schemes are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make charitable and
other donations (2018: nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the number
of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Deputy Chairman
17 June 2019
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to 253, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

REEZER

HREZEEERERMANEXHE A 5Y
TGS BRRNETTRAEENSE-
ELEERERMEAERGSUBHRRRK
HERRRETREN KM SHELSEHE
REEBHER-

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REFEZER BEfnENAEEREERER

Provision for rectification work and warranty provision

BUATERERRIEERE

consolidated financial statements as a whole

incurred during the defect liability period and
warranty period, mainly for a period of maximum | e
of 2 years and a period of maximum of 15 years
from the end of defect liability period, respectively.

ENERNTRBBRRERRYE EXEERGESY
BHRAEBEZANBEEERBETHRFES (2
MEZERMBEFHEREFDRBEZ2FRATES
155) B FEENETRAS REEEE MG K
HeERERSERERER .

We identified the provision for rectification work | Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
and warranty provision as a key audit matter due to | appropriateness of provision of rectification
the significance of these provisions to the Group’s | work and warranty provision included:

and the involvement of significant management | AR FEE N TREBERREBEZREERT
estimates in determining the cost of work to be | Wi2F & :

Understanding management’s process in
identifying and estimating the provision
for rectification work and warranty
provision;

THEEERARMGHEXIERBERRFRE
BERE;

Evaluating the appropriateness of
methodologies used by the management
for identifying obligation with reference to
the relevant correspondences and contracts
with customers;

SEHRZFHNEBREREHN  FAHEEER
REEMRANGEZIREM
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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RBERKFEER &)

Key audit matters

MEFEXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEfmEHNAEERRERXER

BUATEEBERERIEEE (B)

Provision for rectification work and warranty provision (Continued)

As detailed in notes 5 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements, management exercises
considerable judgement in determining whether
there is a present obligation as a result of a
past event at the reporting date, whether it is
more likely than not that such obligation would
result in an outflow of resources and whether
the amount of obligation could be reliably
estimated. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
recognised provision in respect of cost of works
to be incurred during the defect liability period
and warranty period amounting to HK$54,320,000
and HK$40,935,000, respectively, which are the
best estimates of the Group’s liabilities based
on relevant correspondences and contracts with
customers and estimated cost for work based
on the management’s prior experience with
the consideration of the rectification work and
warranty claim in the past.

AR E DB RERM ISR 26T EEBEITHEE
AHABUBERBEAHNEESEEIRARNRERE
NEH ZEXREEAERERIMAREENE
B A b E - A2019863H318: BE£EEHR
RIGETHRRIEPEFEENETRAD BITERE
#554,320,0005% 7T 240,935,000 7T - H I iRIBEE S
ZHEHBREREHNEEZ E;‘%IEEZEEE%
RRBEEEENRERIERERBIRIEERZA
RERBH 2 s TR AR o

o Understanding management’s estimation
of provision for rectification work and
warranty provision and the estimation
basis, including the size of the project
and the historical data for rectification
work and warranty claim in the past, and
evaluating the reasonableness of the cost
estimates with regard to the Group’s prior
experience in addressing such matter; and

THEBEHENIRBREBERRERE MG
ARAFEE BEEERERBEIERIR
RIRBEZNELEE 15 SEENER
BAGTEEZBIERIGEBEEZS
B R

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of
the provision for rectification work
and warranty provision assessed by the
management by comparing the actual
expenditure to the historical provision for
rectification work and warranty provision
recognised.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & X7 1% £4 bib ¥& &5

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Lam Ching.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

lllm

SlEmskEMhZOWREE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
B Z2019F3A831BLEFE

2019 2018
20194 201845
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt T THET FHET
Revenue = 6 376,621 421,146
Cost of sales $HE A (302,137) (303,966)
Gross profit EF 74,484 117,180
Other income HA A 8 4,107 1,799
Other gains (losses) Hituz (FE) 9 1,618 (5,083)
Reversal of impairment BERERE
losses (impairment losses, CRiEE B (HIBREE) )
net of reversal) 10 3,134 (3,548)
Gain on change in fair value REMHEZ
of investment properties AL -6 3,200 1,316
Administrative expenses ITHRAX (33,672) (40,134)
Finance costs B % E A 1 (2,047) (2,646)
Listing expenses rmEH (22,570) (3,934)
Profit before taxation BRTE A& R 12 28,254 64,950
Taxation 18 14 (5,372) (14,838)
Profit for the year FE=F 22,882 50,112
Other comprehensive (expense) HfbZMmE (X H) WA :
income:
Item that may be subsequently HETWEEHFL/ES
reclassified to profit or loss: BEWIER
Exchange differences arising BREBIIEBELEN
on translation of a foreign N =R
operation (4,070) 6,541
Total comprehensive income FERXHEABALEE
for the year 18,812 56,653
Earnings per share BREF
basic (HK$) B (#B) 16 1.06 501,120
LSREENEIRAS 2018/2019 F3f
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R IR E

AT 31 MARCH 2019
M2019%3A31R

2019 2018
20195 20184
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MEE THET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REYE 17 63,500 60,300
Property, plant and equipment  #¥ =Kk &X & 18 108,295 112,710
Prepaid lease payments BAHEERIE 19 5,271 5,851
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 28 - 6
177,066 178,867
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 20 31,182 26,593
Prepaid lease payments ﬁﬁ*ﬂi%ﬁi 19 204 207
Debtors, deposits and EWFIE - RE
prepayments ?Eﬁm B 21 100,506 69,872
Contract assets EHEE 22 50,531 66,933
Tax recoverable A Y =] 52 18 7,922 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBREERES 24 304,648 40,646
494,993 204,251
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FE A BR AR I HL At FE A 5K 25 53,812 59,245
Provisions BB 26 33,666 29,895
Contract liabilities EHEaE 22 926 3,313
Amount due to immediate B EZEZER QAR
holding company 27 - 77,452
Amount due to a e — BB A B B
related company 27 13,163 -
Tax payable FEAS B8 - 8,238
101,567 178,143
Net current assets RBEEFE 393,426 26,108
Total assets less current liabilities @EEERTHAR 570,492 204,975
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %S Bl ¥R &

AT 31 MARCH 2019
72019463A31H

2019 2018
20195 20184
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Ff = FExT FHT

Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Provisions BE 26 61,589 76,246
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHBEEE 28 85 37
61,674 76,283
508,818 128,692

Capital and reserves EXRKFE
Share capital &N 29 43,633 -
Reserves ] 465,185 128,692
508,818 128,692

The consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to
253 were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 17 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf
by:

CHUK KIN LUN
]
DIRECTOR
EF

F1SEEF2B3EMIZGHEMBEHRR  £8
EER2019F6 17 R ERIRER M W H
THESKREE:

LEE CHEUK HUNG

FHu
DIRECTOR
EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GoOEREHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BZ2019F3A31HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KD AR AR
Share Other  Exchange Accumulated
capital reserves reserve profits Total
ka  HteE  HERE  RiHEd st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
THET TR TR THET TR
(note)
(Brat)
At 1 April 2017 R201754R18 11,000 - (3,756) 68,180 75,424
Profit for the year EEEA - = = 50,112 50,112
Exchange differences arising ~ BEBNEREE 2

on translation of a foreign EXESE

operation - - 6,541 - 6,541
Total comprehensive income ~ FE2HEKAZZE

for the year - - 6,541 50,112 56,653
Adjustment arising from BAEE AR

the Reorganisation (E& RME2)

(defined in note 2) (11,000) 7,615 - - (3,385)
At 31 March 2018 M2018%3A318 - 7,615 2,785 118,292 128,692
Adjustment (note 3) AR (BfEE3) - - = (962) (962)
At 1 April 2018 2018544818 - 7,615 2,785 117,330 127,730
Profit for the year FEEN - = = 22,882 22,882
Exchange differences arising ~ BEBNEREE 2

on translation of a foreign EXESR

operation - - (4,070) - (4,070)
Total comprehensive (expense) FEZE (X H) WAL

income for the year - - (4,070) 22,882 18,812
Issue of shares Bk 43,633 - - - 43,633
Capital contribution from REEEERABNEE

immediate holding company - 318,643 - - 318,643
At 31 March 2019 2019534318 43,633 326,258 (1,285) 140,212 508,818

Note: Other reserves represent capital contribution from the
immediate holding company during the year ended
31 March 2019 of HK$318,643,000 and the difference
between the Group's investment cost of HK$3,385,000 in
Million Hope Industries Limited (“Million Hope Industries
(HK)"), a subsidiary of the Company, and the entire share
capital of HK$11,000,000 of Million Hope Industries (HK)
arising from the Reorganisation (as defined in note 2).

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mH- [ ] IQE"“. E %‘
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
HZE2019F3A31HLFE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Operating activities EIEEK
Profit before taxation R B4 Al i Al 28,254 64,950
Adjustments for: T
Interest income FE YA (25) (16)
Interest expense FMEXH 2,047 2,646
Depreciation of property, ME-BERZBZINE
plant and equipment 4,613 2,070
Net provisions made EEHZBREEE 22,817 39,432
Gain on change in fair value of REMEZATFEEH 2 WG
investment properties (3,200) (1,316)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEMXE BMERXBZER
plant and equipment (Wzs) 15 (102)
(Reversal of) impairment loss EERZERRANRENEE
recognised on trade debtors RE (BE)EE
and contract assets (3,134) 3,548
(Reversal of) impairment loss ERERZ2EERE (#E)EE
recognised on inventories (1,366) 1,462
Operating cash flows before EEECEBAIZEERER
movements in working capital 50,021 112,674
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (&m)ms (2,033) 10,810
Increase in debtors, deposits FEUWRRIE ~ 12 & R FE FRIEIE 0
and prepayments (29,904) (58,655)
Increase (decrease) in contract BHEE /BB1EMN D)
assets/liabilities 13,568 (10,854)
(Decrease) increase in trade and EBRAR EMEAR
other payables Rt ) #&n (4,550) 17,542
Utilisation of provisions BEER (35,750) (50,075)
Cash (used in) from operating activities (FAR) REEEBXK 2 RE (8,648) 21,442
Interest paid 2 FE - (1,289)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBREHR (21,018) (14,786)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EFHBEREREH (73) (72)
Net cash (used in) from operating (AR)REEEBEEB 2R FHE
activities (29,739) 5,295
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119



120

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS B IREREE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FTHET
Investing activities REXEK
Interest received 2 U R E 25 16
Repayment from immediate HEZERAREN
holding company - 228,038
Advance to fellow subsidiaries BEIEEX S IEPNGEES - (1,968)
Repayment from fellow subsidiaries R R B2 &K - 8,412
Purchase of investment properties BEREYE - (2,684)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVMXE BERRERBRE
plant and equipment 33 188
Purchase of property, plant BEYX BERRZB
and equipment (4,180) (5,262)
Net cash (used in) from investing (AR REREEK 2B LR
activities (4,122) 226,740
Financing activities B eSS
Issue of shares BITRG 43,633 -
Capital contribution from immediate REEZEERQTNTE
holding company 318,643 -
Advance from immediate holding REEZEZERAD TN
company 16,164 -
Repayment to immediate holding mEEZER A REN
company (80,453) (71,328)
New bank and other loans raised BT REMER - 29,783
Repayment of bank and other loans EERITREMER - (156,986)
Advance from fellow subsidiaries REBZRMEB LD BB - 1,001
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries AERMEQTER - (38,144)
Repayment to ultimate holding M &R AR D BB
company - (2,969)
Net cash from (used in) RE(AR)MEXB2REFHE
financing activities 297,987 (238,643)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and BERBESEEEMOHD) FEE
cash equivalents 264,126 (6,608)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FURERBEEEE
beginning of the year 40,646 47,055
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E % &)~ /4 (124) 199
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRESRBESEE
end of the year 304,648 40,646
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated and registered
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 20 February 2018 under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of Cayman Islands and
its shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 19 March 2019 (the “Listing”). Prior
to the Listing, its ultimate holding company is
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
and its immediate holding company is Hanison
Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Hanison
Construction (BVI)"”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). Upon the
Listing, Hanison and its subsidiaries became
related companies of the Company in which
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, and certain
discretionary trusts have beneficial interests. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
design, supply and installation of aluminium
windows and curtain walls.

& Al 15 sh % Ml

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
B Z2019F3A831BLEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

2. GROUP REORGANISATION AND

i} 5% #R % M X

2. SEEHARFEMBERNOE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared based on the accounting policies set out
in note 4 which conform with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) and the principles
of merger accounting under Accounting Guideline
5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

The Company and the companies now comprising
the Group were wholly owned subsidiaries of
Hanison. To rationalise the structure of the
Group in the preparation for the Listing, the
Company and the companies now comprising the
Group underwent a series of reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) which involved the following
steps:

(@) On 20 February 2018, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
name of “Million Hope Holdings Limited” with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.1 each
with one share of the Company allotted and
issued to the initial subscriber at par. On the
same date, the initial subscriber transferred
his one share of the Company to Hanison
Construction (BVI), at par. On 13 March 2018,
99 shares of the Company were further
allotted and issued to Hanison Construction
(BVI) at par. On 14 March 2018, the name
of Company was changed to “Million Hope
Industries Holdings Limited”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

2. GROUP REORGANISATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(9

(d)

On 15 February 2018, Million Hope Industries
(BVI) Limited (“Million Hope Industries (BVI)")
was incorporated in the BVI. On 13 March
2018, one share of Million Hope Industries
(BVI) was allotted and issued to the Company
at US$1. Accordingly, Million Hope Industries
(BVI) became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

On 15 February 2018, Million Hope
(BVI) Limited (“Million Hope (BVI)”) was
incorporated in the BVI. On 13 March 2018,
one share of Million Hope (BVI) was allotted
and issued to Million Hope Industries (BVI) at
US$1. Accordingly, Million Hope (BVI) became
a wholly owned subsidiary of Million Hope
Industries (BVI).

On 2 January 2018, Paramount Forward
Limited (“Paramount Forward”) was
incorporated in the BVI. On 28 March 2018,
one share of Paramount Forward was allotted
and issued to Million Hope (BVI), credited as
fully paid up. Accordingly, Paramount Forward
became a wholly owned subsidiary of Million
Hope (BVI).

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

2. SEEHRGEMERENE
BEREHNEE =)

(b)

(@

(d)

72018%2H 150 » Million Hope
Industries (BVI) Limited ([ Million
Hope Industries (BVI) |) R % B
BLZRSEMA - R201853
H13H » Million Hope Industries
(BVI) A1 T /a) A8 A =) B 3% % 8%
1T— BB - E k> Million Hope
Industries BVI)EEAATNEE
M A Al o

720182 A 15H » Million Hope
(BVI) Limited ([ Million Hope
(BVI) ) REBE Z & BSEMAL -
72018%3H13H ' Million Hope
(BVI)EL13%& Tt @ Million Hope
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

2. GROUP REORGANISATION AND

i} 5% #R % M X

2. SEEHARFEMBERNOE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

() On 28 March 2018, Paramount Forward
acquired the entire issued share capital of
Million Hope Industries (HK) at a consideration
of approximately HK$3,385,000. The
consideration represented the historical
investment cost in Million Hope Industries
(HK) by Rich Color Limited, a fellow subsidiary
of the Company. The consideration for the
transfer was settled by way of a promissory
note issued by Paramount Forward to Rich
Color Limited.

(f) On 28 March 2018, Million Hope (BVI) acquired
the entire issued share capital of Heroic
Elite Investments Limited (“Heroic Elite"),
which indirectly holds investment properties
of the Group and took assignment of a
shareholder’s loan owing by Heroic Elite in
the principal amount of HK$153,409,000 for
an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$153,409,000.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation detailed above,
the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group.

The Group resulting from the Reorganisation
continued to be controlled by Hanison prior to
the Listing (other than the acquisition of Waller
Holdings Limited (“Waller Holdings”) and its
subsidiary, Rich Victory (Hong Kong) Limited (“Rich
Victory”), (collectively referred to “Waller Holdings
Group”) as disclosed in note 30) and is regarded as
a continuing entity. Therefore, the Reorganisation
is considered as a business combination under
common control and accounted for under merger
accounting as mentioned below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

GROUP REORGANISATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 include the results, changes in
equity and cash flows of the companies comprising
the Group as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the year ended 31
March 2018 (other than the acquisition of Waller
Holdings Group), or since their respective date of
incorporation, where there is a shorter period.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has applied HKFRSs (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”),
amendments and interpretations) issued by HKICPA
that are effective for the accounting period
beginning on 1 April 2018, including HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, during
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019,
except that the Group adopted HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” from 1 April 2018.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group chooses to apply the transition
relief given in HKFRS 9 and has not restated
the financial information for the year ended 31
March 2018 in the year of the initial application.
The Group discloses accounting policies for
financial instruments in note 4 for both periods:
accounting policies which conform with HKFRS
9 that are applicable from 1 April 2018 onwards
and accounting policies which conform with
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” that are applicable for the
year ended 31 March 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS
39. Any difference between the previous carrying
amounts and the carrying amounts at the beginning
of the annual reporting period that includes the
date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated profits or other components
of equity, as appropriate.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the Group's financial assets as at 1 April 2018 based
on the facts and circumstances that existed at that
date. Changes in classification and measurement on
the Group's financial assets and the impacts thereof
are detailed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 9

Classification and measurement of financial

assets

All financial assets and financial liabilities continue
to be measured on the same bases as were

previously measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment under expected credit losses

(“ECL") model

The table below illustrates the measurement of
trade debtors and contract assets subject to ECL
under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial

application, 1 April 2018.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

BERHRITEEMEREEANR
HERT (&)

HXREREEMBEEREERFR
Fr i £ Y R Bt

MEBENSARME

FEVBEERYBEEHERREE
ST ERFEIRE T NHEREEEELTS

=
BE-°

FHEEGR (RBEESER]) /X
HTHRIE

TRHAREXEM BB (20185481
R)REBBYBRELEAEIERE R
SR EREIRAFHRBEEBEN
BRI RENEEMNTE -

Deferred
tax
Trade Contract (liabilities) Accumulated
debtors assets assets profits
EIERIE
JE WL BR X BHEE (ABEE FEitaF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TER FTER
Closing balance at M2018F38318H
31 March 2018 HREH
- HKAS 39 - BBEIEL
83958 62,026 66,933 (31) 118,292
Impairment under BEHEEFBEESET
ECL model YR E (492) (660) 190 (962)
Opening balance at M2018F4B1HM
1 April 2018 e
- HKFRS 9 - EBUBHREEL
95 61,534 66,273 159 117,330
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% $R 2= Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. ERA#HIITEAMBHBREENR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HERT (&)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial HREREEMEEEENTR
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) FrE LR EEE &)
Impairment under expected credit losses FHERER ((RHERBR]) &X
(“ECL") model (Continued) WTHRE (&)
The impact of credit loss allowance for trade debtors R20185F3A31 HHWEKRR R EHNEE
and contract assets as at 31 March 2018 reconciled MEEEEREREERN2018F4A1H
to the beginning loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 is M ERBENERNOT
as follows:
Trade Contract
debtors assets
JE U BR X EHNEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
At 31 March 2018 M2018%F3A31H
- HKAS 39 — BB ERZE395 3,548 -
Impairment under ECL model FHEERBEENIE T HRIE 492 660
At 1 April 2018 720185F4A1H
— HKFRS 9 —EBP R ELED IR 4,040 660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28

Leases’

Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle!

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

fn © B 75 ¥R 2 Bl 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

HERT (#)

BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

3. ERWMIIEEMEBEEAIR

REBEWAREFEATIIE B MHE R R
EMZHATBBYBREENR BT

DY &L E

BB BREER
F16%

BB EREER
$17%

B8 (ARTKERE
RBZEE)
- REE3F

BBRBREERN
L)

BRHMKREER
EE ]
BRMKREER
FRMERT
BRBBREER
F10RREBE
R E 28R MET
BREEAE R
REBEEN
FSIRMERT
BBETHE
S99
BBEHER
F28EIERT

HE'

RiaE %2

REREREEZ
FRERE

BBIBRE%ER
20155 2201746
B2 FEBE

EBNER

BEREHENRA
EAEE

REFEABENAN
RELECZHCEE
HEHRA

EAMESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs and an interpretation will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group
currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Under the
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows, respectively,
by the Group. Upfront prepaid lease payments
will continue to be presented as investing or
operating cash flows in accordance to the nature, as
appropriate.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

EAFIEEMEREEANR
HERT (@)

FEREMBGHEERNE 165 R

ERMBREENE1E/EELHN
B LA R A A RABEANSETEES]
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165 R AE MK MR E RS ERISE17
SHEE ] RAEERE-

BB REENE 165 RE AR E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where
the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS
16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within
the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$132,000 as
disclosed in note 32. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &z Bil % £k 2% M 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits received of HK$444,000 as at 31 March
2019 as rights and obligations under leases to
which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received
would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above. Based on the facts
and circumstances as at 31 March 2019, the directors
of the Company do not expect the application of
HKFRS 16 will have material impact on the financial
position and financial performance of the Group.

BERHRITEEMEREEANR
HERT (#)

FEEMBEREENS 16 HE]

(&)

AEBRBEREN2019F3831HE WE
WEREIAE1%£444,0008 THERAE
BETEAF1I7REBETHENRER -
REEZBMBERSEAF16FETHE
RN EE 2SR W IEEFAEEE
ERNERENFIE Bit Lz MR
HEAFRAZEZHENAR BN AEEA
EREMNARSHRATBKBEESK

Lt o - B8 P T AR E AT RE B B L SCAR LAY
82 RBEAMEE - RIF2019F
3AEMBERER AR AESES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)
— Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease” and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) —
Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether
the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

In addition, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS
16 as lessee and will recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application to opening accumulated
profits without restating comparative information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies
which conform with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

i} 5% #R % M X

BERHRIIEEMEREEANR
HERT (#)

FEEMEREENS 16 HE]

(%)

REEFHRETITRERE  BLTHIER
ERETENFI7RRE S (BB TK
BERBEES) RBESNEBEER
HROBFEHE | BB AHEENEY
FERE BB RELEAE 165 B E
HERMEATBETERE17TRREE
(B BBERBREES) —REH4
U EERRNDBERENSNEAZ
Q- E REBETSHRDKER
AHAEFAENSHNREAHEEREE
HEETEHTME

BEoh - ANEE (EREBAN) SEEES
RIEHEEREBIMBRELERE6
5 WA R RETEN DB ER
MBI E MBAEILEEHR -

EREIHE

REMBB/RDBEFEBBEHOA
SRMHE BV BREZNNEHABER
B LN REMBIRR BB IE
Z MR REB QARG FrERENE

ERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
the investment properties that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

4.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEESRE &)

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i} 5% #R % M X

4.

(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control
(Continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing carrying
values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill
or bargain purchase gain at the time of common
control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income include the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining entities or businesses or first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter
period.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to non-
financial assets, which include investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value
model and financial assets and financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the Group uses a
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied,
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customers.

i.e. when

Iu

4.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control of the asset may be transferred over time or
at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred
over time if:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specific a contract with a customer. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control of a
product or service to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provision of design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services

Revenue recognition

The Group provides design, supply and installation
of aluminium windows and curtain walls services
under long-term contracts with customers. Such
contracts are entered into before the design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls services begin. The Group's
supply and installation of aluminium windows and
curtain walls enhances an asset that the external
customers control as the Group performs. Revenue
from provision of design, supply and installation
of aluminium windows and curtain walls services
is therefore recognised over time using output
method, i.e. based on surveys of supply and
installation of aluminium windows and curtain
walls services completed by the Group to date as
certified by independent surveyors appointed by the
customers in relation to the work completed by the
Group. The directors of the Company consider that
output method would faithfully depict the Group’s
performance towards complete satisfaction of these
performance obligations under HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provision of design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

The Group has enforceable rights to consideration
from customers for the provision of design, supply
and installation of aluminium windows and curtain
walls services. Contract assets arise when the Group
has right to consideration for completion of design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls and not yet billed under the
relevant contracts, and their right is conditioned
on factors other than passage of time. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset
is reclassified to trade debtors when such right
becomes unconditional other than the passage
of time. Remaining rights and progress payment
received in a particular contract is accounted for
and presented on a net basis, as either a contract
asset or a contract liability. If the progress payment
received exceeds the revenue recognised to
date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provision of design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services
(Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effect of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer of the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to customer. In those circumstances, the
contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist
regardless of whether the promise of financing is
explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties of the
contract.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does
not have a significant financing component in
circumstances where payment in advance or in
arrear are in accordance with the typical payment
terms of the relevant industry, which has a primary
purpose other than financing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEESRE &)

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provision of design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services
(Continued)

Warranties

If a customer does not have the options to purchase
a warranty separately, the Group accounts for the
warranty in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications (i.e. service-type
warranties). The Group’s accounting policy for
recognition of warranty provision is described in the
accounting policy for provisions below.

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contact in its
construction contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an
asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing
which is recognises as asset for these costs only if
they meet all of the following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provision of design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services
(Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract (Continued)

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Other income

The Group also has the following sources of major
other income.

Revenue from the sales of scrap materials is
recognised when control of the scrap materials has
transferred to the customer, being at the point the
scrap materials are delivered to the customer.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i} 5% #R % M X

4.

(Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of
the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for own use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purpose are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i} 5% #R % M X

4.

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front
payments to lease medium-term leasehold land
interests in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"”) and are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
buildings elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

4.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

BEETHEE #)

HELIHMRETF

EXKERYEER (BEEEELHBR
BFED) IR ANE BRI S AR
DITEREMRTNERI D AR ERE
BEEREAEE BYHEZHBI D
B2 -RESEMEFIIBEERSE B
LERT  BEYEAARIMELSEE
E-i5h= 2RAE (BEEA—XH
FANFE) RYERRSZEE L il
REFHoPHEERSEYE A FELA
EHELMEETHD BT OE-

EAEBERBAEAZEIENERT » Al
JIHEEHENEE T BRENGSH
BRAKRP2F R [ANEERIER] X
RERALEREE#RE 2 ERIMED
FEEIRTHIREWERI - ERIRE
FHEAE LA BEFHIBAED
iy BIRYEXBE I EAREHEE OF
WMEETHREREEERH) -

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K

149



150

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i} 5% #R % M X

4.

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade debtors
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fee and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of financial asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned and
are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
cost.

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value on the
basis of the Group’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on a specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL.

All of the Group’s financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets and other items which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
debtors, contract assets, deposits, other receivables,
bank balances, and financial guarantee contracts).
The amount of ECL is updated at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
debtors and contract assets. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision
matrix grouping of various customers with similar
credit risk characteristics. For all other financial
instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
("12m ECL"). The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition instead of an
evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired
at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12M
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies and other similar
organisations.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

i} 5% #R % M X

EERHBEK &

BMETR (R2018FE4B1BERS
BUBEHREEANERZE) (7

MERE (&)
HBEERE (&)

REFEPNAREESEENERT
AR FENTAETRENSEHEE
WEMEEERE - R 12@ABRHEE
BIREAER|E AR 12E A R AR
BREZNNUBTAEENF 2 RER
BUNEHEESR

FEEEEE LT
AEF BT ANGEERR B MiEER U

TERBEBRBEBONERER
TERYREIABBEEONER-
LR AEEEZRSERAXE
MHNEEBREMER SEBEERRT
LIS B ANS B DA AT E R -
FrEBMRREMEREREENBEER
RIRE - SBDHTED - BUF A K H A
PABNAEEEEAEERETREN
RHEHI=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

J an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o significant increase in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtors; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
at the reporting date. A financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) the
financial instrument has a low risk of default; (ii)
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of financial
guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

The Group considers that default has occurred
when the instrument is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer of
the borrower; or

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event; or

o it is becoming probably that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice when appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables and contract assets where the
correspondence adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

i} 5% #R % M X

EERHBEK &

BMETR (R2018FE4B1BERS
BUBEHREEANERZE) (7

MERE (&)
FREE BN B R ER (&)

RELBETERANZNMBRERENZ
BEHEERE  AREXRARRES K
BENEHN ST EREERERER
MBEIRR - HEERNE P AT E B AR
RWAEZR MEFHBRERRBRESEZMH-

MEWARERMBEENRIREENS -
BREZMBEEHREERE ELUER
T M B W ARG 7 & & AV AT
% o

BREIBIERENIN AEEBRBRAREME
BB TANREENEZRIME 2R
BEWRZIEE  ERVIRRRSNEER
Sh REBR T EBEIR R B IREAE
HEo

RUBRERREOMS BEEBRBRRE
BUBRELENEIEE2BERES
B ROEEIASER (NER) RER
HABEANZTRASHENRSER

2
2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (after application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

(ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade debtors, deposits, other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables,
the estimated future cash flows of the loans and
receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

J it becomes probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for trade debtors
could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade debtors,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a trade debtor
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to the
profit or loss. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

i} 5% #R % M X

EERHBEK &

BMETR (R2018FE4B1BERS
BUEREEREERZH) (@)

MERE (&)
HBEERE (&)

PMIBRBHEKATIRNMBEEMS O
RHEBREESEERTERZME
EERREBFNRUBNGITRKRES
REREZEHNERE-

FEMKEENRESESEERIK
BENIREEHR - HERURARZ REE
A BEABBIRIE LR o B RUERR
WAR B T BJ U E B - i A 138 48 BR P
5 o INE R WD 2 Al M EH A9 FOR - A5

ABHER - BBERANRAEZSENE
HmATER

REBBERATFENYBEEMS -
RERBPE - BEBESERD  BRE
EEMS RN ERBAERRENS4
AIERERNREBREEZBERED
HZREREDRERBNREERS
BREELEBIBRENERTEENE
SRS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fee and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and amount due to immediate holding
company are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if
not designated as at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

(ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i} 5% #R % M X

4.

(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

EERHBEK &

]

EXAKERBESEHAERE CEER
HE)ER BAEEETREFTEFERE
AR ATTEESER ASRIAFEE
B-BRABBBNSHEINBEHRR &
AAREREENARRTITRERRR
HEERAEERFTAENREMS -
ERFUETEEREEENEERE
SER HRAESZSIRENENRE
(RESHEELEBEANBERT) -

FRREZRESR

R|BEPR - NEBEFRHBLEE 2K
HE WAEREREMTKRBERZEE
EXZREFE MEEAZEHRE
- HBEATEEEEZTRE S 2L
BEREBE (BB ZREE-

i TREMGFHE —EE 2 TR EIEEE » Bl
SEREHEEMBREELE N 2T
BWEEE EARNEER—BEoR2E
BT EXEETEIREERNREEE
B BRAESRTIREAVSERE -
PTEREER & MBI CREELE
fi



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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4.

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investment
in a subsidiary, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investment is only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i} 5% #R % M X

4.

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deductible from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period unless exchange rate fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group’s state-managed retirement
benefits scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits (Continued)

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’'s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held
under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is not rebutted. The Group has not recognised
any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the
investment properties on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
and a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provisions

Significant management estimates are involved
in the determination of the cost of work to be
incurred during the defect liability period and
warranty period. Accordingly, management
exercises considerable judgment in determining
whether there is a present obligation as a result
of a past event at the reporting date, whether it is
more likely than not that such warranty services and
rectification work will result an outflow of resources
and whether the amount of the obligation can be
reliably estimated with reference to the size of the
project, relevant correspondences and contracts
with customers. The management estimates the
cost for warranty services and rectification work
with regard to the Group’s experience in addressing
such matters. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
recognised provision related to warranty costs and
rectification work amounting to HK$95,255,000
(2018: HK$106,141,000) (note 26).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
March 2019 at their fair value of HK$63,500,000
(2018: HK$60,300,000) (note 17). The fair value was
based on valuation of these properties conducted
by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, an independent
property valuer. In determining the fair values
of the Group’s investment properties, the valuer
applied a market value basis which involves, inter-
alia, significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements, representing appropriate market rent
and capitalisation rate.

Provision of ECL for trade debtors and contract
assets

Before the application of HKFRS 9, the Group makes
allowances for trade debtors and contract assets
based on the assessment of the recoverability,
creditworthiness of customers and ages of trade
debtors and contract assets.

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. Impairment on
trade debtors is made based on estimation of
the future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rates. If the financial condition of
the customers of the Group deteriorates, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade debtors and contract
assets (Continued)

Since the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April
2018, management estimates the amount of loss
allowance for ECL on trade debtors and contract
assets that are measured at amortised cost based on
the credit risk of trade debtors and contract assets.
When measuring ECL, the Group uses reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted economic
growth rates and unemployment rate in Hong
Kong, which reflect the general economic conditions
of the industry in which the debtors operate) that
is available without undue cost or effort. Loss
given default is an estimate of the loss arising
on default. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, taking into account
cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements. Probability of default constitutes a
key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is
an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given
time horizon, the calculation of which includes
historical data, assumptions and expectations of
future conditions. The assessment of the credit risk
of trade debtors and contract assets involve high
degree of estimation and uncertainty. When the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or
more than expected, a material impairment loss or
a material reversal of impairment loss may arise,
accordingly.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

i} 5% #R % M X

FESHAER G AHBE
ZTHEEREF 2

{HEtAARE RO ERRIE (&)

BREREREVIENRBERER
Wm(E)

H2018F4R 1R EME B M BHREER
FOSUNK  EEERBEUERAREN
EENEERRMATIRBHENATEN
YRR RENEENRBEESEN
BRERTE RITERBEEBRR
REBEHEZTERAIAERERD
ARESENEERENMELER (WE
BHNEARFENEEERERKER
HEARMREBZAXBIBITREEL
BARR) - BRHEBRRDIHIENS|IENE
KOG RERRSNRERERE
FHEGAERENRERE BN E=RE
THE TEEREFRRERERERE
BAGRNBEESRE- BOBRDIE
BHEEFENERZEE Y —EHYH
RPEE -RBERRANENTREMEAMG
s A EERELEE BRI KRR
RRTRH - BRI RSN EEFER
BNFEIRSEAFARTRES-B
BERRRRSREEAS SR FEH R
TREEALELEEXNREBERELNR
EEERO -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade debtors and contract
assets (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of trade
debtors and contract assets were HK$92,292,000
and HK$50,531,000 (1 April 2018 under HKFRS
9: HK$62,026,000 and HK$66,933,000), net of
accumulated impairment allowance of trade debtors
and contract assets of HK$886,000 and HK$448,000
(1 April 2018 under HKFRS 9: HK$4,040,000 and
HK$660,000), respectively.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts
received and receivable from the provision of
design, supply and installation of aluminium
windows and curtain walls services by the Group to
external customers which is recognised over time
as the Group’s contract work enhances an asset
that the external customers control as the Group
performs. The Group's revenue is derived from long-
term contracts in relation to provision of design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows and
curtain walls services in Hong Kong and Mainland
China during the year.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

FESHAE RS AHBE
ZHEERIE 2

HET AAE R ERRIE (&)

BEURERREVIENRAMERER
omaE)

2019538318 EWRERRREANE
ENREESD A £92,292,000/8 7t &
50,531,000 7T (20184818 RIEE
78 B 75 3R &5 2 B 55995 : 62,026,00078 T
566,933,000/ T) - {IBREWBRA R &
#EE W 25T R E  5886,00058 ;T &
448,00058 7t (2018F4R1H RIEEF B
B 7% 3R 5 %€ A 5593% : 4,040,00078 Tt &
660,00058 7T ) °

W

WEEAEEE-—REHABAEES
WIREA-BEE (MZEEERAE
B A9 B SN RR R P AR ) B SN P R
kst - HER ZRIRE R BRI ER
ME KR EYREN D FE RAFE
AEBHNWBZREREETBRFEIRE
R HERZKEERBRREEEH
HRMEH-

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Provision of design, supply REERT HERZERE
and installation of aluminium R &R
windows and curtain walls
services 376,621 421,146

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

6. REVENUE (continued) 6.

The customers of the Group are mainly property
developers and main contractors in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. All of the Group’s provision
of design, supply and installation of aluminium
windows and curtain walls services are made directly
with the customers. Contracts with the Group’s
customers are mainly fixed-price contracts, except
for the variation orders.

1 &=3¢ J)

FEEEFEIERBTBRPEMNYESR
REREAER AEBEBR  HER
ZRIFENBRRBIYIEERNTFEMR-
FEEREFHNENEIEREEERS
H(IRBEESRIN) -

Disaggregation of revenue o §=32)
By contract type REVERIDS
2019 2018
20195 20185
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T#T FiERT
Design, supply and installation ~ AB¥TEEYRT HER
for curtain walls, aluminium ZEER EMEREMER
windows, doors and other (MFaEiRii)
products for new buildings
(notes i and ii) 167,738 242,888
Design, supply and installation REREYRT HER
for aluminium windows, doors ~ ZREEFER HMER
and other products for new (B &Eii)
buildings (note ii) 201,950 162,161
Design, supply and installation AREREEYNEBIRE
for renovation works for RERE HERZERE
existing buildings 5,003 14,737
Repairing, maintenance and HIEREZL (KFEEii)
others (note iii) 1,930 1,360
Total H 376,621 421,146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

6. REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

By contract type (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The contract type involves aluminium windows,
doors and other products in addition to curtain
walls. The curtain walls are the principal products for
the contract type and the principal revenue from this
contract type is also from curtain walls.

(ii) Other products represent balustrade, louvre,
cladding, window wall, canopy and grille.

(iii)  Others mainly represent mock up.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligations

The following table shows the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to performance
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) as at the end of each reporting period.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

& =3¢ )

W5 8 ()

BRanmNBnSg (&)

By -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BrEfEIN A RNERIT S RIBFIE R
HthEm -BEAZRSNERINEEE
mZENENNEIERETREE

i

HitvERBERT  BE - #01R - WG -
EENEM -

Htb EREHED -

SEERTEHBRENXZ SRS

TRINFAEREMRDEEERET
(RE2RET) WENEBHRZER
B

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Provision of design, supply and 2Rt HERZHES
installation of aluminium & & &R
windows and curtain walls
services 487,878 516,585

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

REVENUE (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (Continued)

Based on the information available to the Group at
the end of each reporting period, the directors of
the Company expect the transaction price allocated
to the above unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied)
contracts in respect of provision of design, supply
and installation of aluminium windows and curtain
walls services as of 31 March 2019 will be recognised
as revenue during the years ending 31 March 2020
to 31 March 2022 (2018: 31 March 2019 to 31 March
2021).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment
focusing on the provision of design, supply and
installation of aluminium windows and curtain
walls services. This operating segment has been
identified on the basis of internal management
reports that are regularly reviewed by the directors
of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers, for the purpose of result allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, no further
analysis of segment information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from

icl /Q
mh O

i 5% #R % P 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

SHER 2

ith 1= 8 #

BEAKERBINGEF 2 WmEREZ

external customers is presented based on the HEMNMEBEVEZS|WT :
geographical location of the projects:

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Hong Kong BH 347,934 377,094
Mainland China ] P 3t 19,183 44,052
Other (Saipan) Hith (ZEIE) 9,504 =
376,621 421,146

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding deferred tax assets) is presented based on
the location of assets:

BRAKERRBEE (TRIBELERE
BE)ZENREEMEREZ5NT

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

Hong Kong BE 154,369 152,443
Mainland China AR A 22,697 26,418
177,066 178,861

£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £x S fif 5% ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

7. #BEH #)
EFREEERMEH

REEAEFLARFI0%BALEZEFH
WM :

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer a ZFa 76,851 94,173
Customer b ZFb 76,031 -
Customer ¢ BEFc —* 151,547
Customer d ZFd —* 63,398
Customer e ZFe —* 43,011
Customer f EFEf 125,474 -

% The corresponding revenue did not contribute over

* HAERENEEAEEAKE0%)

10% of the total revenue of the Group. les

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hftlr A
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TFET
Sales of scrap materials HERER 2,373 1,268
Rental income HEWA 1,555 410
Interest income FE YA 25 16
Others Hith 154 105
4,107 1,799
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. OTHER GAINS (LOSSES)

icl /Q
mh O

i 5% #R % P 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

9. Hftuli= (B518)

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ExT FET

Exchange gains (losses) BE ks (Ei8) 1,633 (5,185)
(Loss) gain on disposal of HENE BERREZ

property, plant and equipment (BB Wa (15) 102

1,618 (5,083)

10. REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

10. B {EBIRBE (R ESR (N

(IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF #m) )
REVERSAL)
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FBT
Net impairment losses reversed T3 & 1B & E (#:)
(recognised) on: B EEIEEEE
— trade debtors — FEURBR X 2,922 (3,548)
— contract assets —-EHNEE 212 =
3,134 (3,548)
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BEEH
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TBT
Interests on: THFEZFE:
- bank loans —RITER - 929
- other loan —-HMER - 60
Imputed interest expense BENEERNSXH
on provisions 2,047 17657
2,047 2,646
ESEBXEIZIRBIRASE 2018/2019 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. RIRBIET

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET THBT
Profit before taxation has been B ARSI (5T A)
arrived at after charging TH&IE:
(crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) EEEI€ (FfizE13)
Fees we 423 565
Other emoluments Hbbl < 8,841 5,552
Equity-settled share-based DR EE N ARG =T
payments K FKIE 1,826 9,586
11,090 15,703
Other staff costs Hth8 T A
Salaries and other benefits ek HMEBF 62,846 58,087
Retirement benefits scheme Hith 8 TRMAKEREFTBIHK
contributions for other staff 5,143 4,468
Equity-settled share-based LRSI R M
payments B K IE 634 2,927
Total staff costs BT ANEEZE 79,713 81,185
Less: Staff costs included in BETATRERANE TR
cost of inventories (15,235) (14,597)
64,478 66,588
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ -BEKRENE
and equipment 7,238 4916
Less: Depreciation expenses Bt ABRERANITERX
included in the cost
of inventories (2,625) (2,846)
4,613 2,070
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4 B % B 1,530 461
Operating lease rentals in respect HEYEKEEEFTEN
of minimum lease payments of &LZHEEHS
rented premises 94 1,052
Cost of inventories recognised BRA/AFZIZFEHAK
as expenses 129,626 131,710
(Reversal of) impairment loss BER2EFERE (#O)
recognised on inventories (note) & & (&) (1,366) 1,462
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &z Bil % £k 2% M 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

12. RIRAAR (@)

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHExT
Gross rental income under KREHEET2HSWALE
operating leases (1,555) (410)
Less: Direct operating expenses 8 FREL ZHSWAELE
that generated rental HELERX
income during the year 3 146
(1,552) (264)
Release of prepaid lease payments 5t ATF & R AMFEFHE
included in cost of inventories RIE [B #3 204 207
Note: The impairment loss recognised on inventories Mizt: MEE2018F3A31BLFE B

during the year ended 31 March 2018 represents
provision for the work-in-progress inventories
of a project with significant delay. Net realisable
value is estimated to be lower than its costs of
inventories.

The reversal of impairment loss recognised on
inventories during the year ended 31 March 2019
is attributable to the utilisation of the inventories
upon resumption of the delayed project.

R EERERREAREER>
BAEREERE A TRREE
ER R A -

REBZE2019F3831BLLEE B F
RZEEREEBERD NEENE

MEERBRERBA2FE -

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% $R 2= Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ B.EE BRRTRARRER#HE

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EEREETHRARME
emoluments
Details of the emoluments paid or payable FR AEEETERBSISEN
to other directors of the Company (including AATHEHMEZNHE (BERD
emoluments for services as director/employee ARARESAEFAREERZE
of the group entities prior to becoming E/BTIRMHBRENME) FHW
the directors of the Company) by entities [
comprising the Group during the year as
follows:

Performance  Retirement

Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Share-based
Fees benefits payments contributions payments Total
FeR BET HERx
ik Htria#l Bage AR ftZRE #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
:F/%J'E :F/EE :F/%ﬂ: :F/%ﬂ: :F/%ﬂ: :Flgﬂl
(note vii) (note viii)
GE) (B&Fviii)
Year ended 31 March 2019 &Z2019%3A31H
LEE
Executive directors (note i) #77ZF (Kizti)
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (note ii) #2842 4 (Kistii) - 1,177 3,400 177 413 5,167
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung il E (e

(note ii) - 1,248 2,300 116 183 3,847
Non-executive directors  #HTEE (Mztiii)

(note iii)

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson & %4 ([iztiv)

(note iv) 340 - - - 270 610
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart E 2% 4 (Kstv)

(note v) 10 226 - 34 640 910
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (note v) BHREE (Fzv) 10 142 - 21 320 493
Independent non-executive B FHTEE

directors (note iii) (B&iii)

Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki {77 %12 (H3tvi)

(note vi) 21 - - - - 21
Mr. Poon Kan Young BRIELE (Batvi)

(note vi) 21 - - - - 21
Mr. Yip Kai Yung (note vi) EXRL4E (Hitvi) 21 - - - - 21
Total emoluments el 423 2,793 5,700 348 1,826 11,090
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

B.EF ERITRARRESHE

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (#%)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EEREETERARMSE &)
emoluments (Continued)
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Share-based
Fees benefits payments contributions payments Total
Fak BFET HEn%
e Htias wyRe AR 4 ] gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx
(note vii) (note viii)
(v (Bsviii)
Year ended 31 March 2018 #Z2018%3831H
HEE
Executive directors notel ) HITEE (MF)
Mr. Chuk Kin Lun (note i) Rf@@%%i (BN - 705 1,427 106 1,973 4,211
Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung SERE (M)
(note ii) - 1,174 1,100 107 888 3,269
Nw(v-exeq_@)‘/ve directors  F##{TEFE (Wiztii)
note iii
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson &#& &4 ([fizEiv)
(note iv) 565 - - - 1,748 2,313
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart E &% 4 (Hiztv)
(note v) 7 - 498 - 75 3,318 3,891
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (note v) S EE (Kizv) = 313 = 47 1,659 2,019
Total emoluments “ame 565 2,690 2,527 335 9,586 15,703
Notes: MEEE
(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown () LEXFIEHZHTEESHEORESE

(if)

(iii)

above were for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Group.

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun and Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung
were appointed as executive directors and
joint managing directors of the Company
on 9 August 2018. They also act as the
chief executives of the Company and their
emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by them as the chief
executives.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments
and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 March
2019 shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

(i)

(iii)

BASESHAREZRBMZAT -

MEBEERZTEHEENR2018F8A
IREZREBARQANTESREFTE
EAREBE - FETEEERATARSITH
AE FXHECHEEERSERR
STBAERERBEHNENS -

EX B EEE201963831BLLEE
ZIHTEEMERBELFATESIH
SR FESEREARRAESFRMEZR
Bz AL

E=SEBEIZERBIRAS 2018/2019 F R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson was appointed as
a non-executive director of the Company on
9 August 2018. The non-executive director’s
emoluments of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
of HK$105,000 and HK$505,000 (2018: nil
and HK$2,313,000) was for his service in the
capacity of non-executive director of the
Company and Hanison, respectively.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart and Mr. Tai Sai Ho
were appointed as directors of the Company
on 20 February 2018 and redesignated as
non-executive directors of the Company on
9 August 2018. The non-executive directors’
emoluments of Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
of HK$10,000 and HK$900,000 (2018: nil
and HK$3,891,000) and Mr. Tai Sai Ho of
HK$10,000 and HK$483,000 (2018: nil and
HK$2,019,000) shown above were for their
services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Group in the capacity of
non-executive directors of the Company and
executive directors Hanison, respectively.

Professor Ho Richard Yan Ki, Mr. Poon Kan
Young and Mr. Yip Kai Yung were appointed
as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 22 February 2019.

The performance related incentive payments
are determined based on the performance of
the individual and the Group’s performance
and profitability for the year.

Share-based payments represent contribution
borne by the Group arising from the share
options and share awards granted to certain
directors of the Company under the share
option scheme and share award scheme of
Hanison.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &z Bil % £k 2% M 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 1B3.EE - BRRTRARBRER#HSE

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (#&)

(Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) ERE&
The five highest paid individuals included two BZE201983A31MALLEE R A
(2018: five) directors of the Company for the EESHFALEERMSE (2018F 1
year ended 31 March 2019, details of whose B)ARRNBES  BEZHMEFHBE
emoluments are set out above. Details of the REX - FR - HEAB AR QA RES
remuneration for the year of the remaining ThESTHRAENESHFEEN
highest paid employees who are neither MEFBEUT:

director nor chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Salaries and other benefits ¥ & Kk H & A 2,932 -
Performance related wERERE
incentive payments 720 -
Retirement benefits BIREF GBI
scheme contributions 289 -
Equity-settled share-based LAz &5 8 I LAIR 10 2 A4+ HY 7R IE
payments 25 -
3,966 -

ESEHERINGIRAS 2018/2019 FEE 195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
(Continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees
were within the following bonds:

13. 85 ‘&
AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (&)

PA

Hnt

(b) ERE& &)

BARRE

an
g
2

LRSI EE LT EER

2019 2018
20195 20185
Number Number
of employee of employee
LN i EEAH
HK$1,000,001 to 1,000,0015% 5t £ 1,500,0007% JT
HK$1,500,000 3 -

No emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors of the Company nor the five
highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during both years. None of
the directors of the Company has waived any
emoluments during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

14. TAXATION 14. R1E

2019 2018
20195 20185
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

The taxation charge comprises:  FiIEX HEE:

Current taxation BYEAMR I8

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBREH 5,128 14,574
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEIBEFRBH - 175
5,128 14,749
Deferred taxation (note 28) EERIE (MIEE28) 244 89
5,372 14,838

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at a flat rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for
both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed the Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of qualifying
corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%.
Accordingly, starting from the current year, Hong
Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity is calculated
in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The profits of other group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat
rate of 16.5%.

MEFEZ G ERBRFIER B
16.5% BB B FEH

MR2018%F3B21H BB UL LEEB
O17F B (1B5T) (BRI KRHE
) ([EHER])  HI|ARSH MK
Hl o MBI ERN2018F3H28 B EHEMK
AEE - IRBZEHEEHK-

REFNSHMAG cERKLESR
2,000,0007% 7T & Fl 4% 1#28.25 % & 4 £t
18 » T 2 #82,000,00058 JT §9 5% K #§ 3%
16.5%BMBBE-HIt  BARFEER &
ERBRNEBRESHRIIRAEHE MR
FIFtE > MEMREFEFEHRMA T ERE
CEAEEEENZABEERE -
Z16.5%H T IE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

14. TAXATION (continued) 14. NI\ (&)
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax REFEARLFBEICEMETE (T£
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation EFAREDRCEMSHRLIERMA
of EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries A hEE AR REZ2018F3H31H
was 25% for the year ended 31 March 2018. No I FEER25%MMBIIE - REE2019
provision for taxation in the PRC for the year ended FIAMBLEFELERPEBIARE
31 March 2019 as there is no assessable profit for B EAZFENLEERBER
the year.
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit FESBERASEERAEMEEKER
before taxation per the consolidated statement of AR AEF L BRINT ¢
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHET
Profit before taxation R 54 Al s Al 28,254 64,950
Tax at the applicable income tax #%iE AT EHH %£16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (20185 : 16.5% ) 5T & 2 Hi 18 4,662 10,717
Tax effect of expenses not FAHIBBEAZNBHBEEE
deductible for tax purpose 3,997 2,244
Tax effect of income not taxable BAMBIUNA NS E
for tax purpose (535) (285)
Tax effect of deductible temporary R ¥ 52 2 AT {18 E i = 58 2
differences not recognised HEEE - 2,881
Tax effect of utilisation B A SRR R HERR Z AT 4R
of deductible temporary EREH2RBEEE
differences previously
not recognised (2,401) =
Effect of different tax rate REMBAEZEREE 2
of a subsidiary operating in MEARZ FRIMENZE
other jurisdiction (186) (719)
Income tax at concessionary rate IREBER R EHNFAEH (165) =
Taxation for the year FEBIEA 5,372 14,838
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &z Bil % £k 2% M 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. K8

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company ARABRFAEBREETREATRE
or by the companies now comprising the Group Z£2018F3A31H L FE W MKFRiERE
during the year ended 31 March 2018. RERE -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a RBEMREB RAREEEZRRER
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March Z2019F3A31HEFEZRBRES
2019 of HK2.0 cents (2018: nil) per ordinary share, B E @ AR2.08 L (2018F ' &|&) - & 4
in aggregate amount of HK$8,727,000 (2018: nil) 8,727,000 T (20185 : &) - M AF R
has been proposed by the directors of the Company RAERERRAE LHER  HAEE-

and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming general meeting.

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BERE T
The calculation of the basic earnings per share AAREBANEBIEFEERERRBFTY
attributable to owners of the Company for the year RBUTEEE:

is based on the following data:

2019 2018
20194 20185
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT THET
Earnings 2R
Profit for the year attributable  BARFTEEREARBRIZAAQF
to owners of the Company for A AELFEERZR
the purpose of basic earnings
per share 22,882 50,112

Number of shares

EBin#AE
2019 2018
20194 20185
Weighted average number R 40 hn#E S 19 &1
of shares
Weighted average number of AR ESRERBI2EBR
ordinary shares for the purpose  fl#EF 19
of basic earnings per share 21,517,869 100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

16.

17.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 March 2018 had
been determined on the assumption that the
Reorganisation had been effective on 1 April 2017.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there
was no potential ordinary share for both years.

16. BIEF (#

BETEEHZE2018F3A31BLFEZER
HAZANMS  TERMNEFHE TR
BAHCNR2017F4B1HEMMEE °

HAMEFEYREEESBER HAES
g REERA

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. B EYE
HK$'000
TET
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 April 2017 201754818 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) s B8 — I FT & 2 =] (FfEE30) 56,300
Additions NE 2,684
Gain on change in fair value DN EEE 2 W 1,316
At 31 March 2018 20183 A31H 60,300
Gain on change in fair value AT EZF 2 WA 3,200
At 31 March 2019 7201963 831H 63,500

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date
by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (“JLL"), independent
property valuer not connected with the Group. JLL
has appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuer to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The management reports the findings
to the board of directors of the Company every six
months to explain the cause of fluctuations in the
fair value of the property.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

As at 31 March 2019, the valuation of properties
amounting to HK$63,500,000 (2018: HK$60,300,000)
was arrived at by reference to the income
capitalisation method which is based on the
capitalisation of the net income potential by
adopting an appropriate capitalisation rate, which
is derived from analysis of sale transactions and
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations.

Summary of fair value hierarchy and Level 3
fair value measurement

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. All investment properties of
the Group are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair
value measurement.

There are no transfers between different levels
within the fair value hierarchy during both years.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

17. B EME &)

AEBERE=FAERMGEMETHE
BE-EEEESERNBLEMNEES
5 LY SBHMES ERER 2BA
BE-EEESNMEAANALAEEEE
BRER  UBEBYELFEREZRE -

MES RS ATER  NESBERE
ERRRERA AR

MR201963A310  2Z R AERZE
HEZYE£EE D B 563,500,000/ T
(20184 : 60,300,000/8 7T ) ' Lk A 2R
BHRABEER LR GERERAFEE
FUERL > MEARLLLE I ER 5 788
ERXRGRERREEZERGBEMME
BB

AT ESERBERE=RMOFHEHRT
B

AEEFALEEAES A - B
DESRERRESE N WEERR
ATEERE EHERABIBRE
W o A EBAA RENEERBE =
AFEEEE-

RAEFEER  LRAFESRETER
Bl -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. EWX &)

Level 3 valuation methodologies

Below is a table which presents the significant
unobservable inputs:

B-REHEERE

TREJERRAEERARE

Significant unobservable inputs (note)

EXAURREGANE (M)
Investment Valuation Fair Capitalisation Monthly market
properties method value rate  rent (per square feet)
BATERS
REME HESE LFHE - 3(4:4: = (BEHKR)
Commercial Income capitalisation HK$63,500,000 2.5% (2018: 2.5%) HK$21.2 to HK$23.2

approach (2018: HK$60,300,000)

[ L ON=¥:X|973 63,500,000 T
(2018% :
60,300,000 7T

Note: The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
value are (i) the higher the capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value; and (ii) the higher the market
rent, the higher the fair value.

The investment properties are situated in Hong
Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &z Bil % £k 2% M 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. X -WERRR

Furniture
Plant and and Office Leasehold Motor
Buildings  equipment fixtures  equipment improvements vehicles Moulds Total
HR
#F RERRRE BAURKRE LN NERKE RE - ) #it

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TARL TER TERL TARL TER TER TR

CosT B
At 1 April 2017 R201754818 23672 17,448 880 5,350 1,353 1,825 2142 50,770
Exchange adjustments ERAE 2,538 1,508 47 289 24 124 = 4,530
Additions FE 815 : e 99 3,793 555 2 5,262
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE—EHEAR

(note 30) (H3E30) 89,070 = = 5 5 d E 89,070
Disposals HE - - - = = (474) = (474)
At 31 March 2018 R2018538318 116,095 18,956 927 5,738 5,170 2,030 212 149,158
Exchange adjustments ERAE (1,638) (980) (17) (201) (34) (83) < (2,953)
Additions FE 2 142 65 1,850 o 2123 = 4,180
Disposals HE = (92) - = = (220) = 312)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%38317 114,457 18,026 975 7387 5,136 3,850 212 150,073
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2017 R2017%4818 9,039 12,068 710 4,949 1,058 1,446 212 29,512
Exchange adjustments ERAR 1,026 978 39 274 8 83 - 2,408
Provided for the year EERE 3,004 1,382 2 154 192 162 = 4,916
Eliminated on disposals ~ HERH - - - - - (388) - (388)
At 31 March 2018 2018538318 13,069 14,428 m 5,377 1,258 1,303 212 36,448
Exchange adjustments ERAZE (702) (675) (12) (194) (6) (55) = (1,644)
Provided for the year FERE 4,245 1,202 45 324 732 690 - 7,238
Eliminated on disposals ~ HERHE = (54) = = = (210) = (264)
At 31 March 2019 2019538318 16,612 14,901 804 5,507 1,984 1,728 212 4,778
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 March 2019 R2019538317 97,845 3,125 171 1,880 3,152 2122 i 108,295
At 31 March 2018 2018538318 103,026 4,528 156 361 3912 721 £ 112,710
The above items of property, plant and equipment LLEMI%  BERRIBEE DRAERE
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the ROTERAFEHITE:
following useful lives:
Buildings 20 years — 30 years BT 204 —305F
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of HEWELEE RBEHIHER

improvements the lease period or 5 years (UBEERLE)

Other assets 5 years HthEE 58
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £x S fif 5% ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. BfI#HEREA
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET THBT
The prepaid lease payments EAEERESRE:
comprises:
Leasehold land in the PRC REEzHE it 5,475 6,058
Analysed for reporting MEREMNITWOT :
purposes as:
Current asset RBEE 204 207
Non-current asset ERBEE 5,271 5,851
5,475 6,058
20. INVENTORIES 20. 58
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET THET
Raw materials EAR 9,648 14,850
Work in progress EEIRE 21,534 11,743
31,182 26,593
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4z 8 Bl 3E3RZE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

Bif 53

21. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 21. Bk RB e RBAMTRIE

PREPAYMENTS

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET T

Trade debtors FE UK BR =X 92,292 62,026

Deposits and prepayments RERFBENHIE 4,053 3,020

Value-added tax receivables FE U B E T 2,136 3,080

Prepaid listing expenses ENETER - 951

Other receivables H i fE W FRIE 2,025 795

100,506 69,872

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its customers. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group will internally assess the credit quality
of the potential customers and define appropriate
credit limit. Other receivables are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

AEERTHEFHNRKRM B30

290

B EEMETAHEF 28 NEEFH
BERF ZEEERFENRTE  WERT
BEFERE - HttEWRIR R EIKN

RERZEEREE-

The following is an aged analysis of the trade UTARBRERARREZARNZINNE

debtors presented based on the invoice date at the W BR SR AR 20 47
end of the reporting period:

2019 2018

2019% 2018F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 30 days 30HA 43,724 SHA1740)

31 - 60 days 31260H 20,189 24,768

61 - 90 days 61£290H 12,995 -

Over 90 days BiBI0A 15,384 6,088

92,292 62,026

As at 1 April 2017, trade receivables from contracts A2017FE48 18 B E &4 2 FE R BE =X

with customers amounted to HK$5,359,000.

#5,359,00058 T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

21. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has concentration
of credit risk with 87.9% (2018: 87.8%) of the total
trade debtors was due from the Group’s five (2018:
four) largest customers.

Before the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018,
management closely monitored the credit quality
of trade debtors and considered the trade debtors
that were neither past due nor impaired to be
of a good credit quality based on their historical
repayments. Included in the Group’s trade debtors
balance were trade debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$6,088,000 which were past due at 31
March 2018 for which the Group had not provided
for impairment loss. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances. There were no
balances included in other receivables which have
been past due.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade debtors
which were past due but not impaired:

i} 5% #R % M X

21. BB R B & R AT RIEA

(&)

2019383180 REBE W E (2018
F N ABEFZEWRRBENEFE
E &k £587.9% (2018F :87.8% ) ©

R2018F4R 1 HEERAEBM SR EER
BOR A EEEERYERERER
ZIEEER URARBBEIERCHE
BEAHTEHENERERZEEER
ERF -AEERBRREHREERAE
#2%86,088,00078 7t 2 FEUR BR 7R » L SR
IEA2018%3 831 H B @AM AN & B I £
MEREEBELEE AEEMERZ
LERISE AR R - Hth R IEE
EEFECARZ &G

BB HA B AROR B 2 B W BR K 2 BR e 0 4T
W

2018
20184
HK$'000
FET

Over 90 days #3890H

6,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

21. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Movement in the impairment loss recognised on
trade debtors:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

21. B R R - EH & R AT RIA

(&)

RURRERRDREGE 2S5 :

2018

20185

HK$'000

FET

Balance as at 1 April 2017 HR2017F4B 18 24t -
Impairment loss recognised o ERBEEE 3,548
Balance as at 31 March 2018 7201853 A31H 2 &84k 3,548

As at 31 March 2019, included in the past due
balance of HK$15,384,000 has been past due 90 days
or more and is not considered as in default based
on good repayment records for those debtors and
continuous business with the Group.

Details of the impairment assessment on trade
debtors, and deposits and other receivables for the
year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in notes 23
and 38, respectively.

M2019F 38310 5 A @ H £ &
15,384,000/ JT 2 & 58 2 B HA90 H =k XA
+ o miREZEERANRIFERTHER
HEAEEFEETEL YA RHIEAHE
#o

BEEZE2019F3A31H L FERWIR

o BE R EEWFUERRE LS
2 B E AT FE23 .38 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

i} 5% #R % M X

Provision of design, supply
and installation of

RERE HERZERER
e AR 75

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 22. 8B ERESVAER
LIABILITIES
2019 2018
20194 20185
HK$'000 HK$'000
FilT T
Contract assets ahEE

aluminium windows and

curtain walls services 50,531 66,933
Contract liabilities - o)-Ki
Provision of design, supply RUEZRT HERZEEER

and installation of B iRR TS

aluminium windows and

curtain walls services (926) (3,313)

As at 1 April 2017, contract assets and contract
liabilities amounted to HK$56,296,000 and

HK$3,530,000, respectively.

The amount of receipt in advance from a customer
is netted off against retention money on a particular
contract basis and presented as contract liabilities.
For the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period, HK$3,260,000 (2018: nil) is

MA2017F4R1H GHEEREGNER
2 Bl £56,296,0005% 7T K 3,530,00058
jTEo

EREFRENSERARREBEESN
HEKBRES  WIMESHER - RR
£ HI¥) - & # & 183,260,000/ 7T (2018
F . E)NEE2019F3831BLLFEEW
BErERAekRE-

recognised as revenue in profit or loss during the

year ended 31 March 2019.

There were no impairment losses recognised on any

contract assets for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group has rights to considerations from
customers for the provision of design, supply and
installation of aluminium windows and curtain
walls services. Contract assets arise when the
Group has right to consideration for completion
of design, supply and installation of aluminium
windows and curtain walls services and not yet
billed under the relevant contracts, and their right is
conditioned on factors other than passage of time.
Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade debtors when such right
becomes unconditional other than the passage of
time.

The significant decrease of contract assets as at
31 March 2019 is the result of the repayment of
retention money from customers. The significant
decrease of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2019 is
the result of the recognition of revenue in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Included in carrying amounts of contract assets
and contract liabilities as stated above comprise
retention money of HK$36,171,000 (2018:
HK$53,719,000) as at 31 March 2019. As at
31 March 2019, the balances included retention
money from related companies (2018: fellow
subsidiaries) amounting to HK$195,500 (2018:
HK$1,108,000). The companies are related
companies in which CCM Trust, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and certain
discretionary trusts have beneficial interests.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

22. SHEERSVWER &)

KAEERRERAOFFRHAR HERR
RKinERBEREWIRNRE - NEEEE
HEikiaE R FEiERaT - RERZERE
i WERE - B AR RBAEES QM AR
5 BRZEFBURR IS BRA 2 S E
A UEESELSNEE -BECHE
RRENEENEFNESERBBEERNK
RERE (KERERN) BEH 2 BRE
FE YR BR TR

M2019%F3A310 N EERERY
FERREEFHNREEERK 2019
F3A310 - EHEBEREEZERY FRER
MEBZE2019F3A31 B L FEERERZDIE
R FrEk e

FREHNEEREHNEENIREES
BERES  MN2019F38310 ' RE £
#36,171,0007% JT (20184 : 53,719,000
BIT) cR2019F3831H - BH A
Q018F :RARMB AR RE S EIEL
£:195,50058 7T (20184 : 1,108,00058
JC) o RN AEEREKRCCM Trustk =T
HIEEARZERHAREEERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (continued)

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and
represented the monies withheld by customers of
contract works fully recoverable within 1 to 2 years
from the date of completion of respective design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls services projects in accordance
with the terms specified in the relevant contracts.
Upon satisfactory completion of the installation
works of whole project as set out in the contract,
the architect for the building project will issue a
practical completion certificate. Generally, upon
the issuance of the practical completion certificate,
half of the retention money of such project will be
released to the Group, while the remaining half will
be released to the Group upon the issuance of the
certificate that identified defects in respect of the
entire building project have been made good. This
amount of retention money is included in contract
assets until the end of the defect liability period
as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment
is conditional on completion of defect liability
period. The Group is responsible, at its own costs,
for remedial works that may arise from defective
works or materials used. The defect liability period
serves as an assurance that the construction services
performed comply with agreed-upon specifications
and such assurance cannot be purchased separately.
The Group classifies these contract assets as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its
normal operating cycle. The retention money does
not have any significant financing component for
financing benefit.
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22. SVWEERSVWER &)

RESHABERERE  NEFHRENE
B HIB R TRIBAER S NOREK
BRER HERZRERERFER
BIRNRIAHE-—EMFRAZHK
Bl - BEEENLZRIRRENAEER
EARE BERBNEEMSHAER
RIBE-—RMs HAEBRRIES
% ZEEBRETN—FEREFEEH
REEHNE —F¥BEHAZFAEER

BREEEFERANRBEREBIER
REAEE -RESEHIFTASHNEE
EERBEFBHERAL RAREE
155 U B B 4 A RV R R TS AR PR B AE
MR BERtF - AEEEERRET
REAEAMATESIENBRIRE:
ERHAEEBITRE -RIBEEHAE
HBERBETEERBHRELETBR
HIUERBE - AEFENZEENEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

The retention money is to be settled at the end of
each reporting period as follows:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

22. SHEERSVWER &)

RE SR ERERREZWTHAEN

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

Ti#ET TET

On demand or within one year RERHR—FR 12,545 27,658
After one year R—F% 23,626 26,061
36,171 53,719

Details of the impairment assessment on contact
assets for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out
in note 23.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON
TRADE DEBTORS AND CONTRACT
ASSETS

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group makes
periodic collective assessment on the recoverability
of trade debtors and contract assets and develops
and maintains the Group’s credit risk gradings to
categorise exposures according to their degree
of risk of default. The credit rating information is
provided by independent rating agencies where
available and, if not available, the management
uses other publicly available financial information
and the Group’s own trading records to rate its
major customers and other debtors. The Group’s
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored and the aggregate
value of transactions concluded is spread amongst
approved counterparties.

23.

BHEERZE2019F3A31BLEEENEE
BB LRI E A M EE23 o

FE U AR % B & ¥9 8 & Y it (B °F
i

AEEREEERR AEEEHHER
SRR ENEEN I EITRERT
it BHEREFAEENESERRT
A& RBEN R RS E RN OET
D FEFRERTHABLFREE
RE(NATES) MERELIESERE
HMOBERT EEESEREMART
BHUBENRARENEBRZ T
HEFREFRAMEBR AETIR
AEENRERBBORERZHFNEER
AR BIF AR TR E RED
BEEMRENRZYHTF-

£=Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

23. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON
TRADE DEBTORS AND CONTRACT
ASSETS (Continued)

Upon the application of HKFRS 9, loss allowance
for trade debtors and contract assets has been
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
for trade debtors and contract assets comprises the
following categories:

23. B IRR K & 8 E /R EF

i (#)

RERE B BRELEREIRE B
RRERENEENEERBECSRESZERN
EEFEPANFESRNEREAE-

FEBHERUERRRENEENAIRE
MR R ERE LT8R

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
R iR EREHEEGRHESE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — not
default and does not have any past- credit-impaired
due amounts.
EE REZHFHNENRBREE BESEEM BREFEREHEESE
BIHABR K © —FEERE
Doubtful Amount is >30 days past due or there Lifetime ECL — not
has been a significant increase in credit-impaired
credit risk since initial recognition.
AJ &E BRAXEBHA30R L L3 B MR LR BREFENEHEESE
EERBBEERM- —FEERE
In default Amount is >90 days past due or there Lifetime ECL —
is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired
credit-impaired.
EN IRMEBH0R U LR ERIBERPEE BREFENEHEESE

EHREERE

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

23. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON
TRADE DEBTORS AND CONTRACT

ASSETS (continued)

The following table provides information about the
credit risk exposures of trade debtors and contract
assets which are subject to Lifetime ECL assessment:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

23. BEIgIRR RSV EERN R ET
4 (&)

TREJIBERETREFERABE
EBBRTE2BURARENEERER
R\ B el O B9 8

Gross carrying

External Internal amount as at
credit rating credit rating 31 March 2019
720195%3A31H
ShEBIE R MBS TR B RmEE
HK$'000
TET
Financial assets at amortised cost
REEERIIECHMBEEE
Trade receivables N/A Performing 91,422
& W BR X FiE A = e
N/A Doubtful 1,756
i@ A A ¢
Other item
Hfthm H
Contract assets N/A Performing 50,979
BHNEE FiE A 1B

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K

213



214

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

23. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON

TRADE DEBTORS AND CONTRACT
ASSETS (Continued)

In determining the ECL for trade debtors and
contract assets, the management of the Group has
taken into account the historical default experience
and the future prospect of the industries and/or
considering various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information, as appropriate, as
well as any cash flows that are expected from the
realisation of the collateral, if any, in estimating the
probability of default of each of the trade debtors
and contract assets occurring within their respective
loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss
upon default in each case.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover
its credit risks associated with its trade debtors and
contract assets.

The impairment losses for trade debtors and
contract assets recognised as at 31 March 2019
amounting to HK$886,000 and HK$448,000,
respectively. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk and
ECL for trade debtors and contract assets which are
assessed collectively based on internal credit grading
as at 31 March 2019.
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23. B IRR K & 8 E /R EF

i (#)

REERURARSENEENTRNEE
BEE AEEEEECZRBEENS
HRATHRHRRATR RS TR FE ik
RREENEENRESEBBRNEERS
HENHBEEZYNTEMER ZEEE
B R FERSEE B MM IR RIR (fitiE
R EfRm (08 SRAWEELNE
ARER UERREEBRATHNENE
%o

201938310 REBILEIEEEM
KM EME R RERLOREERE
FEWERFEREHNEEERNEERK-

201938310 ERBERERRES
HNEEMNRBEEESD 5 £886,0007 5T &
448,000 T TREIIEUBBRERRELN
EENGEERBHBOREREERBE
¥l ZEER T A201953 831 B IR
s AR AERETRETGNER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

23. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

23. EUIER K & ¥ 38 E /Y i 5 5F

TRADE DEBTORS AND CONTRACT & &)
ASSETS (continued)
Gross
Average carrying Impairment
Internal credit rating loss rate amount losses
A ER {5 R EE R FIHBIRE H#IREE WESGR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
Performing IEs 0.9% 142,401 1,302
Doubtful Al &% 1.8% 1,756 32
144,157 1,334

The ECL on trade debtors and contract assets are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference
to past default experience of the debtor and an
analysis of the debtor’s current financial position,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtor operates and an assessment of
both the current and the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date.

A trade debtor or contract asset is written off when
there is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade debtor
is over three years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been
written off is subject to enforcement activities.

BB R & MO E O TR 5 LS IR T
fEABRER LS £ E A KB R
SRR M A MW B BTN 5 81
e DREBANSERE BEA
S AT A7 3 2 BB ST R A R BT
% A MEARRREAERRAAY
SPET AR -

ERERBTREBARABRENBRE
B EEMRU 8 AT 2R (B aET A
EEEREARERFREVRRE R
HE=FUE (UREREERE) )
FEW BR TR & K0 & B S B EH - B
$H B9 FE U BR R T SR B AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

23. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON
TRADE DEBTORS AND CONTRACT

&R 5 i 75 $R & B 5

23. BINIR R B &= &E AR E T
i (#)

ASSETS (Continued)

There has been no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during
the year ended 31 March 2019 in assessing the loss
allowance for trade debtors and contract assets.

The movement of the impairment losses in respect
of trade debtors and contract assets during the year
ended 31 March 2019 is as follows:

REBZE2019F3H831BLEEE

FPh PR

RRERENEENEERBEREMRNMG

ERMSAENE AR

3 2
X X

REZE2019F3A31HLFE - BUERR
ReENEENREBREBNT

Lifetime
ECL-not Lifetime ECL-
credit- credit-
Trade debtors impaired impaired Total
& Uit AR 3% EREFED EREFED
FHEREER HFAUGEHEEGR
—JEEHBEE —(EHAEE a8k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 (note i) A2018F481H
(BFaEi) 492 3,548 4,040
Exchange adjustments IR = (232) (232)
Impairment losses for FOMBEERERSE
new financial assets 871 - 871
Reversal of impairment BROERIAZBEESE
losses recognised (note ii)  (FffaEii) 477) (3,316) (3,793)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3831H 886 - 886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

23. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON 23. BIg IR B & ¥ E R iR EH T
TRADE DEBTORS AND CONTRACT & (&)

ASSETS (continued)

Lifetime
ECL-not
credit-
Contract assets impaired Total
eHEE BEEFEY
RHEHER
—JEEHEE a8k
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 April 2018 (note i) R2018%E4 818 (HEEi) 660 660
Impairment losses for FENERRERIE
new contract assets 351 351
Reversal of impairment BECHRIAZBESE
losses recognised (note ii) (g &Eii) (563) (563)
At 31 March 2019 7201963 831H 448 448
Notes: et
(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 April (i) AEEER2018F481BEREREE

2018 and comparative information is not restated.

(i) The reversal of impairment losses for trade debtors (ii)
and contract assets existed at 1 April 2018 during
the year ended 31 March 2019 are mainly due to
settlement in full of trade debtors and contract
assets with gross carrying amounts of HK$3,793,000
and HK$563,000, respectively.

B 75 325 2 B 0% FL I W E Bt 8L
%o

REZ201963A8310 L EE - BER
2018F4 1B ENEREREENE
ENBESEXENHNBEEERE
“1E 5 Bl 53,793,0005% 7T 5 563,000
THERRRRENEEMK-

There is no transfer between the above categories REZE2019F3A310 L FE - LilFEH
during the year ended 31 March 2019. Z B EER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

i} 5% #R % M X

24, BITRBRRES

Bank balances and cash represent cash held by
the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less at interest
rate ranged from 0.01% to 2.45% (2018: of 0.01%)
per annum as at 31 March 2019.

At 31 March 2019, bank balances and cash
of HK$10,185,000 (2018: HK$1,549,000) were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) which is not
a freely convertible currency in the international
market. The exchange rate of RMB is regulated
by the PRC government and the remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Bank balances and cash are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities are set out below.

RITEBRBESAAKERFEZHER
FREARZHBEAB=EALUT 2 EHRT
TR0 ZEFERAN2019F3 831 BN F
0.01%%E2.45% (20185 :0.01% ) W &
FZRFTR

M2019F3A31H RBITEBRRESA
10,185,00058 T (20184 : 1,549,000
L) UARE (TAR®])HE - AR
FAIEEBE TS LEHABR ARMER
SHEBNEE MEZSE2EAFTEE
I BESTHEBRNERNINESH

LB EEER 2 hEER U ZE
SIEZRTESRRREE|IIMT -

2019 2018
20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FTHExT

United States Dollar (“USD") Xt ([T ]) 10 462
Euro (“EUR") &t (TBR7T ) 7 8
RMB AR 564 1,094

Details of the impairment assessment on bank
balances for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. FE {1 R 5% B K fih FE £ B IR
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade payables P& 13 BRFX 10,013 5,560
Retention payable — amount EAREE€ - —FRENZFIE
payable within one year 12,752 14,392
Accrued costs for FESHE R TR A
construction work 13,740 22,447
Accrued operating costs et EMARE R
and charges 1,879 308
Accrued staff costs FEstE TR 12,418 15,288
Accrued listing expenses st ETmER 2,566 806
Rental deposits received BWESRE 444 444
53,812 59,245

The credit period on purchase of goods and
payment for subcontractors’ works is ranged from 0

to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

BERRRIEBIRRENRZEE

BN F0ZE90H -

BARRZIREDMBRESERERRZ

presented based on the invoice date at the end of ZHHEYMT:
each reporting period:

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THT
Within 30 days 30HA 4,122 2,225
31 - 60 days 31£60H 1,491 710
61 - 90 days 61290H 1,562 254
Over 90 days HiEBI0H 2,838 2,371
10,013 5,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% $R 2= Ml 5F
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

26. PROVISIONS 26. 1% i
The Group's provisions are analysed for reporting AEBZBENREREVAEZI A
purposes as: ap:
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FET
Current liabilities REEE 33,666 29,895
Non-current liabilities FREBERE 61,589 76,246
95,255 106,141
The movement of the Group's provisions are as AEEREBE2EBUOT:
follows:

Provision for
Warranty rectification

provision work Total
RIEEH BWTEEMG |k

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT THET THET

At 1 April 2018 2018F48 18 42,164 63,977 106,141
Additions NE 1,556 23,784 25,340
Utilisation A (2,309) (33,441) (35,750)
Interest expense F B & H 2,047 = 2,047
Reversal B E (2,523) = (2,523)
At 31 March 2019 72019%3H31H 40,935 54,320 95,255
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26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

PROVISIONS (continued)

The warranty provision represents management'’s
best estimate of the Group’s liability under the
warranty period, mainly for a period of maximum of
15 years from the end of the defect liability period
for provision of design, supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain walls services. The
estimated cost of work is determined based on
size of the project, relevant correspondences and
contracts with customers and management’s prior
experience on warranty claim in the past.

The provision for rectification work relates to the
cost of work to be carried out for rectification of
aluminium windows and curtain walls supplied
to the Group’s customers during the defect
liability period, mainly for a period of maximum
of 2 years, based on size of the project, relevant
correspondence and contracts with customers
and management’s prior experience with the
consideration of the rectification work claim in the
past. These amounts have not been discounted
for the purpose of measuring the provision for
rectification work because the effect is not material.

AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/A RELATED
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the amount due
to Hanison Construction (BVI) is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
Included in the amount due to a related company
of HK$9,600,000 as at 31 March 2019 represents a
return of excess capital contribution from Hanison
Construction (BVI) for the purpose of the Listing
to enable the Company to achieve a minimum
consolidated net asset value of HK$500,000,000
upon the Listing. The entire balance as at 31 March
2019 has been subsequently settled.

26.

27.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

s =)
RIEREREEBYEAEBMRIZHEE

Kz ket - R ZERERRES
FiEdg 2 SEEFHARERGE  RIEME
ENRBEEHERRE —REREISF
HYHARE o fhET i TR TIARIZIR B ARAR -
HEEFNBEBERHRENUREERER
RBERERRZBELRMEE -

BYTIRBBIRAEENREEEN
AEEEFRHEZEERFRETEXR
i TARA (ARIBEE AR EEFRE
ERARENUREEEEEBEENR
TERARREZBEERMETE) - R4
EENEER-—BRERE2FHHE A
REEZELTER  WZESHEL R
SRR TREREETRER

BAEEREAT —FHRB
LFHRIA

R2019%F R2018F3A31H « E
Hanison Construction (BVI)FXI1E & &
KH - 2EREZREREE -R2019
F3A318 ST AEAF—BBEELA
FXI189,600,00058 jt J3 i HHanison
Construction (BVI)3t £ B BIFE(TEE
e UMERATR EHEEHRLE
& 7 ¥ 18500,000,00058 7T ° 7420194
3AAMEEEME HEE S

£=Z
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

28. iR ERIR

MEIGFEEMBARRERMS - & TELER
HEEREECHEERE RUBRER
AV IR SE R TR AR BR PR ERY D AT 0TS

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T8t

Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE - 6
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE (85) (37)
(85) 31

The followings are the major deferred tax assets
(liabilities) of the Group and movements thereon
during the current and prior year:

RAFER E-—FE AEEFZELEHR
HEE (BB RESBHIIMT

ECL
provision
of trade
Accelerated debtors and
tax contract
depreciation  Tax losses assets Total
& Uit AR 3k Bt
BNREDN
b 3E 1 U RHES
e RAGE B iR et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T#ET THT FHET
At 1 April 2017 M20175F4818 58 - - 58
(Charge) credit to (i8R NR) FTAER

profit or loss (MtEE14)

(note 14) (446) 357 - (89)
At 31 March 2018 M2018F3A31H (388) 357 - (31)
Effect of initial M2018F481H B X

recognition of HKFRS FE A& B M B | &

9 on 1 April 2018 ZRAFIOFMEE

(note 3) (Bf&E3) - - 190 190
Charge to profitor B MR (MFE14)

loss (note 14) (138) (99) (7) (244)
At 31 March 2019 M201963A31H (526) 258 183 (85)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$1,685,000 (2018:
HK$2,285,000) available for offset against future
profit. As at 31 March 2019, a deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$1,563,000 (2018: HK$2,163,000) of such losses.
As at 31 March 2019, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining
approximately HK$122,000 (2018: HK$122,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All
the unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had deductible
temporary differences of approximately
HK$5,010,000 (2019: nil) mainly arising from
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors and inventories. No deferred tax asset had
been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it was not probable that
taxable profit would be available against which the
deductible temporary differences could be utilised.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

28. EERIRA (&)

M2019F3A31H AEBARHHZH
T8 E5 18 49 51,685,00058 JT (20184 :
2,285,00078 7T ) » A fit A LUK 8 R 2R i
Ko A2019F3A31B  EMEEEE
#91,563,00058 T (20184 : 2,163,00058
TU)HERIEE B I & B 0 201953 A31
H > HASETERIRIORFMR - 8L R
FI£R49122,000/% 7T (20184 : 122,000%
70) MR E S B RIELERIBEE -
FERERARIEFEIERALEE -

FA2018F3831H » AR&E B HY AT H1R i b
= %1#95,010,00058 jt (20194 : &) - %
EREBEWERRRFE BRI R EE
B oHRATRAREEERB AR AR AT
HUR B B =50 MO SR LA B o] 4R ER B
EEBRRAEREREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital shown in the consolidated
financial statements as at 1 April 2017 represented
the aggregate of the issued share capital of Million
Hope Industries (HK) and Heroic Elite.

Details of share capital of the Company are
disclosed as follows:

29. Bk &

M2017F4R 1B 2B BRRFZS
CBRAIEESTEX (F8) REHNT %

ITIRAZBA

RRABBRAFBHRENT :

Number Share
Notes of shares capital
U Bir&E Bx
HK$'000
FExT
Ordinary shares of BREEIEBTZEER
HK$0.1 each
Authorised: EE
At 20 February 2018 120185%2H20H
(date of incorporation), (XM BE) -
31 March 2018 2018%3H31H (i) 3,800,000 380
Increase on 72019528228 &N
22 February 2019 (i) 4,996,200,000 499,620
As at 31 March 2019 201993 A31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE:
At 20 February 2018 72018528208
(date of incorporation) (sEf Az A E7) (i) 1 =
Issue of shares upon the BHBRITRG
Reorganisation (iii) 99 -
At 31 March 2018 R20185%F3A31H 100 -
Issue of shares BT 4 (iv) 436,332,530 43,633
At 31 March 2019 720193 A31H 436,332,630 43,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 20 February 2018, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with an
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
3,800,000 shares of HK$0.1 each with one share
allotted and issued to the initial subscriber at par. On
the same date, the initial subscriber transferred his
one share to Hanison Construction (BVI) at par.

Pursuant to written resolutions passed by the sole
shareholder of the Company on 22 February 2019,
the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$500,000,000 by
the creation of 4,996,200,000 additional new shares
of HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company.

On 13 March 2018, through the Reorganisation
(set out in note 2), 99 shares of the Company were
allotted and issued to Hanison Construction (BVI)
at par. The new shares issued rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares in issue.

On 14 March 2019, 436,332,530 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company were allotted and
issued to Hanison Construction (BVI) at par for the
Listing at a cash consideration of HK$43,633,000. The
new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with
the existing shares in issue. On 19 March 2019, the
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

29. B8 & (&)

B &E

0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

M2018F2H208 AR AN EFHE
MR 3 0 A E B 7S £380,0007% 7T
2 #3,800,0007% 5 A% I {E0.178 7T 49 iR
B MBS RE AR ERERET
—BRA-BER UFRBAREED
Hanison Construction (BVI)E:EH —
BB AR o

RIBARD M — RERMN201962H22H
BRNEMRER  LEBRADQTR/RAN
FR4,996,200,000/% % i% T {B0.158 Jt 2
IR % - D BAE R A 380,000/
7T 3 h1 Z500,000,00058 T ©

MR2018FE3 13 AL AKLEHA
(GnBf F2F7 H) % X E fE @ Hanison
Construction (BVI)ED 2 & 3 179988 IR
B EBRITHRORAELEGRES
BRTROEERS AL

M2019F38148 AQAIE EHRMA
fB @ Hanison Construction (BVI)EZ2%
& 2% 17436,332,530k = IR H{E0.178
TZERRK RS NREH43,633,000/8
T BRITHRMONAEIEBYERE
ERITRMDEERS {0 R20195F
3198 A AT R REERAERL
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

&R 5 i 75 $R & B 5

30. i —MME LT

On 13 July 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third
party to acquire the entire issued share capital
of Waller Holdings together with the assignment
of shareholder’s loan at a consideration of
approximately HK$145,395,000. The acquisition was
completed on 14 August 2017. The major assets
of the acquisition are office units and car parking
spaces of a commercial property, Kings Wing
Plaza 1, situated in Shatin, New Territories. Waller
Holdings was acquired so as to mainly relocate the
Group and its fellow subsidiaries existing offices
to the commercial property. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the acquisition
does not constitute business combinations as
defined in HKFRS 3, therefore, the acquisition had
been accounted for as acquisition of assets.

The assets acquired and liabilities recognised
(excluding the assignment of shareholder’s loan) on
the date of acquisition, are as follows:

M2017F78138 AEBH—-FH
NE=ZRITLEEHEUAKEWaller
HoldingsZ 2 E R ITR A ERBEMN
RERE XK R E A #145,395,000% 7T °
EIEWEER2017F8A14B TR/ - RIEIK
BYRZ2ETEEERANURHRVEH—E
EENE (IREESE—H) 2PLE
By RFEN - YiEWaller HoldingsE
EDNATHEAEBEREBRENEBELARZ
BERAEMEBEZZHENE -ALNTE
ERE REWBY TEREBYER
HERERFAAEZLESH Btk
_EKWBEEAEEWBAR.

REBERRBzEERER 2EE (T
BREENRREROT:

As at

14 August 2017

M20174F

8H14H

HK$'000

FTHET

Investment properties REWE 56,300

Property, plant and equipment M- RERZE 89,070

Deposits and prepayments RERFENNRIE 25
Consideration transferred, satisfied by amount HEEAE

due to immediate holding company (U EEER AR KBRS 145,395
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, immediate
holding company paid an amount of approximately
HK$145,395,000 on behalf of the Group for the
settlement of the acquisition of a subsidiary.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the entire
share capital of Million Hope Industries (HK) was
transferred to the Group from Rich Color Limited for
a consideration, settled in the form of a promissory
note, of approximately HK$3,385,000. Rich Color
Limited assigned the promissory note to the
immediate holding company subsequently.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

31.

32.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

FEREXH

MNEE2018F3A31B L EE  HIZIZER
N EMR R AR E B X {449145,395,00058 T
HIFRIE » LU U BE — R B A =] o

NEBZ2018F3A3MBALFE  XTEX
(F78) 2R AMHRich Color Limited
HETAKE K{EXNH3,385000%
Tt AR EERN A X4 E ° Rich Color
LimitedBE & K2R R EIE HE T HIEEZ
NEI

EEHRRRE
EHEEA
REREIAR  AEERET THHEER

ERECARREAENRIBE RN
Siot

2019 2018

20194 20185

HK$’'000 HK$'000

T#T FET

Within one year —FR 77 94
In the second to fifth F_EZEFELF (BREEEWSE)

year inclusive 55 27

132 121

Operating lease payments represent fixed rentals REHEREEAEEREBRAERE

payable by the Group for its office and car parking
space. Leases are negotiated for a term of not more
than three years.

BEURNzEERE HOH R A
HABEB=%F-

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

32. EEHERE &)

As lessor ESHBEA

RESHR FAEECHRREVEEBEF
AA HERRREESWT:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments in respect of the
investment properties:

2019 2018

20194 20185

HK$'000 HK$'000

TH#T FET

Within one year —FR 1,555 1:558
In the second to fifth E_EERF

year inclusive (BREEEMF) 1,166 2921

2,721 4,276

MARER BT TBEB=F-

Leases are negotiated for a term of not more than
three years.
33. PERFORMANCE BONDS AND 3B.BHRERREAARAR
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) Performance bonds () BRES
R2019F3A31H  AEEME
FENBEEZRBRNBENRE
© %110,559,0005% 7t (20184 :
87,218,0007& 7T ) ° A201853 H31
H ' Hanison Construction (BVI)%
REBERNZERENBNRE
ESRMHQAFER -REE2019F38
BNHLEEFE ZERRCEMBR-

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had
outstanding performance bonds in respect
of construction contracts amounting to
HK$110,559,000 (2018: HK$87,218,000). As at
31 March 2018, Hanison Construction (BVI)
provided corporate guarantees for these
outstanding performance bonds granted to the
Group. These guarantees had been released
during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

33. PERFORMANCE BONDS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, certain fellow subsidiaries
of the Company (the “Fellow Subsidiaries”)
and Million Hope Industries (HK) provided a
joint and several guarantee to an insurance
company in respect of a surety bond facility
granted to Million Hope Industries (HK) and
the Fellow Subsidiaries and an amount of
approximately HK$57,350,000 was utilised by
the Fellow Subsidiaries. The guarantee had
been released during the year ended 31 March
2019.

No provision for financial guarantee contracts
had been recognised in the consolidated
financial statements as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair value of
the financial guarantee contracts on initial
recognition and the amount of provision to be
recognised subsequently was insignificant.

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share option scheme

Pursuant to Hanison’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted and became
effective on 21 September 2011, all directors
(including independent non-executive directors),
full-time employees and consultants of Hanison, its
subsidiaries and its associated companies are eligible
to participate in the Scheme.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

3. BNGEERERARERT =&

(b) WARRR

R2018F3A318 XA AETHE
ZELAR ([ARMEBAR ) KE
SEX (BB IRETEX(FHB)
REBRMBARERNRRIRE
HEA—RBREATRRHARRRE
AR BERAMBAREEBAY
57,350,000/ T ° A& Z 201953 A
B1ELEE ZERCERR-

REMBH/REKREIMBERSE
NEB RERARAESIRA
MERNMBRARSHZAFER
RERBEIANBRBEELIBEKX

3. LRI ZMRRZR S

R B iEat &

RIEFEE AV IBARREST 2 ([ZEt®]) (R
201MF9R2NBEHRMR EXR) - HES -
HBARRHEBE AR ZMEES (&
BRI HTES) 2BEEREBS
B8 EZEK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

i} 5% #R % M X

3. U RBZRS (&)

According to the Scheme, the board of directors of
Hanison may at its discretion grant options to the
eligible participants of Hanison, its subsidiaries and
its associated companies to subscribe for shares in

Hanison.

The following tables disclose movements in the
share options granted to the directors of the
Company (including executive directors and non-
executive directors) and employees of the Group
under the Scheme of Hanison during the year.

Mk iEet® (&)

RiEZTE BBEES A HEEEE -
HNBARKRAEBMENRA 2R EKRBHE
EREABEBRONBRE-

TREERAF EREEE A ZETEIR
FARAES (BRUTESEFITE
BIRAEEREENERENEBHER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E2019F3A31HLEFEE
Exercise  Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding
Category of Date Exercise price as at during the as at
participants of grant period per share 1 April 2018 period 18 March 2019*
120184 #20195
4H1H 3A18H
2REFY #HAM friExim BRITER ARITE REATTE R AT
HK$
BT
Directors 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96% 282,500 (282,500) -
25 November 2019
= 20145115261 201451182662
2019115250
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 1.54 28,052,000 (27,749,500) 302,500
4 September 2022
201759750 201759R50 2
202249848
Employees 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96* 14,125 - 14,125
25 November 2019
=] 20145115261 20145118260 F
2019F11H25H
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 1.54 394,000 (351,000) 43,000
4 September 2022
201799858 2017F9A58 2
20225954R
28,742,625 (28,383,000) 359,625

x It represents the date of the day before the Listing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

34. IR IMNRIRZIR R (#

MRz iEetE ()

EZ2018F3A31HILFE

Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding
Category of Date Exercise price as at during during the as at
participants of grant period pershare 1 April 2017 the year year 31 March 2018
20175 20185
4810 2 3A31H
SEEE KA TEHE SRTEE HATE REARE RERTE e RATE
HK$
B
Directors 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96* 7,853,500 - (7,571,000) 282,500
25 November 2019
£ 20145118268  2014F11A26H%
2019%11A250
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 1.54 - 28,052,000 - 28,052,000
4 September 2022
20179A58 201759858 2
2022F9H4H
Employees 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96% 33,900 - (19,775) 14,125
25 November 2019
&S 2014F118268 20145112682
2019%11H25R
5 September 2017 5 September 2017 to 1.54 - 394,000 - 394,000
4 September 2022
201759A5H 201759858 2
202249745
7,887,400 28,446,000 (7,590,775) 28,742,625
* It represents the last adjusted exercise price per 2 ZERARBRKRAERSRITEE
share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to certain directors of
the Company by Hanison were for their services
provided to the Group, Hanison and certain fellow
subsidiaries of the Company. In addition, the Group
also shared employee resources with other fellow
subsidiaries. The amount of equity-settled share-
based payments in relation to the share options
granted to the directors of the Company, employees
of the Group, employees of Hanison and fellow
subsidiaries of the Company were allocated to the
Group according to the extent of their time and
resources spent on the services provided to the
Group. The Group recognised a total expense of
approximately HK$2,645,000 (2019: nil) during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Details of fair value measurement of share options
granted during the year ended 31 March 2019 was
disclosed in Hanison’s annual report dated 26 June
2018.
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i} 5% #R % M X

3. U RBZRS (&)

MRz #Est & ()

AARBETESARERLEE  HER
KRARETRRAKB QR ARENIRE
ME SR TR - b REE IR
HihRAMBARRZANER - BFAR
AAEE FAEEEE HEHBERAAFR
ZMBAREESMNBRENERUER
HEROAEBRNINBENRERER
rEBRUREMEENKEARERS
BFAEE - AEZE2018F3H31HLEF
B AEEEZLRX%2,645000% T
(20195 : &)

MEBE2019F3A31BLLEE  CEEBR
AV ENEFBERENEBRHA
201856526 H I E IR A o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Share award scheme

On 28 July 2016 (the “Adoption Date”), Hanison
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain
persons (“Eligible Persons”), including employees
and directors of Hanison and its subsidiaries, and
to give incentives to them in order to retain them
for the continuing operation and development of
Hanison and its subsidiaries, and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of Hanison and
its subsidiaries. Subject to any early termination as
may be determined by directors of Hanison, the
Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for 3
years from the Adoption Date.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the board of
directors of Hanison may, from time to time, at its
absolute discretion, select any Eligible Persons to
participate in the Share Award Scheme as selected
participants and determine the shares to be
granted, vesting criteria and conditions, and period
for the shares to be vested, subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the Share Award Scheme.

The following tables disclose movements in the
share awards granted to the directors of the
Company (including executive directors and non-
executive directors) and employees of the Group
under the Share Award Scheme during the year.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

3. U RBZRS (&)

B 173 5% W &1 &

B j%5 72201678280 ([#MBEH )
BRan— E IR 40 R B a8 (AR {7 58 Wy &t
B URBETAL (TEBBALD
(BREBRANBARZEERES)
EH 2 ERIE R EA TRE #FLiRE
BRERBBLABREWBLR R ZIFEE
BRERMD  RAEEREWNEQRE
—SBRWSIEBAL - RIFBBEST
BERERAALL - BRI M R BT BB ER
MBEHE=FRERRER -

RER G RBTE BEESS RN
EREMBEEIMSERALIEAREER
SHRESHERDREE  WEEHR
MR1D - 5B AR R AR A R 4D 55 1B 1
[ - MR IR R B B P& 2 IR TR AR
4 PR 352 PR

TREERAFEREBERDRBEER
FARARAES (BEATESHEFHNT
EE)RAKERENRBRONEEE
e

ESBEERBIRAS 2018/2019 F K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3. U RBZRS (&)

Share award scheme (Continued) B% {7 $E B &t 8 (@)
Number Number Number
of share of share of share
awards awards awards
outstanding Granted  outstanding Vested  outstanding
Category of as at during as at during as at
participants Date of grant Vesting date 1 April 2017 the year 31 March 2018  the period 18 March 2019*
R20175 120185 20195
4A1H 3R31H 3A18H
EARTEZ HARTEZ HRITE
SHEEH RiiAH BERH RERHEE REARE ZBROHE RINEE <ZBRGZE
HK$
BT
Directors 10 March 2017 30 June 2018 25,982,000 - 25,982,000 (25,982,000) -
EE 2017%3410A 2018%6430A
Employees 10 March 2017 30 June 2018 293,000 - 293,000 (293,000) -
g 2017%3A108 2018%F6A30A
26,275,000 - 26,275,000  (26,275,000) -

& It represents the date of the day before the Listing.

Share awards granted to certain directors of
the Company by Hanison were for their services
provided to the Group, Hanison and certain fellow
subsidiaries of the Company before the Listing. In
addition, the Group also shared employee resources
with other fellow subsidiaries. The amount of
equity-settled share-based payments in relation to
the share awards granted to the directors of the
Company, employees of the Group and employees
of Hanison and fellow subsidiaries of the Company
were allocated to the Group according to the extent
of their time and resources spent on the services
provided to the Group. The Group recognised a
total expense of approximately HK$2,460,000 (2018:
HK$9,868,000) during the year 31 March 2019.
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ARRETEERFRER LTAIALE
B EBERAATETRRMBL RN
REMREMEEBE R TRERG U
I AREBTEEMERMNBARRE
ANER-BRFAQAES A5HE
E-BEBRAQATBDZAMEBATEEN
HERROVEBUEREERDAER
WEZHFEDREFESEANEBIRHRE
FiEBNEEEERDEFAEE R
BZE2019F3A31HILLEE - AEEH®
RHR X #52,460,00058 T (20184 :
9,868,000/8 T ) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% to 10% of the relevant
payroll costs for each employee to the MPF Scheme,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 for the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a specific
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$5,491,000 (2018: HK$4,803,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

35. B kiR FIEHE

FEEAEBERAERESEFRR
T8 - BEFEETHEERAEER
BEEDM UZEARHNESEARF
B AKEOBESTEMERRB RN
EEHEAHFERAN5%E10% HEES
MR RABRE - MR RS T8I E A A
B AR U A £ PR %$30,00078 T ©

AEBENTEES S EFEBFEFN
BXEERABEANE - ARERARTE
B B9 15 E B 20 B 8 R R AR AU R IR
UABBERARMES - AREHRARNK
BAGHENEEERFHIEEHEK-

REZRERNERX5491,0008 T
(20184 : 4,803,000/8 7t) I AN E B AR
BEAGTEIR AT AN RESZETE
Z AR FREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. A XS
In addition to the transactions and balances BREEHBERREMBIBEZRER
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial RN REBTE L THIBEH RS

statements, the Group also entered into following
related party transactions:

(a) Transactions with Hanison and its subsidiaries, (a)
in which CCM Trust and certain discretionary
trusts continue to have beneficial interests

HEBEREMBARET RS
CCM TrustR & FEBETER LT
BBBEBNZERFTEEERE

subsequent to the Listing: m
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHET
Design, supply and installation 2& B S5 B A S VIR E &

of aluminium windows Bk HER

and curtain walls services ZHERBEUA (FIEED)

income from subsidiaries

of Hanison (note i) 1,940 4,085
Equity-settled share-based B2 o5 LA B Y AR 22 45 R IR 40

payments charged by ARERNXZAEE ()

Hanison (note i) 2,460 12,513
Management fee expenses  BIEBE XN EREMR

paid to Hanison (note i) (FfHEEiD) 654 1,573
Rental expenses in respect mEBHME AR XT2

of office premise paid to WASFESER

subsidiaries of Hanison (M EFiRii)

(notes i and ii) - 942
Rental expenses in respect EEBHRBARZGZ

of a car parking space paid FEMNEEEH

to a subsidiary of Hanison (Mg &Eii)

(note ii) 60 60
Rental income received from BUWEBKHEBATZ

subsidiaries of Hanison el A (MEEikii)

(notes i and ii) 1,555 410
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a MR2018F3A31H & A B 7 B2 H s [t B
commitment in relation to contracts entered NEFTVERARMHEEE R SRR HE
into with subsidiaries of Hanison in respect of REZEBRBNSNELERE REBW
provision of design, supply and installation of B X EEH 52,400,000 T (20195 :

aluminium windows and curtain walls services ;) o

and the outstanding contract sum amounted
to approximately HK$2,400,000 (2019: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with entities in which certain
directors of the ultimate holding company
have substantial interests prior to the Listing.
Subsequent to the Listing, Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson, a director of the Company, has
substantial interest in the entities.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

36. ABEA XD (&)

(b) HERZKAERATNETESRLD
MEETERERER 2 ERET
MRZ - LhiK  RARESEMRE
TERZSERERE RS-

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Design, supply and EEREBNERET HER
installation of aluminium ZHERBEWA (M)
windows and curtain walls
services income (note i) 1,631 -
Rental expenses paid in ENRAGAMREENZ
respect of office premise HEEA (MEikii)
and a car parking space
(notes i and ii) - 16
Rental expenses paid in B FENZASER
respect of a car parking (FfFaEii)
space (note ii) 34 34

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Compensation of key management personnel
represents the remuneration of the directors
of the Company during both years, which is
disclosed in note 13.

Notes:

(i)  The above transactions were discontinued upon the
Listing of the Company.

(i) Details of operating lease commitments for rental
income and expenses are set out in note 32.

(0 ETEEBABZHMH

TEEEBAEBCZHFMIERARATES
KR EEEARNNEFN BE B RIK
ERMIEE13 ©

MIeE :

() LEARZHRARRLEHELKILE-

(i) FAEESWARZHZEEHERER
BERMEE32 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to its
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group as at 31 March
2019 consists of share capital and reserves. The
capital structure of the Group as at 31 March 2018
consisted of net debt, which included amount due
to immediate holding company as disclosed in note
27, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity,
comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends
and issue of new shares and debts.
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37. B MBEREE

AEEEEES CENERNBREAEER
NEBREAUBBELCELTAEE B
TEBERERRER 2BREFEM
RRRFERAD R - AR E AR R
BE-—FEBEETZ-

R2019F3A310  AEEMNEARGEREH
BRAK fEEAEKR20185F38310 &~
SENEAXERBFER (BERME
7WBE RN EEERARFIA L
BRREERREEE) MES (B83REAR
@) Ak o

RARESTEHMANERER - ERR
NZ—MD  RRPESEEEERAR
HEEESHRANER - RENQTES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
debtors, deposits and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables,
amount due to a related company and amount due
to immediate holding company.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. ¥ ITH
Categories of financial instruments MBIAR
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Financial assets MBRE
Financial assets at amortised cost REERARYIR MK EE 398,723 N/A A 78 A
Loans and receivables (including & & EUFRE
cash and cash equivalents) (BiEEERES2ZH) N/A F5&EH 103,467
Financial liabilities MBAR
At amortised cost 2 18 85 B AN 38,494 97,404
Financial risk management objectives and BMEGRBEEARRBE

REBWYHETEEERVRNR - BER
Hip W R - RITEBRR RS - BAIR
AR H AR FRR - B — BB A R
EREMNEEEZERQBRE

BEAZEM BT A ZHBRAEREMER
B ZENB I RS K 2R RN
ZERRCHRENT X -EEEBEER
ERZ TR LI RRESE Rt RIE
EiENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities is
mainly HK$ and RMB, the currencies in which
most of the transactions are denominated.
The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets of the group
entities at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in note 24.

The management of the Group considers that
the currency risk of those monetary assets
is not significant to the Group. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

In addition, the carrying amount of the
foreign currency denominated inter-company
balances recorded in the statement of financial
position of the group entities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

38. MBI H &)

MERRERERREER 7

h 45 [ BR

(i)

Em b

EEERCUKEEBIEABIR
ARE KFAIRZHUBTRA
RBTE - SEERENREHARU
IMEHECEREENRABERSE
RHiEE24 °

AEEEEEARZEEREEN
ENEREAEEMSEREK-
REE B A EIMEER R - R
i B RS B ME B R I A
BREREZEREPERINE R -

Lo R E RN E B E B
RRFRARRUINE ST EN A RBE
ERAVARE(ELNT

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHExT

HK$ against RMB BILEARYE - (1,747)
RMB against HK$ ARBE BT (48,184) (31,721)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rate of RMB against HK$. The
financial impact on the exchange differences
arising from foreign currency of HK$ against
RMB is expected to be insignificant to the
Group. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in
respective functional currency (i.e. HK$) against
the relevant foreign currency (i.e. RMB). 10%
is the sensitivity rate used which represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in a foreign exchange
rate. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 10% change in a foreign
currency rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where
HK$ strengthens 10% against RMB. For a 10%
weakening of HK$ against RMB, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-
tax profit and the amount below would be
negative.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. MBEIH &)

MERRERERREEK &7

miREE (&)

(i)

EXmb (&)

AEEFEZARBEZBTERRK
BN E -FHHBLLARBNWE
HERB RN BEEZEHAEE
MEXAREKR TERFAVNAREBE
Thee & HE (BNE ) A AERESNE (BD
ARY) EART BK10% 8 09 SR
Ee10%)3BEEF M I/INEREET
fE IR 2 & 38 B B I AT ER A I BURR
EhE -BEEDMESEUINE
FHEZAREBFEREE  HRFER
R10%INEETE RS E T REIRE o L
TEERTEBLEAREAEI0%
B BR Bt 1505 A RO 3B NME o i B T 5
ARBEEI0% SEHBRHMEE
FMEREENERFE BTiHS
EAEH-

2019 2018

20195 20185

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

RMB against HK$ AR HE T 4,023 2,649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. As at 31 March 2019,
the carrying amounts of the financial assets best
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties.

Details of the impairment assessment on trade
debtors and contract assets are set out in note 23.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
for deposits, other receivables and bank balances
comprises the following categories:

i} 5% #R % M X

38. MBI H &)

MERRERERREE @)

EEEE

R2018F4 8 1 H FEH & BB 75 iR &£ A
FEECEAEF S ER BN OHE

FERBERERZHTFRESNEKE
HMEHAEEMHEYISERNER-
M2019F38310 MK EENREEBER
EARFEERSEERMBAMO - AR
HHR AEERRZYUFARBITEMEM
EZUBEBINREREER -

BERYIRAR RS NEENRENMGF
BN EE23 ©

SRS L A I R R AT A
BB PO BB S FR L BT AR A5 AR L T 4
Gk

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
) ®E HERHMEEGRHESE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due
amounts.
EE REHFHEARBBE BB ET A 12EARHREERE
IR
Doubtful Amount is > 30 days past due or there has Lifetime ECL

been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition.

- not credit-impaired

A& BRAEBI0A U LS ANEBRAUREE EEFEPRNEESE
R R RN - FEERE

In default Amount is > 90 days past due or there is Lifetime ECL
evidence indicating the asset is credit- - credit-impaired
impaired.

EX RAREBHMORU LS ERERAEECE EETEPRNEESE
BREERE" —-EERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the gross carrying amount
of deposits amounted to HK$221,000, and
management of the Group makes periodic
individual assessments on the recoverability of
deposits based on the counterparty’s credit quality.
The management of the Group believes there is
no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balances of deposits. Accordingly, for
the purpose of impairment assessment for deposits,
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12m ECL. The directors of the Company
considered that ECL for deposits is insignificant as at
31 March 2019.

The management of the Group makes individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information starting
from 1 April 2018. The management of the Group
believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balances of
other receivables. Accordingly, for the purpose of
impairment assessment for other receivables, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
12m ECL. The directors of the Company considered
that ECL for other receivables is insignificant as at 31
March 2019.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. MBEIH &)

BERRERERREE @)

EEmbE (&)

201844 4 1 H FEH & B E 73K &£ 5
Bz EANEFIEE RN OHE
(%)

2019 3A31H HEeWAKRAES
221,000 AEBEREREXZY
FHNEEEZHRESNTREMETE
HRERNFT G AEEEEERS ~&
EiZREZEREZERNAEEER R
WAREBR A BIRESBEFEMS
BEBERESHRIELEHEERSE
NWEREFE-AQRTNEERB BEER
2019F3A31A 2R ERBL &
Ko

TEEEEERBEELAERLE BEL
BNE2018FAF1BERAB2EERE
A RTRE MR - 39 E Ath FE WG IE A9 ] U (=]
METEBFE - AEBEEBRE K
EEEMERFIEZ R ERERNRE
EEERBRIETERE  BEMER
REREFEMS FEBEREZR
REREHEEBENSETE R
AEBERA HtEWRFRIER2019F438
B1EZEHEERBY FTEKX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38. MBI H &)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 (Continued)

The management of the Group considers the
bank balances that are deposited with financial
institutions with high credit rating to be low credit
risk financial assets. The management of the Group
considers that the probability of default is negligible
based on published credit rating reports and
accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised.

The following table provides information about the
credit risk exposures of deposits, other receivables
and bank balances which are subject to ECL
assessment:

BERRERERREE @)

EEmbE (&)

201844 1H FEHZ BRI 3K & E R
BEIR ZEANEFWIEER M OME
(%)

FEEERERS FRREFEEFNRZ
ERMBNRTESRAEERBRBIEN
MHEE -REBELHNEEFRBE &
SEEEERRENTRMERE  Fiti
EEREBRE-

TR ARTEBE BRI G2
& EAEERERBTEBNEEAR
aH

Gross carrying

Financial assets External Internal 12m ECL or amount as at

at amortised cost credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL 31 March 2019
128 A R/

EEBRS 20195

BREBEFIIRZ EEEEY 3A31H®

MBEE Sh BB 15 HEAFEHR M BB {5 AT R FHEREGR H#IREE

HK$'000

FET

Deposits N/A Performing 12m ECL 221
®e FiE A IER 1218 A 72 A
FEBE

Other receivables N/A Performing 12miEGL 1,562
H i fE WL 5K I8 iE A IERE 1218 A e #A
FEBE

Bank balances A3 - Aa2 N/A 12m ECL 303,981
R1T4EER TiE A 121& A 78 #A
FEBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
before application of HKFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018

As at 31 March 2018, other than those financial
assets whose carrying amounts best represented
the maximum exposure to credit risk, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which would
cause a financial loss to the Group arising from
the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantees provided by the Group was
disclosed in note 33.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors
of the Company had delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensured that
follow-up action was taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviewed the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses were made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors considered
that the Group’s credit risk was significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds was limited because
the majority of counterparties were banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. MBEIH &)

BERRERERREE @)

EEmbE (&)

201844 4 1 H FEH & B E 73K &£ 5
E9W Z I ANE B Z E R 2O E

72018F3A31H ' BREREE RN R
HRESEERABNMBEEN ~&EEH
MIREMKEREENIALESEM
AZNUREEREEENESEER
B A MY RE33F I 5E o

REAREMRREEFERR A 2FE
ECRR-—AANEEEEEFERSE
FEEMRHMERERER  URARIUR
R B RS R EE < bhSh RE
B A 3R o H R AR 5 49 TR {E B & TE A9 AT WY
B 528 - LARE (R LA A U B & B H R 2R
BEBE -BUEMS ESR/AEEH
EERBEIRIEREE-

HREEXRZHFHEBKREETRE
BATEEETR BT WABHESH
EERBER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £x S fif 5% ¥k 22 B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
before application of HKFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018
(Continued)

The Group’s credit risk were primarily attributable
to and concentrated on trade debtors. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company had reviewed their recoverabilities
regularly to ensure that follow-up action is taken
timely. In this regard, the directors of the Company
considered that the credit risk on these balances
were significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019
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BERRERERREE @)

EEmbE (&)

201844 1H FEHZ BRI 3K & E R
EIR Z I AEE I ER M OHE
(%)

AEENEERBIERBALEFRE
WiER - AREREEERR  AARE
EEHERBRRIERZ TR E M - #EREE
RESRIEERE - REMES A ARE
ERRNERZEERNEERARKIER
&

i Bh 38 & R BR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & Bil ¥ ¥k 2% Bl 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. MBI R (@)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

BERRERERREE @)

mENR SR (&)

T 3R B AN 5 [ L A M E B R AR TR Y B
BEBEZENRRIM A - WRFITEY
BEE WRDBREAEETREEEE
ZBEFEEHZUBAERURBEERE
R TN B EE 2 28 B RIER
EERAHEE -ZRBEMNERAER
TR e

Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year cash flow amount
mEFy REX KA
ERfIZ BFAR—-F HeR8RA IR {E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TR THERT
As at 31 March 2019 2019534310
Non-derivative financial FTEMBAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables BRI K EttEAFIE = 25,331 25,331 25,331
Amount due to a FEff — R BA R 1 R KR
related company - 13,163 13,163 13,163
38,494 38,494 38,494
As at 31 March 2018 M201853A31H
Non-derivative financial FTEMBAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables  FEfT BRI R H A FE( 7B - 19,952 19,952 19,952
Amount due to immediate BT B ZEAR A BFHIE
holding company - 77,452 77,452 77,452
Financial guarantee BRERERN
contracts - 57,350 57,350 -
154,754 154,754 97,404
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z & Bil 3% 3R 2% M 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. MBI R (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts as at 31 March 2018 included
above for financial guarantee contracts were the
maximum amounts the Group could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount was claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations as at 31 March 2018, the Group
considered that it was more likely than not that no
amount would be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate was subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which was a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held
by the counterparty which were guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

39.

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash

£r 8 B 75 ¥ 2= Bl 5E
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

MERBELECARZHIER

TRAIAEEREXBELE 2EEE
B ERRERFRSEH MEXKE
A2 EBEDNEARERIARRRS RN
rEBGFERERERTIEAMER

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in BHRERZEE
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.
Amount Amount
due to due to Amount  Amounts
ultimate immediate due to due to
holding holding  arelated fellow  Bank and
company  company  company subsidiaries other loans Total
FEfF et et et
R¥EE HERER -HARABE BRKE BITR
KERE LFARE  LRARE  LFRE O HMHE®R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THExT TExT TR THERT THERT
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4581H 2,969 - - 37,143 127,028 167,140
Financing cash flows BERER (2,969)  (71,328) = (37,143)  (127,203)  (238,643)
Exchange adjustments ERTIETE - - - - 175 175
Settlement of the REKREBE R
acquisition of a W —mA
subsidiary on behalf of KB RIMFE
the Group (note 30) (BtzE30) - 145,395 = = = 145,395
Assignment of a promissory H &% Z 15
note (notes 2 and 30) (HEF2R30) - 3,385 - - - 3,385
At 31 March 2018 R201853A31H - 77,452 - - - 77,452
Financing cash flows BERER - (64,289) - = - (64,289)
Reclassification EX b - (13,163) 13,163 - - -
At 31 March 2019 72019%3H31H = - 13,163 - - 13,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %S Bif %% ¥R 2% B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVE

40. F 2 F) M K & B 6 s

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interest in a subsidiary R—ENEARNER 280,000 -
Current assets mEBEE
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUNFRIE - 2 & R AT FRIB - 951
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B B 2 Bl FRIE 71,752 73,373
Bank balance RITHEER 495 -
72,247 74,324
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables Hth FE S FRIR 3,372 806
Amount due to immediate EAEEERQRRE
holding company - 77,452
Amount due to a related company FE{+ — REEH A R FIE 13,163 -
16,535 78,258
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE (BE)FE 55,712 (3,934)
335,712 (3,934)
Capital and reserves BERR B
Share capital (&N 43,633 =
Reserves (EN] 292,079 (3,934)
335,712 (3,934)

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 17 June 2019 and is signed on its
behalf by:

CHUK KIN LUN
i R
DIRECTOR
EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &z Bil % £k 2% M 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BHZE2019F3A31BLFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. X AFIMBRARE GG &)
OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVE

(Continued)
Note: Movements in reserves of the Company: et AQRRBERE:
Other Accumulated
reserve losses Total
H fih 6 if RitBIR &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET F#E T
At 20 February 2018 1201852 H20H
(date of incorporation) (FEMAZ B ER) - - -
Loss and total comprehensive HiREER 2 HE X H4A5E
expense for the period - (3,934) (3,934)
At 31 March 2018 and M201853H318 K&
1 April 2018 2018%F4H1H - (3,934) (3,934)
Loss and total comprehensive FEEER
expense for the year EEXHEE - (22,630) (22,630)
Capital contribution from REEZZRATN
immediate holding company  *#& 318,643 - 318,643
At 31 March 2019 7201963 H831H 318,643 (26,564) 292,079
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31
March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

iﬁ y=\
7 (W }

i} 5% #R % M X

41. BB A F 1S

BRAFBEOT:

KN FEFA2019%F 2018538310 2 Kt

Place of Issued and fully Equity interests
incorporation/ Place of  paid share capital/ attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital to the Company Principal activities
(310 A BERTRARKE
HELRRE Rl B ERME EmEx ERTEEGRE FERE
2019 2018
20195 20185
Heroic Elite BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
g3 KBELEHS ) (E REER
Million Hope Industries (BVI) BVI Hong Kong US$35,897,437 100% 100% Investment holding
KBELEHS &8 35,897,437% T REER
Million Hope Industries (HK) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% 100% Design, supply and
EXTEX(F8) & BB 11,000,000/ 7T installation of
aluminium windows
and curtain walls
Rt HER
REREREAE
Million Hope (BVI) BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERLHE BB (EVH REZR
Paramount Forward BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Bl RERLHE B (Y REZR
Rich Victory Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
@i B B 18T NERE
Sunny Oriental Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
FEERAA B BB 18T REER
Waller Holdings BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERLHE B (ES REZR
Garden City Enterprises Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% = Inactive
RERLHE B (ES BEBKEE
Million Hope New-Tech PRC PRC HK$65,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture of
Building Supplies (Huizhou) HE A 65,000,000/ 7t aluminium windows
Limited (note ii) and design, supply
XEIFAZEMB (EM) and installation of
BRAR (M) aluminium windows
SERER
Rt BER
RERE

MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &z Bil % £k 2% M 5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BZ2019F3A31HLLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. BB L FHTS (&)

(Continued)

Notes: MisE :

(i) Other than Million Hope Industries (BVI), which is (i) BrA A B H # 3% H ZMillion Hope
directly held by the Company, all other companies Industries (BVI)%h: FTE E A B3 H
are indirectly held by the Company. ARATEEFE-

(i) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise. (i) ZHBARA—BIEBELELE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt b A ] B B 2 B A W 8 £ 9 AR

securities at any time during both years or B TR ERE S HNMN20195F 2018

outstanding at 31 March 2019 and 2018. FIANBERENELHS -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Bl 35 1 22

A summary of the published results and of the assets and  AEBRRENENBFE2C TR EEHE
liabilities of the Group for the last four financial years, as ZEREBGBHME  NIHEZEAFHRRA QT H
extracted from this annual report and the accountants’  HiA2019F2828H 2 t i X ArEl 2 &5HEm
report as contained in the listing document of the %o

Company dated 28 February 2019.

Year ended 31 March

HEIRMBLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016
20195 20184 20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER
RESULTS E$ |
Revenue e 376,621 421,146 501,938 367,768
Profit before taxation BREL AR A 28,254 64,950 67,050 35,139
Taxation RE] (5.372) (14,838) (11,713 (3,875)
Profit for the year FERA 22,882 50,112 55,337 31,264
As at 31 March
®3H318

2019 2018 2017 2016
20195 20185 20175 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TER TEr TER

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Total assets EEME 672,059 383,118 410,785 167,459
Total liabilities BEHE (163,241) (254,426) (335,361) (144,140)
Total equity ERAE 508,818 128,692 75,424 23,319

254 MILLION HOPE INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019



A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

RENTAL PURPOSES

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
TEMERES

A. SEREVMRESHSBAR
&

Attributable

Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions [k property x5KH of lease
B (FHR) MEHER BEES H¥mEn
1. OfficesC, D, E, F G &Hon 5,633 Commercial 100% Medium-term
20/F, Kings Wing Plaza 1, (Marketing lease
3 On Kwan Street, Shatin, gross floor
New Territories, Hong Kong area)
BEAFFDHL AN 5,633 i 100% RHEAFA A
Rin &5 —H (ATEEE
2082 M AEC-DE~F GRH HE)
PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWN USE IN B. RERBIESEZEAYDE
HONG KONG
Attributable
Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions mE property xEH of lease
B (FAR) MEHE EB{EER R
1. Offices A, B, J, K, L, M, N & P on 9,348 Commercial 100% Medium-term
20/F, and car parking space (Marketing lease
numbers P50 and P51 on gross floor
Basement Floor, area)
Kings Wing Plaza 1,
3 On Kwan Street, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BAFFD B LA 9,348 [EES 100% RHEAFA A
RIBES 202 (A EEE
WAZEABJ KL M-NEPK HE)

1 & 55 P50 5% P5 155 2 B {2

Note: The carrying value of the above properties as at

31 March 2019 was HK$85,115,000. The market
value of the above properties as at 31 March 2019
was HK$101,200,000 (it was disclosed in the listing
document of the Company dated 28 February 2019
that the market value of the above properties
as at 31 December 2018 was HK$99,900,000)
and the additional depreciation that would be
charged against the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
had the properties been stated at such valuation is
HK$379,000.

MfsE: M2019F3831H LA ENREES
85,115,000 JT ° }A201943 8318 » £t
Y # 19 B A101,200,0005% 7T (&6 20248 2
A HHIA2019%2H280 2 L/ X # Fr i
20185128310 LHiYEMNTES
99,900,000 7t.) + B s #) 3 LA 48 BA (5 (B 5
R-ERGAEEREMEARERINRZ
FEIMTE 5379,00058 7T ©
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FTEMERE

C. PROPERTY HELD FOR OWN USE

IN MAINLAND CHINA

C. RhEAMKEAZERAME

Attributable

Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions [i-1k property x5KHE of lease
B (FFHR) MEMER BiLER HER
1. An industrial complex located at 12,645.8 Industrial 100% Medium-term

Huanzhen Road, (Gross floor lease

Shangxia Development Zone, area)

Shuikou, Huizhou, Guangdong

Province, The PRC

URAPEIEREEMmKOE 12,645.8 BEE 100% HRHEIFE A

IRIERE FEREEN (ZEmEBE)

—BRIEGERESE
Note: The carrying value of the above property as at FfEE: M2019%3A31H P EMNKREES

31 March 2019 was HK$18,205,000. The market
value of the above property as at 31 March 2019
was HK$33,800,000 (it was disclosed in the listing
document of the Company dated 28 February 2019
that the market value of the above property as at
31 December 2018 was HK$32,000,000) and the
additional depreciation that would be charged
against the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income had the property
been stated at such valuation is HK$16,000.
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18,205,00078 Jt ° R2019%F3A31H » Ll
Y % 19 ™ {& £33,800,00058 7T (36 40 A& 2
T HH 520195628288 2 L X B AT
E 2018128310 LAY ¥EMNTES
32,000,000 7t ) + B i #) 3 LA 46 B 15 (B 51
R BRGmeBakEMEEKERNKRZ
FEIMNTE B16,00078 7T ©
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